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Minutes:

Senator Erbele opened the hearing on SB 2332 relating to creation of a health information
technology office and advisory committee.

Senator Lee District 13, introduced SB 23342. North Dakota is behind in the implementation
of Health Information Technology. but there is a task force that has been working on gathering
information‘on how ND can proceed. This bill will help move forward the

health information technology in ND.

Representative Kaldor District 20, Spoke in support of 2332 Health Information Technology
(HIT) is a huge issue for rural hospitals and all hospitals. The interoperability of medical
records is critical to proper health care. | would ask that the committee give this bill favorable
consideration.

Kimber Wraalstad President/CEQ of Presentation Medical Center in Rolla and member of ND
HIT Steering Committee. Spoke in support of 2332. See attachment #1.

Craig Hewitt Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer with Merit Care Health

Systems and member of HIT Steering Committee. Spoke in support of 2332. In order to move

. this forward, we need to have a focus on it. A lot of work has been done over the last several

years, especially by volunteers, but for us to really move forward we need to have better
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planning and momentum. We really believe that this office residing in HS is vital to making this
happen. We want to eliminate some of the competition and provide unified leadership. We feel
it is important to have an officer representing all of our interests. We also believe it is important
as we move into the digital age that we have a plan for sharing information. Whether we like it
or not, technology is here. HIT is a pretty hot topic across the US. ND has had one bill relating
to this which created the steering committee, but we need to move forward as other states
have. It is also important relative to what is going on with the economic recovery act. With the
ERA, there is some money available if we are able to show that we are moving forward to
receive matching grants.

Senator Lee | have always thought the bigger the board the less that gets done. Maybe that
isn’t true here but we have a lot of representation on this committee. | certainly want all areas
represented but do you see some cumbersome places?

Hewitt Other states have shown that it is beneficial to include everyone.

Discussion on how to structure advisory board

Hewitt Passed out a hand out on the proposed appropriation request and walked the
committee through the information. See attachment #2.

Senator Marcellais | am all for technology, | was wondering if you collaborated with the
federal organizations such as the Veterans Administration. | would recommend that they be on
the steering committee so that we could be compatible.

Hewitt Absolutely, and that was part of the reason for having all these people at the table.
Senator Lee Especially with all the technology happening in the systems like the VA, it would
be important.

Senator Marcellais The VA is looking into putting all the medical records onto their ID cards.

Brief discussion
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Dan Ulmer Blue Cross Blue Shield. Spoke in support of 2332. Discussed the history of health
care technology legislation. Also discussed quality, efficiency, and sustainability of health care.
They see HIT as a huge step forward. In regards to the question about what congress is doing,
| have an e-mail. Please see attachment #3.

Senator Dever Is there a way to put a structure in place that we can build on later if we do not
have the funding right now?

Ulmer That is one of the problems in terms of timing. | would be surprised if Congress acted
before you adjourned. | don't have the answer.

Senator Dever We have heard about a lot of good programs; it may just become a matter of
prioritization.

Bruce Levi Representing the ND.Medical Association. Spoke in support of 2332. See
attachment #4.

June Herman Senior Director of Government Relations for the American Heart Association.
Spoke in support of 2332, See attachment #5.

There was no opposition testimony given.

Michael Mullen Was not planning to testify but was asked by Senator Lee to stand for
questions regarding privacy issues. Neutral. Commented on the fact that there is so much info
to keep up with. One of the things holding up this process is concerns about liability. Keeping
up with all the rules and compliance issueslis overwhelming, we néed the structure of a
committee so that the information is disseminated. We need a central mechanism to keep
people on the same playing field as other states.

Senator Lee Privacy is not perfect with paper charts either. What we have now is not the ideal

either.
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Michael Mullen Many people feel that with properly structured electronic records there will be

——

better levels of privacy. Gave examples of how records can be structured.

Senator Lee Closed the hearing on SB 2332.
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Senator Lee Opened the discussion on SB 2332.
There was a discussion about whether or not to have an amendment to include VA and Indian
Health Services. Decided against it as the bill already includes those organizations. Discussed
the budget numbers. There were no Ianguage changes or amendments.
Senator Heckaman | move Do Pass and Rerefer to Appropriations.
Senator Marcellais Second.
The Clerk called the role on the motion to Do Pass and Rerefer to Appropriations. Yes: 6,
No: 0, Absent: 0.

Senator Marcellais will carry.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2332: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) recommends DO PASS
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2332 was rereferred to the Appropriations
Committee.
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. This was never presented to the governor.
Senator Mathern | recommend we pass this, seconded by Senator Fischer
Senator Kilzer asked if we needed any amendments.
Senator Mathern said we should ask legislative council to draft an amendment for the FTE to
come out of the Insurance Tax Distribution Fund.
Senator Kilzer said we will take this up with the full committee because they will want to be in
on the discussion of where the money will come from.
4237 heard on 2-3-09 deals with the health care records industry. Secretary of State would
like to do this with new software that is available now at the Secretary of State office. That
could cost up to $100,000. 57.50 Subcommittee recommended we pass this. Mathern moved

and Fischer seconded.

_.302 relating to extended payments was a moved Do Not Pass.

.19 this bill is not done yet and scheduled for hearing on Friday.

2333 The Department of Health and the public health units worked out a deal to promote
functions being done on a regional basis. Motion moved by Senator Mathern do pass and
seconded by Senator Kilzer. Sub Committee approves of SB 2333.

Senator Mathern is that money that was anticipated there for immunizations in the budget.
Arvy we don't need funding in our budget because health insurance would pay.

Vote was taken do pass 3-0-0

2342 Sub committee recommends a Do pass on SB 2342 with amendment to be attached.

2356 this is a direct appropriation on the bill. Discussed bill,

Senator Mathern asked if there was a companion bill that would supply equipment.
.enator .... Said he thinks we have a bill loan payback.

Should the state be involved in this?



2009 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

' Bill/Resolution No. SB 2332
. Senate Appropriations Committee

[ ] Check here for Conference Committee

Hearing Date: February 13, 2009

Recorder Job Number: 9453

/7 (zj
Committee Clerk Signature < %@(y / / g =
Vi f

Minutes:

Chairman Holmberg: called the committee hearing to order on SB 2332 relating to the

creation of a health information technology office and advisory committee.

Electronic Medical Records (EMR)

Kimber Wraalstad, President/CEQ, Presentation Medical Center, Rolla, ND and member of
'.ND Health Information Technology Steering Committee, testified in favor of SB 2332.

(Written attached testimony # 1)

Explained the benefits of health information technology, and Joint Data Center in Rugby.

Costs $5.5 M for total package. Need health information exchange and if they don't have

technology, they don't have exchange. Impact patient care, why not just buy it. Our average

operating loss was a minus 3.4%. The grants are important and they need help getting

matching dollars.

Senator Judy Lee: District 13, Fargo, testified in support of SB 2332. The policy committee

strongly endorses this bill. We need technology that if we don’t get up to speed in rural areas.

We are going to lose those areas because they will go to the larger communities. There is a

local match in all this.

‘enator Christmann: Did someone try this bill last time and not enough vote?
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Senator Judy Lee: We enabled them to go forward, but there was no money attached. There
. have been hundreds of hours put into this and it's time to step up to plate.

V. Chair Bowman: 10 communities on list. The other not on list, have they already
implemented technology. We can communicate now. What do we have to do in our rural
community to be a part of this if we are missing out?
Senator Judy Lee: Our goal is for those who don't have equipment to have it. There is steep
curve on this and we want evefybody to be a part. Our focus is very much on rural area’s.
Darrell Vanyo: Chief Information Officer at BC/BS; Co-chair, Health Information Exchange
(HIE), testified in favor of SB 2332. (Written attached testimony # 2)
Senator Warner: Could you speak about interface between your |T system and the state's
system?
Darrell Vanyo: The communication backbone? In comparison with the state and BC/BS, I'd

.rather have BlueCross/BlueShield. When you tie into the state’'s system, | don’t know what
they tie into. Of a particular health care system, the last couple years, the exchange of
information to other healthcare system, people did not want their information going out
elsewhere. People are realizing the need.
V. Chair Bowman: You have stated that hospitals can’t afford technology. If they can’t the
technology, how are they going to keep up after they get it? Is it going to be state-funded? Are
you coming back in two years because you will need more? What is your vision for after
implementation on how to sustain it?
Darrell Vanyo: What you are referring to is sustainability and what have other states done.
As | stated earlier, incentives from payers such as Medicare and Medicaid are intended to be

incentives for people to on-board with this. The sustainability has to come from people who
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reimburse. To make this sustainable in the future, there would have to be continued dollars.

This is really dollars for a kick start so we can insure we receive the federal dollars.

Senator Robinson: This is coming and is long overdue. The new physicians demand that this
is a must before they will come to take job at your place. There is a price-tag for having it;
however, there is also price tag for not having it.

V. Chair Grindberg: Does establishing 501 C 3 have any backing or interest as far as
sustainability?

Lynette Dickson: Program Director, Center for Rural Health, UND, testified in favor of SB
2332. (Written attached testimony # 3)

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on SB 2332.
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Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2332 relating to the creation of a health
information technology office and advisory committee. (Electronic Medical Records (EMR)
(28.49)

Discussion followed regarding the funds in this bill.

.Senator Krebsbach moved to pass the amendment to reduce the appropriation on SB
2332. And it was seconded by Senator Krauter. All in favor of the amendment say aye.
It carried.

Senator Krebsbach moved Do Pass as Amended. Seconded by Senator Krauter.
Discussion followed. (30.56)

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEIN ON A DO PASS AS AMENDED. 17 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0
ABSENT. SENATOR KRAUTER WILL CARRY THE BILL.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on SB 2332.
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Chairman Weisz opened the hearing on SB 2332. Senator Lee is in three other committees
right now testifying so had planned on to introduce the bill. She will try and get here whenever
she can. Senator Robinson will carry the show this morning.

Sen. Larry Robinson from district 24: The bill before you addresses the health information
technology which is one of the more important issues that we will deal with this session and
subsequent sessions. This is a big and important issue and if you dig into it at all you wili
quickly find just how important itis. There is new language in the bill and there is also an
appropriation. It is safe to assume at this point and time we feel it is important to keep this bil!
alive, we need the program, but we on our side and your side as well have been focusing in on
the stimulus money and there is significant money there to fund this particular program. Health
information technology is nothing totally new. We created a working group to monitor this effort
a couple of years back. | attended one of their conferences a number of months ago and it is a
very interesting and intriguing issue when you think about the ramification of having heailth
information technology services and a program in place. At the conference last fall at the
Raddison | listened to a physician who was recruited by one of the local medical facilities from

Wisconsin. One of the reasons this individual elected to return to ND was the presence of this
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. effort in a medical facility here in Bismarck. When physicians would go to an outreach clinic,
they would literally box up patient's files and carry them to the clinic. If the patient had been
involved in an accident and transported here during the transport of their medical file to the
outreach clinic, the file wouldn't be accessible. We have a large number of people who move
south for the winter. If you are in Arizona and you walk into a clinic or you need a prescription
refill, it would be wonderful if your medical records would be available on that screen. They
aren't at the present time. There is a cost to health information technology, but there is a
greater cost by not going down this road. Senator Conrad visited a lady in central ND that had
18-24 different prescriptions from multipie clinic and pharmacies and had no idea if they
worked together or if they worked in opposition. We could prevent that from happening with
health information technology. We need this hill and look at stimulus package to fund this bill.

. Chairman Weisz: Being on the Appropriations you hear about stimulus money. There is a fair
amount of money having to do with HIT in the stimulus package. From what you know of will
some of the medical facilities that have invested a tremendous amount of money in this area
be able to qualify for some of this money? Some concerns expressed to me because we are
out front of the horse are we going to be penalized.

Sen. Robinson: That is a good question and | don't know. There are some people from the
medical communities here who can speak to that. As | understand HIT, even those
communities might be the large communities that have invested in this technology, they to
stand to benefit to the extent that the entire region can become participants in the program.
Sen. Judy Lee from district 13 sponsored bill: ND is lagging a bit from other states on
health information technology. We need to help rural area medical providers on electronic
technology. My goal is my medical records are accessible in other states if | had an accident

someplace other than ND. We need to make sure the big cities are linked with the small ones.
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. Dean Haas representing the ND Medical Association: See Testimony #1.
Rep. Conrad: Was this presented to the Governor and put into the budget?
Dean Haas: | know that it was, but | don’t know what the amount was. (Someone answers
from audience that it was not put into the budget.)
Rep. Potter: You talk about on page 2, that SB 2332 would re-establish the committee. Who
are the committee members same as was with prior committee?
Dean Haas: | don't know the answer to that either, sorry.
Rep. Porter: On page 2, line 25 (reads from the bill). How does this mechanism work for the
benefit of the health information technology office?
Dean Hass: | don't know the answer to your question either.
Rep. Potter: Section 2 repeals are particular law, Section 23-01-31. Do you have any idea of
. what it repeals?
Dean Haas: That section (inaudible) Health information technology committee. It re-
establishes that committee.
Rep. Potter: The bill re-establishes it and the repeal undoes (inaudible).
Dean Haas: That’s right.
Nancy Willis, works at St. Alexius Medical Center on HIT steering committee: See
handout #2. Last legislative session the HIT steering committee was established, but only
until this next session. We would like to change our name to advisory committee. We would
like to see this bill go back to appropriations and have the appropriation go back to what we
had originally requested which was $5.9 million I've passed out a handout about HIT and the
steering committee and what we have been working on. (Explained some of the handout.)
A concern we have is there is a certification that the government has talked about for

electronic talk record and again even at this point and time across the country most
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. organizations either have already that certification or are in the process of getting that
certification are large academic medical centers. The stimulus package, bulk of dollars are
given to two federal agencies such as HERSA and HARQ and those dollars will then be
available for competitive grants to organizations who are looking towards HIT. The concern we
have with those competitive grants in ND is that when we look at some of the language on
criteria for those grants, a lot of them are talking about either that the ones given priority are
either certified or in the process of being certified. We are a long away from that. We are
thinking ND won't be eligible for a lot of those grants and if so won't be a lot of dollars. The
second portion of those dollars are being available directly to providers, but again there is
significant criteria attached to those dollars. The way the language is written in the stimulus
package is the doltars will be provided to these providers based on their quality performance.

. You can only apply up to a certain percentage based on the bench mark criteria and the
business you are providing to those particular beneficiaries. The first group of funds and the
purpose of requesting these grant dollars is that our hope would be with enough grant dollars
you would be able to take some of the facilities that currently have nothing, some clinics still
use appointment books, and we cannot communicate with them electronically if they have
nothing in place. We looked at implementation grants which would allow those facilities to
actually have some dollars to bring somebody in and access what their needs are for those
who haven't even started this process. The second group of funds we asked for were dollars
that would actually (coughing making inaudible) could move forward and implement some of
those things. On the telemedicine side that primarily we were looking at for the transfer of
radiology images or x-rays. Some facilities have what is called PAS (picture archival systems)
where you can transmit images where a lot of them don't have the capability for that. We

thought through all of these different portions of grants that were requested. In answer to your
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. qguestion about the 501c3; the reason we ask for that is we know the state can currently accept
grant doliars, but there was a thought that there might be individuals who would want to donate
money towards HIT and we wanted a vehicle where that could happen as well.

Chairman Weisz: Could you state actually the 501c?

Nancy Willis: | don’'t know what kind of legal ramifications there is setting that up. The
discussion was that it would be a private/public entity that could accept federal and private
dollars donated to that organization. Some other states have that set up and can accept
dollars.

Rep. Conrad: Did you say three facilities per grant?

Nancy Willis: Correct. In order to exchange information you need more than one entity. We
wanted to apply as a group keeping in mind who they would be connecting to.

. Rep. Conrad: Then the facilities could be involved in several projects.

Nancy Willis: Correct.

Rep. Conrad: Then twenty grants should have about sixty facilities?

Nancy Willis: Yes.

Rep. Frantsvog: Are the national standards in place as your medical facility goes through the
kind of processing so at some point and time you can tie into this program nationally?

Nancy Willis: There are national standards that are recommended, but are not required. Most
of the facilities follow the national standards to ensure that people can be connected. We
would like to see if this office is established is that the HIT officer would create some standards
for the state of ND.

Rep. Frantsvog: I'm assuming that when you are making reference to national standards that

.we aren’t going to have competing standards so somebody here has a list on standards and
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. someone over here competes for somebody's business and all of a sudden one can't access
the other. Are we going to be certain as we proceed with this that is not going to happen?
Nancy Willis: That is what we are hoping this office can do.

Rep. Holman: What is priority of what is most important of person’s 50-60 year history?
Nancy Willis: Making sure x-rays and labs are available and whatever the last information on
your file is.

Rep. Nathe: As far as physicians on your electronic portion of this, what has been there take
on all this stuff?

Nancy Willis: It is a difficult challenge. It is not because they don’t want to move into the
electronic age, physicians want to take care of their patients and all of these things being
required of them, sometimes they feel it gets in the way of taking care of their patients. We

. have started with those physicians who are more technologically adept. Physicians who are
more technology oriented are early users of these systems. We are seeing younger
physicians coming in our systems. All of the residency programs are now on it.

Rep. Nathe: When will all the physicians have to be up to speed?

Nancy Willis: By 2012.

Chairman Weisz: Under the present bill what will you do with the $500,0007?

Nancy Willis: That amount just funds the HIT officer and leaves little money for any other
activities from the grant standpoint.

Rep. Conrad: You don't sound hopeful about the stimulus package.

Nancy Willis: Not right away. Many other states a lot farther along than ND. Many of the
dollars to the state they want it used for the MMIS system and to make sure claims are done
timely so a lot of those dollars are looking at that. The other dollars are looking at meeting with

the quality criteria. ND is far ahead of the nation in giving quality care so far us we probably
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. can apply for some of those dollars that are coming down through Medicaid and Medicare
beneficiaries. A lot of those are being asked to be used claims processing and those types of
things.

Rep. Potter: With the $500,000 and a do pass on the engrossed bill, then | look at your
numbers for all these different things, it looks like $500,000 isn’t going to go very far. Maybe
they were thinking of stimulus dollars and that's why they took out money.

Nancy Willis: | think that is the case. The legislature is looking at a lot of these stimulus
dollars in the stimulus package. The strings that are tied to those won't let us do some of the
things we need to do.

Rep. Potter: If we consider bumping up the $500,000 from what the Senate did, but didn't get
up to the nearly $6 million it started out at. Would you have any recommendation as to if you

. weren't going to do your $6 million, what we might want to consider?

Nancy Willis: | would be happy to come back to you with a number. | need to visit with the
steering committee first.

Dan Ulmer from BC/BS: Need to take you back to 1996 on this bill. When congress passed i,
it was the (inaudible) bill. Congress was just recovering from Clinton care and President
Clinton thought it was a good idea if you were able to take your insurance from job to job you
would make your insurance portable. That was the beginning of the Kennedy/Cassibond (?) bitl
and the back of the bill there was a discussion in a very small paragraph on two issues. One
was confidentiality and at that time BC/BS was only doing business in 12 states and we
thought it was good to have one confidentiality law rather than 50. At the same time there was
a question asked as to how we measure quality? The answer was each of us had our own
data dialects as insurers and we couldn't talk to each other. So, the move forward with

something called HIPPA which basically said all of us needed to standardize codes and data
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. sets and that was in 1996. We are now in 2009, we are not done with HIPPA yet. The HIPPA
is on a platform called 4010 which is far beyond me. We have now standardized codes and
sets, but they have decided the platform it is on is not large enough so we have to move to
platform 5010 and have a year left to do that, | think 2011 is when that has to happen. At the
same time they want to move forward with from ICD-9 which has something like 8,000
potential codes for hospitals to ICD-10 which has over a 100,000 codes possible. The
hospitals really want to do this because they can (inaudible) bill us better. The other detail is
what was explained here, one of the problems if you look at the system from a larger level,
30% of the care in America is unnecessary and redundant. $7 billion dollars a year that we are
not sure why we are doing it. One reason why it is wasted is because how we transfer records
and move between doctors. You have a 50% chance of getting the right care and the right
time. That is part of what is behind this kind of thinking in terms of moving forward with HIT. 'm
sure that when this was heard in the Senate they thought a good chunk of the stimulus money
was coming forward to do what this bill was proposing to do. Obviously there are a lot of
strings attached to it.. We have been pushing on a national level is called Comparative
Effectiveness Research. The question is what works and how do we find out what works?
Unless we can get a hold of the data we don't really know. If you are going to move forward
with reform you need to get your arms around what works. The problem with the healthcare
system today is cost. Unless you lay the foundations for reform, it is not going to work. We
support this bill strongly and hope you will restore the original appropriation. Know you have an
uphill fight to do so. Nancy and the committee have done a really good job of telling you where
the needs are and they did this for free.

. Rep. Conrad: It sounds like we are behind and that is part of the reason we need $6 mitlion.



Page 9

House Human Services Committee
Bill/Resolution No. 2332

Hearing Date: March 16, 2009

. Dan Ulmer: Yes. A friend of my son’s as well as my manager in the district office who recently
returned to ND to practice medicine. A surgeon who spent his residency in Kalamazoo,
Michigan and he said he couldn't believe how far behind we are. He has it all on templates.
When a does a particular surgery, he pops up the surgery and it comes out, be sure you do
this, this, and this. He said, | can’t possibly keep this in my head, | don’t know how people do
this on paper anymore.

Rep. Conrad: If we had done this two years ago, would we be ready for the stimulus dollars
that we are not able to apply for?

Dan Ulmer: | think we would be in better shape than we are right now.

Chairman Weisz: Based on your testimony, there is a lot at stake here (inaudible) Blue Cross,
etc. Why hasn’t your organization put up dollars into this?

Dan Ulmer: We give out money for grants for the past 5-8 years. $350,000-500,000 a year for
grants and we helped put together a program at UND where they used dummies to simulators
and stuff.

Rep. Frantsvog: In information handed out to us this morning, it had who has electronic
medical records, 6 urban hospitals etc. How were these funded other than probably grants that
you were giving? Are any doing it on their own?

Dan Ulmer: Most of the bigger facilities have done it on their own based on whatever they can
pull out of their operating accounts etc. Many of the rural areas relied on outside grants.

Mike Mullen, assistant attorney general: Testified in support One of the things that happens
when private healthcare facilities or government agencies select a plan or exchanging records
you get going and you are not very far down the line and | get a phone call, is that legal and

. can we do this? There is value in the exchanging of information.
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. Chairman Weisz: Can you explain the 501¢ from the standpoint if they've ever done this
before and what are the legal ramifications?
Mike Mullen: There have been situations where a 501c¢3 corporation has been established to
receive funds from a state agency to carry out programs that facilitate objectives of state
agencies.
Chairman Weisz: Has the state established them or has other groups established 501c’s to
accept the funds? The state in this case is establishing the 501c¢.
Mike Mullen: Other situations I'm aware of regarding the public health and other matters like
that some association has established a 501¢3 and then the state agency has given a grant to
them to carry out certain functions.
June Herman, Senior Director of Government Relations for the American Heart
Association in ND: See Testimony #3.
NO OPPOSITION.

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing on SB 2332.
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Chairman Weisz: Let’s look at 2332. This is the HIT bill and I've had discussions with
(inaudible). I'm going to make a recommendation. | think this is important to keep this alive. |
think there was an assumption, particularly in the Senate that if we just passed the money for
(inaudible) we’d get stimulus money to take care of it. As of today, it appears that to be the
case. | believe we will have a tough time at this stage of the game with appropriation. This
other issue is that this bill comes over with $500,000 and appropriations are going to ask what
we are going to do with (inaudible) money. | think the bill is in danger of getting a do not pass
out of appropriations. | would suggest we cut the $500,000 to $250,000. (Inaudible) some of
that money to HIT. Keep it alive in appropriations and then it would be in conference
committee. I'm on the bill and | want it still alive. | think it is a good thing. | haven't gotten any
warm fuzzies putting $3-4 million back into the bill.

Rep. Conrad: When you talk to people about his, we are behind.

Chairman Weisz: About everybody still believes stimulus can cover that. By the testimony we
heard this morning that will be a long shot at best. | think we need to find additional funding for

.the hospitals, but | wouldn't bet on it survive in Approp. The other option is to take the money
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out here until we figure out what to do with it. If we can find other sources or we can send it out
asitis.

Rep. Porter: Where are the FTEs in?

Chairman Weisz: Health Dept.

Rep. Porter: Is it in the budget?

Chairman Weisz: No it is not.

Rep. Porter: | don't see it mentioned here (interrupted).

Chairman Weisz: (Inaudible) the state medical officer. The $500,000 was for two FTEs to run
the program. One | think, even if there is no money for grants, that is the worst case scenario, |
think it is still important to have at least somebody (inaudible) and start working with the
hospitals (inaudible) interoperabie ability as was pointed out. if we don’t get the money this
session, maybe get it the next session, but you should at least have everybody on the same
page. Some have been very progressive here in Bismarck with HIT. The worse that could
happen down the road is $2 million dollars wasted because we didn’'t have that correlation we
assume. | want at least one FTE funded because if all fall apart, at least we have all the criteria
set forth and somebody that can coordinate, then we can work on getting it funded. If possible
we can get funding at this session.

Rep. Porter: Motion to amend it on page 3, line 2, $250,000.

Rep. Pietsch: Second.

Rep. Porter: The policy side of what's in here is by far the most important part of it because it
sets the framework up that the committee of HIT sets their standards. If we can get a grant
that is even better. The 501¢3 still bugs me. I'm sure I'll get over it.

Rep. Conklin: Aren’t we better off leaving the $500,000 in there rather than cut it in half?
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Chairman Weisz: From my perspective when | walk down to Appropriations to sell them, they
are going to ask me what the $500,000 is for. | don't have any grant money to tell them these
people are going to be working under. | think | can sell it, that position just with the
coordination. Two positions is pretty hard to sell just for bringing the people together and the
coordination.

Rep. Conrad: You did say you were going to fund the (inaudible) grant, the $150,000 to
combine (inaudible).

Rep. Potter: | hate to see it cut back. | find the whole process discouraging. Here we have
money that the state has that we don't have. Four sessions ago we really didn't have money
and that's exactly what we had to do was nothing, nothing, and nothing.

Rep. Porter: Maybe we should send some of these guys down to SD where they really don'’t
have any money and they would be so much happier then, they wouldn’t have the challenge
on how to spend money. Spending this money is good solid investment for the people.
(Inaudible) but keep saying it until the people that understand it.

Rep. Porter: And good luck with that.

Chairman Weisz: We do have a motion in front of us.

Voice Vote: Motion Carried

Chairman Weisz: | have concerns on page 2, line 25.

Rep. Conrad: | make a motion to delete the 501¢3.

Rep. Porter: Second.

Chairman Weisz: | know what the point was to accept non-profit (drops sentence). They can
do that all the time, they can contract and to that (inaudible).

Rep. Pietsch: Couldn’t they give the money to the foundation and designate it to this particular

project? The hospital would be the 501c3. (Some talking at once.) They can get their money.
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Chairman Weisz: | assume the Healthcare Association is a 501¢3. I'm assuming they are.
Voice Vote: Motion Carried.

Rep. Frantsvog: Do Pass As Amended and re-referred to Appropriations.

Rep. Conklin: second.

Roll Call Vote: 12 yes, 0 no, 1 absent, Rep. Holman.

MOTION CARRIED DO PASS AS AMENDED AND RE-REFERRED TO APPROPRIATIONS.

BILL. CARRIER: Rep. Weisz.
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Chairman Weisz called the meeting to order. SB 2332 was sent back from Appropriations to
us. They had no idea what to do with it so they sat on it and now sent it back to us. If you look
at the makeup of the committee, that language will be gone and revert back to most of the
. original language that is already in current law which says the committee will be the Governor
or Governor's designee, the Health officer or designee and Human Service or their designee
so that is 3 and an additional 9 members to be appointed by the Governor and the Heaith
officer. Then it will be the Health Information Technology Office. The $250,000 we sent out
would still stay in to fund that position and (inaudible) committee and the position to oversee
the committee in the Health Dept. The duties of the committee as outlined in the bill stays,
nothing has changed. Now we get to the real money part. There is a 10 to 1 match of federal
HIT money that states can apply for. What the bill will do is authorize the state Health Dept. to
accept the grant with a $2 million appropriation of state dollars to leverage $20 million dollars
of HIT money from the feds. Now the rules are somewhat restrictive, but that 10 to 1 match
only applies in the year 2010. Need to get this office up and going obviously in establishing he
. rules. The bill would state $2 million to leverage that would go to the Health Information

Technology office for them to disburse. The appropriations would be there, but not the
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authority to spend the money. The want the HIT office to decide on how the funds should be
disbursed. They will have to go to the budget section for the authority to spend it. Has a checks
and balances.

Rep. Conrad: (Something about people on the committee.)

Chairman Weisz: I'm aware of that, but this gives a sense of security to the legislature. There
are no guidelines whatsoever in the bill on how the grant should be disbursed because that is
the whole point of the HIT office. There are going to know and how to decide to disburse
(drops sentence). This will end up in conference committee. We aren't setting guidelines on
how to disburse money.

Rep. Pietsch: Do we want to put on the emergency clause then to speed things up?
Chairman Weisz: That is an option. They polled the hospitals and the best guess if we are to
do everything we need to be completely compliant in HIT has about a $45 million price tag.
The goal in this is to say, we do this now we get the 10 to 1 match. We are going to fund about
half of what we think it is going to cost to get everybody compliant. Hospitals are going to start
getting penalized on their Medicare rates if they are not compliant.

Rep. Conrad: It starts in 127

Chairman Weisz: | think it starts in 12 and gets keeps jumping up (inaudible) up to 5% of your
Medicaid reimbursement rate. Starts at 1% and (drops sentence). So that's an issue. The
intent of the bill then, they have to report after this biennium (inaudible) $2 million they can
match, but they have to come back and report to the assembly on how they used the money
and what are the needs to finish this. How much is it going to take? By then they should know.
Maybe it will only be $10 million more. Itis 10 to1in 2011 and goes to 7 to 1 in 2012. Then the
legisiation could look at it when they report back and decide if they want to finish it.

Rep. Potter: If we aren't interested in finishing it, we probably shouldn't even start it.
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Chairman Weisz: Oh no. it's got to happen. Someone’s got to finish it. Even if the legislature
doesn’t., they are going to have to. The feds say, you shall do this. Mr. Ulmer.

Dan Ulmer from BC/BS: One the things you have to understand is (inaudible) basically says
that you bring your infrastructure up and make it interoperable, then you are also eligible for
Medicare incentives. And additional payments to critical access hospitals. | think 20% in some
cases, and if you are not (inaudible) then they start taking you down and start deductions from
your Medicare payments. Payments only last so many years until everybody is interoperable.
There is a window here that you have to start funding this. After time period is up, anyone not
interoperable is penalized.

Rep. Kilichowski: This is strictly grant money and has nothing to do with the stimuius then?
Chairman Weisz: It is stimulus money that can be offered as a grant that has to have a 10 to
1 match. That's why it has cut off dates. In 2011itis 10to 1in 2012itis 7to 1, 2013 itisa 3 to
1.

Rep. Kilichowski: If they are going to offer us 10 to 1 this time why wouldn’t we put in even $3
million and get $30 million if they are figuring on a $45-47 million? Then put in 2 next time
when it is 7 to 1, we would be money ahead.

Chairman Weisz: A couple of reasons. One, I'm not sure of the ability to even utilize (drops
sentence) time wise to utilize that proper. We don't just want to spend money on the wrong
thing. Two, | don't have a ot of skin left and there is only so much | can give to (everyone
laughing and talking at once).

Rep. Conrad: | thought we were not ready to be competitive for the grants.

Chairman Weisz: This is a little different. These are matching grants now. The other area has

to do with the position, payment, electronic health record (inaudible) up to $15,000. (Inaudible)
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. the first year would be at $15,000, year two $12,000, year three $8,000, in most cases we're
not going to be able get any of that because we are not compliant.
Rep. Conrad: Right. | thought we were not to a point where we could not compete for the
competitive grants.
Chairman Weisz: We can’t compete in this area. This is for state that is behind, but the other
area that has the (inaudible) in it (Rep. Conrad and Chairman Weisz talking at same time,
inaudible). | don’t know how much ND stands to get in that or qualify. Mr. Thomas, do you
have an answer?
Arnold Thomas with ND Healthcare Association: First of all, ND’s position (inaudible) on
the provider’s side. I'll give three examples. For the major institutions, the will not be able to
take direct advantage of this bankroll. The reason is that they have already purchased and
(inaudible, coughing) within their own structures accrued medical records programs and
electronic (inaudible) so the budget would not incorporate those costs. Those institutions and
eventually the additional two largest hospitals will be advantaged (inaudible) the statewide
(inaudible) and a much greater cost of about $5 million to put that fabric infrastructure into
place so as everyone else comes on line the systems and information will be able to go
wherever the patient goes as long as the provider is hooked up to (inaudibie). (Inaudible) eight
facilities they haven’t actually made it (inaudible) investment. So all of their institutions could
come up over a period and this grant would relieve them of that investment which means those
dollars could go into other kinds of support for those facilities. There are ten facilities up in the
northeast that are trying to (inaudible). At first they are trying to get all of the infrastructure the
same electronically. This grant would enable them to do that. That would cost about $5-6

. million for those facilities. The committee is key in making sure that wherever the people are

that over time it is all compatible relative to having everybody connected. Making sure the



Page 5

House Human Services Committee
Bill/Resolution No. 2332

Hearing Date: March 25, 2009

. dollars are spent in compliant with federal requirements. The final piece, all of the doctors that
currently employed by the hospitals, are already included in the budget estimates that we
shared with Rep. Weisz. However, not all doctors are hospital based. Many are independent
practices or clinics. We have allocated dollars for that group of physicians so they too would be
able to participate in this grant once it is made available to us. If you want to be the best in the
nation, our best estimate would be in the neighborhood of $48 million.

Rep. Potter: | understand this is to be taken care of by 2010. Are we going to be able to
(interrupted by others stating 2011.

Arnold Thomas: 2011, 2012, 2013. Itis 10-1, 7-1, and then 3-1 in matches. We had no
discussion at all on carryovers. We had more discussion in terms of, if you have a contract and
it goes into another physical year, what happens. We had no discussion on terms of can you

. amend your initial document and then there are vehicles you have available relative to special
emergency supervisions. There is a lot of flexibility in this framework that is contained
(inaudible) amendments to 2332,

Rep. Conrad: Are they along the lines of what has been presented to us from the House?
Arnold Thomas: In terms of what Rep. Weisz suggested (inaudible) those proposed
revisions? If | may, even though | wasn't asked if | could (inaudible) committee composition.
Chairman Weisz: Go ahead.

Arnold Thomas: In the current bill 2332, entities and interests identified or suggested are not
mandatory in terms of (inaudible) committee. It has been my experience with agency
constituted groups, one of the downsides is they get to be toc big. There is nothing in the
language of current law that would preclude an additional works, taskforce or subcommittees

. of the larger committee (inaudible) of the steering committee to be enabled. It does put a real
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burden on the initiat appointments so that the people who make it happen are at the table. So
when the program is developed in advanced you have a workable (inaudible).

Chairman Weisz: Committee, I'll just read you quickly the program defined by CMS. “"CMS
may award timely implantation grants to state or state designated entities to expand or
electronic exchange or use of helpful information. States must align with the national plan.”
That's part of the conversation Mr. Thomas mentioned. We don't know what that national plan
is yet. “In order to qualify entities must be non-profit with broad stable representation. Must
exist primarily to improve quality efficiency through HIT. Entities must consult with a broad use
of stakeholders and make some recommendations. Beginning in FY'2011 it is 1 for 10, 2012 is
1 for 7 and 2013 is 1 for 3.” The other thing that is also part of the amendment is that loan
payment program may be established for states to purchase certified electronic health record
technology to exchange health information. That requires a 20% match and that is also in the
amendments that a provider could qualify for a loan if they have a 20% match. We don’t know
the terms or anything else, but it would allow this HIT office to get things (inaudible) from the
feds to an entity to make up what they need to do. Committee we have two choices.

Rep. Kilichowski: Move the amendments.

Rep. Pietsch: Second.

Chairman Weisz: Would you like to tack an emergency clause on that?

(Consensus from committee was yes.)

Chairman Weisz: s that your motion Rep. Kilichowski? And second from Rep. Pietsch. | need
a motion to reconsider our actions.

Rep. Hofstad: So moved.

Rep: Damschen:

Voice Vote: Motion Carried.
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Rep. Kilichowski: Move the amendments.

Rep. Pietsch: Second.

Rep. Uglem: The 2011 legislature could still access more money in the emergency clause.
Chairman Weisz: The fiscal year 2011 is October 2010 through October 2011 and then that
ends. The federal fiscal year for 2011 starts October 1, 2010 and ends September 30, 2011 so
we wouldn't be in, in time. Yes we would be. In theory they could (drops sentence) still appears
10-1 match available (inaudible). They should by the time we go into sessionin 11 and if it is
apparent if we can get it in place in time we could actually address the 10-1 match.

Rep. Conrad: It has to go before the budget (inaudible)?

Chairman Weisz: | do.

Rep. Conrad: I'm really stumped at why that has to happen. I'm not going to vote against it no
matter what the amendments say. | really think the appropriation committee should be
reminded of their limit.

Chairman Weisz: | will have a lot of questions based on accountability and we don't even
know (drops sentence). {Inaudible because of coughing) grants and I'll have to tell them |
don’t know.

Voice Vote: Motion Carried.

Rep. Kilichowski: Motion Do Pass as Amended and re-refer to Appropriations.

Rep. Uglem: Second.

Roll Call Vote: 11 yes, 0 no, 2 absent, Rep. Nathe and Porter.

MOTION CARRED DO PASS AS AMENDED RE-REFERRED TO APPROPRIATIONS.

BILL CARRIER: Rep. Weisz.
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Chairman Weisz: Call the committee to order. Everyone should have a copy of the
amendments on 2332 that we did approve. Just want to make sure everybody agrees we are
ready and we are meeting. You can look at them and see if they say what | told you would say.
Rep. Hofstad: It's exactly what it says.

Chairman Weisz: This is the third version to make this work. If anybody has a question on that

speak now because I'm going to sign off on it.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2332

Page 2, line 22, after the underscored semicolon insert "and"
Page 2, line 24, replace "; and" with an underscored period

Page 2, remove lines 25 through 28

Page 3, line 2, replace "$500,000" with "$250,000"

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2332, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (12 YEAS,
0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2332 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 22, after the underscored semicolon insert "and”
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Page 3, line 2, replace "$500,000" with "$250,000"

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, {3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-47-5056



90948.0204 Adopted by the Human Services Committee \[
Title.0400 March 31, 2009 1l 0]

1%

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2332

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 967 of the House Journal,
Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2332 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, replace "repeal” with "amend and reenact”

Page 1, line 4, remove "and” and after "appropriation” insert "; and to declare an emergency”

Page 1, line 10, remove "The health information technology office is estabiished in the state

department oi"

Page 1, remove lines 11 through 24

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 11

Page 2, line 12, remove "represent a single interest.”

Page 2, line 15, replace "4." with "2,"

Page 2, line 22, after the underscored semicolon insert "and"
Page 2, line 24, replace "; and" with an underscored period
Page 2, replace lines 25 through 30 with:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

23-01-31. North Dakota health Information technology steering committes.
The North Dakota heaith information technology steering committee consists of the
state health officer or the state health officer's designee, the governor or the governor's
designee, the executive director of the department of human services or the executive
director's designee, and nine individuals appointed by the governor te-reprosentstate
gevernmont-interesis; and indivi i the state health officer to represent
health information technology stakehoiders.

SECTION 3. PLANNING AND IMPLEMENTATION GRANTS. The state
department of health may accept planning and implementation grants under the federal
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and disburse the funds to the health
information technology office, which may distribute the funds to nonprofit providers with
broad stakeholder group representation to improve quality and efficiency through the
health information technology office. The state department of health may accept grants
1o establish loan programs for the purchase of certified slectronic healith record
technology used to exchange heaith information and provide the funds to the health
information technology office, to provide the funds to nonprofit providers with broad
stakeholder group representation to improve quality and efficiency through the healith
technology information office. The grants require a twenty percent match of nonfederal
funds by the nonprofit providers, beginning January 1, 2010. The granting authority of
the health information technology office is limited to the biennium beginning July 1,
2009, and ending June 30, 2011, Before October 201 0, the health information
technology office shalil report to the legislative council on the status of the current grant
and potential funding needs for the 2011-13 biennium.

Page No. 1 90948.0204
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SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 3/
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $250,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the
purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology office and advisory
committee, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and from federal funds made
available to the state under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009, the sum of $20,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, as
planning and implementation grants to be accepted by the state department of health as
provided in section 3 of this Act. The state department of health may spend funds
under this section subject to budget section approval of the plan developed by the
health information technology office. Any general fund moneys appropriated under this
section are not part of the agency's 2011-13 base budget.

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.”

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 5

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 90948.0204
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-56-6024
April 2, 2008 2:05 p.m. Carrier: Weisz
Insert LC: 90948.0204 Title: .0400

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2332, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chalrman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2332
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 967 of the House Journal,
Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2332 is amended as foliows:

Page 1, line 3, replace "repeal” with "amend and reenact”
Page 1, line 4, remove “and" and after "appropriation” insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 10, remove "The health information technology office is established in the state
department of"

Page 1, remove lines 11 through 24
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 11

Page 2, line 12, remove "represent a single interest.”

Page 2, line 15, replace "4." with "2."

Page 2, line 22, after the underscored semicolon insert "and”
Page 2, line 24, replace "; and" with an underscored period
Page 2, replace lines 25 through 30 with:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

23-01-31. North Dakota health Information technology steering
committee. The North Dakota health information technology steering committee
consists of the state health officer or the state heaith officer's designee, the governor or
the governor's designee, the executive director of the department of human services or
the executive director's designee, and nine individuais appointed by the governor te

: and ndividuaic—appeinted-by the state health

officer to represent health information technology stakeholders.

SECTION 3. PLANNING AND IMPLEMENTATION GRANTS. The state
department of health may accept planning and implementation grants under the federal
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and disburse the funds to the health
information technology office, which may distribute the funds to nonprofit providers with
broad stakeholder group representation to improve quality and efficiency through the
health information technology office. The state department of health may accept grants
to establish loan programs for the purchase of certified electronic health record
technology used to exchange health information and provide the funds to the health
information technology office, to provide the funds to nonprofit providers with broad
stakehotder group representation to improve quality and efficiency through the health
technology information office. The grants require a twenty percent match of nonfederal
funds by the nonprofit providers, beginning January 1, 2010. The granting authority of
the health information technology office is limited to the biennium beginning July 1,
2009, and ending June 30, 2011. Before October 2010, the health information
technology office shall report to the legislative council on the status of the current grant
and potential funding needs for the 2011-13 biennium.

{2) DESK, {3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-56-6024
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Insert LC: 90948.0204 Title: .0400

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $250,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the
purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology office and advisory
committee, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and from federal funds made
available to the state under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009, the sum of $20,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, as
planning and implementation grants to be accepted by the state department of health
as provided in section 3 of this Act. The state department of heaith may spend funds
under this section subject to budget section approval of the plan developed by the
health information technology office. Any general fund moneys appropriated under this
section are not part of the agency’s 2011-13 base budget.

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.”

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 5

Renumber accordingly

{2} DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 2 HRA-56-6024
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2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Bill/Resolution No. SB 2332

.House Appropriations Committee
[l Check here for Conference Committee
Hearing Date: 4/7/09

Recorder Job Number: 11770 @ 19:38
V4 .

/) .
Committee Clerk Signature 0 f rﬂr ( UMA,/
~

Minutes:
Chr. Svedjan: This i$-8B.2332, which is the Health Information Technology Bill that we had
earlier and sent back. The Human Services Committee did some more work based on federal
matching.
Representative Weisz: What we did was take a look at the needs of HIT throughout the State
.af ND. The number presented to us was approximately $47 million to comply with the
guidelines of HIT. The committee took a look at, because of the time-frame, we allocated $2
million to be matched 10 to 1. That would be $20 million federal. Approximately half of the
money projected to be needed for the conversion would be handled in this bill. When we come
back next session, we would have a much better handle on what the rest of the needs would
be. There would still be time to actually use some of that 10 to 1 money, if the legislature would
want to do that going into the 11-13 biennium. The money will flow through the State Health
Department to the Health Information Technology office. The office isn’t in place yet because
they can’t do anything until we allocate for it. They aren't able to spend the money until they
go before the budget section to get approval. We did that because we have no way of
knowing what the rules and what their criteria will be at this time because they don't exist. We
dded this language to ensure that they are doing it fairly and equitably across all the providers

in North Dakota. One of the things we took a look at is under current federal provisions, if our
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House Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution No. SB 2332
Hearing Date: 04/07/09

hospitals don’t become technology compliant, they will now receive a Medicare penalty. |t
I.starts at 1% and goes to 5%. We many have smaller hospitals struggling already and a large
portion of their patients are either Medicare or Medicaid. Now they are going to take 5% of
that away from them because they aren’t technology complaint. We looked at this as being
extremely important. One of the best examples as to why this is important is the flood. We
have moved tons of patients out of the Fargo area and sent them all across the state. They
were literally sending garbage bags of patient files along with them. If all the hospitals are
compliant, none of that would need to happen. All of the patient information would be
accessible online no matter where the patient was. The feds are saying that we have to do
this. The 10 to 1 match will be available until October of 2010. That is the reason for the
emergency clause. We want to try to move this along, get the office established, and accept
the funds through the Health Department. Most of these small hospitals do not have the funds
vailable to do this now in addition to paying a penalty. Some hospitals have this internally,
but do not have interoperability.
Chr. Svedjan: | have a guestion on the interoperability. There are certain facilities that are
well positioned, but they have different systems. Can they communicate with each other?
There has been some work done to begin to discern what will be necessary from a hardware
and a software standpoint. You have given some significant ranges here on the dollars and
worked from the mean of those ranges to arrive at a total figure. Would you speak to the
numbers?
Representative Weisz: The numbers were arrived at by asking the Health Care Industry to
provide us with numbers. They have already been taking a look at that. Some major
consultants have arrived at many of these numbers. They took into account what hospitals

.‘wave already done. Some of the major hospitals have invested a considerable amount. They
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Bill/Resolution No. SB 2332
Hearing Date: 04/07/09

have taken that all into account. What will it take for the hospitals that are already there to
.become interoperable? Also for the solo practices, they have been looking at that. These
numbers have been provided by them as a range in which a committee said theg} don't know
for sure what it will cost totally. Their projection is $47 million. We know it is going to cost a
lot, but we know how important that it is. We believe that there is time. If we fund it at $22
million total, we will be able to come back in two years and see where we are at. How much
money will we need to finish this? Are they proceeding the way they should be? Is that HIT
office doing the job it's supposed to? Then they have to come before the budget section, even
before they get approval to spend any of this. We asked the Health Care Industry how much it
would cost if they had to be compliant by next year. That is where the $47 million came from.
We decided that you can't get that far in one year anyway. The feds are always dragging their
feet. So, we decided to fund it to that point. We come back here and know where we are at.
y then the feds have finalized whatever changes there might be. Then this body can decide if
they want to fund any additional money to fund the implementation of HIT.
Chr. Svedjan: It's difficult to know how this is going to transpire. What I'm wondering is,
probably with regard to the smaller units, how do you see this all coming together? | realize
that the Health Information Technology Steering Committee is really going to be in charge. |t
would seem to me that you are going to need some boots on the ground, so to speak, all over
the state to pull this all together.
Representative Weisz: That is important. Our committee changed the makeup of that original
committee. We wanted to make sure that it's the stakeholders that have something in play. |
would envision that when you have stakeholders like Minot and MedCenter that have already
done a lot of work. They are going to be a major force in working with smaller hospitals and

.solo physicians. It is critical when you look at the make-up of the committee. There should be
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House Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution No. SB 2332
Hearing Date: 04/07/09

people appointed that are involved in this that are going to know what they are doing to bring

.out the competing interest and aiso bring common interests together. They need to make a
system that will work smoothly throughout the state and the nation. There are issues as far as
different systems and how they operate. But, it's not that difficult to program to allow different
internal systems to be interoperable with other systems. The major four facilities will get this
done without an issue. But, we will have most of our small ¢linics and small physicians being
hit by the Medicare decrease and they're already struggling. We already have trouble with
clinics in many parts of the state. | can only imagine the benefits in time and management
when the flood hit Fargo. They had to be so concerned about the files. | can’t imagine how
much money this would have saved. All they would have had to do was move the patients.
Chm. Svedjan: (35:14) | knew what it was like to move in the direction of adopting an

-~ electronic medical record internally. The amount of work that went into it, and the amount of

raining was huge. In this situation, I'm sure we are looking at variations in what the electronic
medical records look like in the facilities that have them up now. Maybe there would be
significant modification in which everyone will end up with an electronic record that looks the
same. |s that true?
Rep. Weisz: In part that is correct. | think you can have some differences. The data will
transfer no matter what the system. They may have a different way in what they are
prescribing, but the data will be compatible across the system. So, the major four may not
benefit as much, since they have already done so much work. They will benefit from the
interoperability standpoint.
Rep. Kaldor: (37:55) In our community there are some models. We have several hospitals in
the Northeastern region that are collaborating for this purpose. The issue they face is to select

‘ system. They were caught between what Meritcare does, and what does Altru does. They
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ultimately decided to do what was best for them and what was affordable. The key is to have
.the data that each hospital plugs in be basically seamless. | think this is valuable long term.

Rep. Glassheim: (39:00) Seeing that this wili benefit hospitals and physicians in the future, is

there any reason they shouldn't be assessed some kind of fee? Should the private sector be

putting something in or not?

Rep. Weisz: We did discuss that in Committee, and that was an issue. They are all putting

substantial amounts of money in now to get where they are. Especially the smaller hospitals

are having a hard time getting the resources. They all understand that it is important. You

could just give the Health Department authorization to give grants, but it doesn't do any good if

the facilities can’t cash in on them. There is a provision for interest free loans through the

stimulus package, so that they could also qualify for them. This is in no way paying for all the

costs that are involved in this.

hm. Svedjan: (40:49) Explain the timeline again.

Representative Weisz: The stimulus package says that the 10:1 match is only good until

October 2010. Then it goes to a 7:1 match for one year (2011). Then it goes to a 3:1 match

until October 2012, After that, it goes away.

Chm. Svedjan: With October 2010 falling in the next North Dakota biennium, will we have the

opportunity to enhance this level of funding with a 10 to 1 match?

Rep. Weisz: That's why we put the emergency clause in. If we are at the point where we

know where we are at, we will have the ability to seek and receive some of that money yet.

Chm. Svedjan: Then the Budget Section would give the blessing.

Rep. Kreidt: (42:16) Has there been any discussion in regards to Long Term Care facilities?

A lot of them are already going to electronic medical records and there a lot of transfers from
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hospitals to nursing homes. How will they interface with the LTC facilities? They are
.spending a lot of money to get their records up to date.
Rep. Weisz: There was some discussion about that. That is where this Health Information
Technology office is to come into play. They will have to look at the whole picture. Every
player that has to deal with this needs to be part of the solution. The language is somewhat
unclear on the federal stimulus act.
Rep. Kreidt: The LTC facilities do deal with the Medicare and Medicaid side of it. There could
be some ramifications with those two entities.
Rep. Weisz: I'm not sure if the penalties apply to LTC facilities. It might, but | don’t think so.
Chr. Svedjan: We have the bill with the amendments as recommended by the Human Service
Committee. What are the wishes of the committee?
Rep. Kerzman moved a Do Pass on Engrossed Senate Bill 2332.
.iep. Onstad seconded the motion.
Rep. Skarphol: Is this the maximum amount of money that the state could be eligible to
receive?
Rep. Weisz: | don't believe so. There wasn't a dollar amount put on to these grants. You
have to apply.
Rep. Skarphol: We're not going to meet again until this deadline passes. We would be in
session after the 7:1 match. Does this give us an opportunity to get additional dollars at the 10
to 1 match?
Rep. Weisz: When it said the year 2010, it starts in October 2010 and goes to October 2011.
When we meet again, we would have time to still qualify for some of the 10:1 match.

Chr. Svedjan: A roll call vote will be taken on the motion for a Do Pass on SB 2332.

.de 20 Nay 3 Absent 2
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The motion carried.
.Representative Weisz will carry SB 2332.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2332, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman)
recommends DO PASS (20 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed SB 2332 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.
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Bill/Resolution No. SB 2332
Senate Human Services Committee
Check here for Conference Committee
Hearing Date: 04.23.09
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Minutes:
Chairman Dever Opened the conference committee on SB 2332. | understand that we have
house amendments but that some of the discussion goes beyond that. Maybe we should start
with what the house looked at.
Representative Weisz The bill as it came to the house had $500,000 and established a
’,__.working group to develop health information technology (HIT). Initially HS sent it out with
$250,000 just to keep the bill alive while we took a look at some of these issues. Once the
committee received info on the federal stimulus package we realized there isn’t any direct
money in the stimulus plan that is coming back for HIT. There was money available for HER,
etc. There is a possibility for grants on a 10-1 match and loans as part of the stimulus plan.
What the committee did is kept the $250,000 in to establish a HIT steering committee which is
funded by the governor and appointed by him and the state health officer. Then what we did is
put in 2.2M which can be leveraged for a total of 22M in federal stimulus grants. The
department of health would apply for the grant and then pass the grant of through the steering
committee who would then upon approval of the budget section, develop a criterion for who
gets the grants and how they will be disbursed. The language allows the health department to

ccept loans from the federal government even through the HIT program and then through
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Bill/Resolution No. 2332

Hearing Date: 04/23/2009

. approval, offer the loans. We put an emergency clause so that we can the committee started
and apply for the grant and get the process started. That way when the grants come, the
committee will be ready for it. We picked 2M based of the best estimates that we received.
They need about 48M and we wanted to provide roughly half of that. There is no way in this
biennium that we are able to give everyone 100%. We looked at starting out with 22M and they
will come back next session. We wanted to strike a balance as we don't know what all the
requirements will be at this point. There are also 7-1 grants available. We saw the danger of
handing a large check and all of it being used and then some. This provides a process. Spoke
about hospitals being unable to step up and pay for this particular program, the state has to
step up.

Chairman Dever The senate hasn’'t dealt with the stimulus dollars, have there been any

.urther updates with stimulus plan that may have affected your plans?

Representative Weisz | haven’t seen anything as far as even what the terms of the grant and

all that. | don't believe any of that has been established yet.

Chairman Dever What | have read is that there is money in the stimuius package for HIT. The

stimulus has to be spent.

Representative Weisz | think there is one clarification, when | first had the bill in our

committee we knew there was money available. We were not aware at that time that there

were match grants available—that is the reason we sent it out with just the $250,000 at that

time. Talked about the committee’s actions after they realized that there was more information

available

Senator J. Lee Thanked the house for their hard work. Introduced Lynette Dickson
.ynette Dickson Center for Rural Health and HIT steering committee member. See chart

attachment #1. Explained the chart.
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. Chairman Dever Are all the dollars you refer to here general fund dollars?
Dickson These three columns are.
Representative Skarphol In column two you talked about long term care. For this system to
be really functional, all aspects/parts of health care need to be involved. How do we get those
folks in the private clinics, etc. into the picture? Are we incorporating them into any aspects?
Are we able to?
Dickson This bill is a health system bill so any of these opportunities would be open as long
as the federal dollars can be used for those particular facilities. Extrapolated on the chart
Representative Skarphol | am assuming that the initial impetus of this is to get the rural
hospitals involved. Is that a correct assumption?
Dickson Yes, for the most part.

.iepresentative Skarphol So the majority of the loans in column one and two are primarily for
rural/small hospitals?
Dickson Primarily, yes. Keep in mind that rural hospitals have long term care facilities and
clinics. When they are connecting their facilities it might be more than just a hospital involved.
Chairman Dever Are pharmacies included in this?
Dickson We would include them yes. Spoke about the evolving process
Senator J. Lee | doubt this is an epiphany for anyone else but me but as | was thinking about
2333 and the difficulties local health units are having with administration of immunizations, this
is something they could be connected in with as well. This is something that might help them
set up those optional networks a little easier, everybody has to be in or this doesn't work.
Representative Weisz Does the program require a state match or can it be a hospital match.

.ickson With the language we've got, it's a state required match because you are writing a

grant not for individual facilities.
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. Representative Skarphol | don't think there is much of a question in any of our minds abou t
the importance of this. It is all in how to get it to work and how to get it to work right. | am here
to deal with the financing mechanism. We want to make this money available but not just give
it away. If the grants don't come through, we don’t have to have made an appropriation that is
just going to be sitting there either. | think the discussion is going to be about the mechanics of
this and who is going to manage this. | will certainly work on the financial aspect of this trying
to ensure that we have a mechanism that might be workable. Talked about some of the
questions he had about the program funding
Discussion about funding

Chairman Dever Suspended the discussion.
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Senator Dever called the conference committee on SB 2332 to order. All members were

present: Senator Dever, Senator J. Lee, Senator Robinson, Rep. Weisz, Rep. Skarphol,

and Rep. Homan.

Senator Dever said that at the last meeting they had talked about establishing a roadmap of
.where they wanted to go. The committee members all seemed to be headed in the same

direction.

Rep. Skarphol provided a proposed amendment .0206 for discussion. (Attachment #2)

Page 1 subsection 4 — “The health information technology office may approve........ " If there is

going to be a director should that director have some patrticipation in that decision. It might

need to be reworded a littie differently in that there would be a joint decision of the committee

and the director.

The committee agreed with that thought.

Senator J. Lee asked if he was thinking that maybe the director would make a

recommendation to the committee or executive committee.

Rep. Skarphol said just a joint decision. He would say the director would be the final person

ecause he would need to sign the paperwork.
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. He went on to explain that the idea of this amendment would be to create a fund somewhere to
the ITD fund that was in place at one time. That would be the mechanism. He suggested that
Rep. Weisz would like to speak to that.

Rep. Weisz said the original was to look at direct loan from the Bank of ND. The bank had
some real concerns with that from the standpoint that they are just going to be told to make a
loan which creates issues such as creditworthiness. That's when the discussion moved to
setting up a fund so that the monies are put into the fund and then it is allocated according to
the way it is set up — the technology office and steering committee. That way it's off the books
— it takes away from its capital assets because they are transferring it — it's not a loan. The
bank would administer it and would want some sort of a processing fee but it's not going to
show up as a loan on their books.

.:(ep. Robinson asked if there was a need in section 5 to provide for more structure in terms of
positioning the bank to approving applications and the criteria.
Rep. Skarphol referred to section 4 and said it would be the health information technology
office and the director that would make the decision qualifying the loan.
They then moved to page 2 of the amendment (meter 06:00)
He addressed section 2 subsection 1. There is some concern about having a specific number
of individuals — the nine reference. There may be a time where there is a need for a larger
group or a smaller group.
Senator J. Lee referred to the member list of the ND Health Information Technology Steering
Committee. (Attachment #3) She requested that they consider enlarging the number. The
people on this group represent a very diverse group. They have all worked hard on the task

.orce. If there is some way of enabling those people currently working in there to be

considered for membership, she would like to see them consider opening it up for them.
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. Rep. Weisz didn't think he would have a problem with just saying” these 3 specific and
individuals appointed by the Governor". Ultimately he’s going to be responsible for the
success or the failure of this group.

(Meter 08:30) Discussion continued on the number of members that could be needed and
leaving it up to the Governor.

Rep. Skarphol said another suggestion in subsection 2 was that they work collaboratively with
the HIT director to apply for federal grants. The director, again, should be the one signing the
application as opposed to the committee.

Rep. Holman, following up on the membership discussion, said one of the e-mails they got
added the words “not to exceed eighteen”. Leaving it open and trusting the Governor to do it
would not make it unworkable.

.?ep. Weisz had a concern. He thought the federal stimulus says it has to be a state entity.
The person applying for the federal fund has to be like the Department of Health, Dept. of
Human Services, or ITD. He didn't think the committee could apply for the fund. The intent
that came out of the House was that, and it didn’t have to be, but it was the Department of
Health who applied for the funds and then handed them over to the committee.

Rep. Skarphol suggested they move to section 3 and look at the language (meter 11:25).
Senator Dever said another question was whether they were a state agency — the committee.
There are references that read state agencies, boards, and commissions.

(Meter 12:30) Discussion followed that it needs to be appropriated to a state agency —ITD is a
state agency. They could appropriate to ITD who would then pass it on to the committee.

ITD would be responsible for monitoring everything. They would apply for the federal funds.

.er. Skarphol said there had been suggested language that should be added somewhere “to

facility the adoption and implementation of health information technology.”
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. Lynnette Dickson, Center for Rural Health, speaking on behalf of the HIT Steering Committee,
explained that language was just suggested as a better use of terms.
(Meter 14:35) Infrastructure was discussed. Lisa Feldner, ITD, was asked to take the podium
and tell the committee about the Health Alert Network.
Ms. Feldner explained that the Heaith Alert Network is connecting all the health care
institutions and is partly used by the health department. They are separate from the state
network.
Senator Robinson asked who governs that board and if there is any structure to it or if it is a
cooperative relationship where they come together because of common concerns & issues.
Jenny Witham, Dept. of Human Services, said the granting for it came from bioterrorism. It
was for a public health alert. The health network when they were first putting it in place was
‘bout natification to people who were going to be able to be in areas where they were safe
from potential outbreaks. It is a broad based group and the main focus is more about alerting
and reacting to a potential public health risk.
Rep. Skarphol asked if, in her mind; that network has the capability to handle the kind of
capacity that this is going to need.
Ms. Witham didn't think it would be a good match. She felt the backbone that is needed for a
health information exchange is going to be more focused on identifying the individual, resolving
whether or not this is the individual, focused on consent rights, and passing of information on
standardized transactions.
Rep. Skarphol said his point was that somehow this information is going to have to be
exchanged and it is going to have to be exchanged on somebody’s network. In the past, the
.egisiature has had issues whether or not they want that to be on the state network. That's

why this network was developed. He said they need to know who it is that the health
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. information technology committee is going to have to deal with in order to ensure the network
they are going to do this on has the capacity to deliver. It won't do any good to invest $40
million in a system developing facilities to be able to exchange information if there isn't a
system that it can be exchanged on. He said Ms. Feldner was correct — this system is on
DCN and it might have the capability but he wasn’t sure this group wanted to be responsible
for that network. When he talks about infrastructure, he is talking about that network.

Rep. Weisz asked if he was talking physical network.

Rep. Skarphol — yes.

Ms. Dickson said that with regard to developing where it is housed and the capacity that would
be some of the discussion of the advisory committee. There are already five work groups that
would come up with a plan with the CIO in the state and the ITD and the appropriate folks to

.igure out what they have and what they don’t and how that would fit into a potential plan to
apply for some of those dollars for the health information exchange. It will be assessing what
they have and what they can use.

Sen. Robinson said that Rep.Skarphol was right and that was a highly contentious issue. They
need to be sensitive to that so they get off to a good start. There will be those for which this
will be an immediate red flag. He said if they can keep that in mind and look at other options
they would be well served from the get go.

Rep. Skarphol said they would have to follow up with that. That is his concern about the word
“infrastructure” on page 2 subsection e. He didn’t think this group wanted to get into
infrastructure; they want merely to be the entity that plans and implements this. Let someone
else worry about transmitting.

"age 3 is the grant fund that would be created if grant monies were received.
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. Section § discussion took place (meter 22:30). Conversations with the Bank of North Dakota
have taken place.
Section 6 - Rep. Skarphol said there had been some discussion that whether the 250 is
enough. Some would like to see it at 350, hire a director and make it an unclassified position.
Senator Robinson asked if the various parties had a chance to review the set of amendments.
There was discussion that some of the various parties involved had a chance to review the
amendments and there was some broad acceptance providing some revisions talked about
were made.
Rep. Weisz was inclined to put more money into the loans. Because of information he had
received he thinks there will be more need for the money on the loan end than on the HIE end.
Rep. Skarphol said they had talked about a $6.5million loan program up front that they can
‘ccess today and start moving forward. He thought Rep. Weisz was saying it was more
appropriate to put a higher level of funding into the 5 to 1 loan grant and make them wait to
see if they got that before they move forward. If they don’t get that, committing $6.5 or
$8million to loans up front does commit you to completion of the project. It's a case of how
much risk they want to assume and when. (Meter 27:00)
Rep. Weisz said if they delay on the dollar part he didn’t think they delay the moving forward.
It's very important this committee gets up and running immediately. They can start looking at
the parameters of the requirements and the proposals. (Meter 27:45)
Rep. Skarphol asked for feedback from those parties in the room as to what the right position
is to take. (Meter 29:00).

The discussion on SB 2332 was adjourned for the day.

| .
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Senator Dever called the conference committee on SB 2332 to order. All members were

present.

Rep. Skarphol explained that they would be doing a combination of amendments .0209

(attachment #4) and .0210 (attachment #5). Jennifer Clark, LC, had been working on both of
.hese and he said they tried to clean up and give consistency throughout the amendments with

regard to the reference to the health information technology advisory committee. Previously it

has been a steering committee. In this bill it needs to be an advisory committee.

Version .0210 moves this entity from the health department to the Information Technology

Dept. He asked Jennifer Clark, LC, to walk through the amendments for the committee.

(Meter 03:40) Ms. Clark worked from the .0210 version which dealt with the substance versus

the fiscal components of .0209.

Section 1 creates a loan fund in the Bank of North Dakota. There is a continuing appropriation

so once the money is in they can start implementing it. Although the BND is administering this

they have to play by the rules established by the committee and the office.

Senator Robinson wanted clarification of subsection 2 in section 1. He wanted to know if the

P10 years to repay a loan was too long a period.
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.(Meter 06:00) Rep. Weisz replied that probably within four years they would get the
reimbursement under the depreciation that would cost the vast majority of this which is going
o pay it back.
Ms. Clark said the rationale for putting that in there was in information LC had initially
reviewed. There was a note that this program needed a 10 year payback. There could be a
federal provision.
Discussion followed that maybe it could say “not more than ten years” or “not to exceed ten
years’. |
Section 2 — Currently under section 23-01-31there is a ND HIT steering committee. Under 23 it
made it appropriate to call it a state dept. of health committee. This version differs in that it

) repeals that existing steering committee in 23 and replaced it with this language in section 2.

.This is being put in ITD so now it is more appropriate to have ITD provide the administrative
services for that committee. She went on to explain that the appointment process is still very
similar to what it was under title 23.
Rep. Skarphol said the language is similar to that used for CJIS.
(Meter 12:10) Section 3 — This creates a new office in ITD to help information technology
office. The office is charged with the duty to apply for federal funds under “a”, establishing a
loan program under “b" and the grant program under “c”.
Senator Robinson wanted to know what the intent is if the criteria is in “d".
Ms. Clark’'s understanding was that the rationale was when talking about the loan program
under sect. 1 of the amendments the framework is laid out there. However, this office will be
applying for federal funds and some of the requirements for that application are not known yet.

.’ar‘t of that is going to be the application and criteria.
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-.(Meter 15.:20) Section 4 — The grant program. The Health Information Technology office shall
administer this fund and shall distribute monies in the fund accordingly.
Attachment #6 was information distributed by Senator J. Lee with points connecting with what
the nationai criteria are. This might be the spot to see whether or not there is a need to plug in
any language that reflects these points (meter 16:50).

| Section 5 is the repeal for the existing steering committee.
(Meter 17:50) A comparison of the .0209 and .0210 versions of the section on report took
place. Rep. Skarphol thought they would prefer the report go to the budget section. He wasn't
sure there would be a budget section on human services but if there is that would be a good
place to report as well. A suggestion to report to both was made by Senator J. Lee. She felt
two copies of the report being provided could be helpful. Rep. Skarphoi said the report could
‘o to LC and then direct LC to distribute to those appropriate entities.
(Meter 20:10) Discussion moved to the .0209 version to talk about the appropriation clauses.
Rep. Weisz explained section 8 would set up a fund very much like they did with ITD dollars.
BND will set up a fund which will transfer a total of $8 million from the profits out of the BND
into this fund. $6 million of the fund will be used for the match for the federal revolving loan
fund. $2 million will go to the 10 to 1 match for HIE (section 10).
(Meter 22:15) Section 9 is $350,000 which will go for the director and the expenses of the
advisory committee. This was bumped up from $250,000. The language still says steering
committee and will need to be changed to say advisory committee.
Rep. Skarphol stated that the change in .0209 was because of some level of discomfort at the
bank with the initial $6 and a half million loan funds and unwillingness of leadership to just fund
.hat. He thinks the intent is to increase the amount of money available for this loan fund so if

they get the grant they will have $36 million to loan to whatever number of entities. It will delay
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.the implementation to some extent but it will ensure they will have more adequate dollars
available if and when they get the grant.
Rep. Weisz pointed out that the committee is critical and the time between now when they start
and, say, Jan. 1 when the grant applications are supposed to be done is going to be needed
and necessary to make sure that they have a state plan in effect.
Senator J. Lee pointed out that hospitals aren't the only ones who are going to make use of
these funds. She had a concern with not having the funds available earlier.
{(Meter 29:30) Rep. Skarphol spoke about the current scenario, the 5 to 1 money dollars that
would become available for the loans is not eligible to be utilized to repay an earlier loan.
What if that changes? He asked if it was conceivable to put language in that would allow the
BND to loan that money if the rules change. It might give some flexibility.

.(Meter 31:00) Discussion about this continued that the bank should he consuited.
Sen. Robinson said they had come a long way with the amendments and was pretty
impressed with them but there are some issues and thought maybe one more meeting could
resolve those issues.
(Meter 34:00) Section 10 — Appropriations Rep. Weisz asked if the committee was at least
comfortable with that portion.
Senator J. Lee said she was not comfortable making a commitment on anything until what the
stakeholders might have to say about what their review of the amendments might be. They
are the persons who will be working with if.
Senator Dever suggested they hear from anybody that could not be at the next meeting.
Craig Hewitt, Meritcare Health System, was recognized by Senator Dever. He said the federal

.tandards in the stimulus act are moving targets. One thing is clear — there is a certain set of

money that the nationat coordinator is responsible for allocating to the states. The qualification
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.to that is that any of the funds need to comply to the strategic plan as set forth by the national
coordinator who has ninety days to put that together from the signing of the bill. He suggested
that this should be a requirement that it ties to the strategic plan as set forth by the national
coordinator. That way anything done here is protected.
He was aiso concerned about the amount of funds we assume we will get through grants.
Rep. Skarphol asked what he thought a realistic number would be for our expectations for the
5 to 1 and the 10 to 1 match.
Mr. Hewitt said there is nothing wrong with the amount put in but cautioned them not to
assume they would get the automatic match. He also said that continuing on with the
suggested timelines as quickly as possible is the right way to go (meter 40:00).
Rep. Skarphol asked if there is a potential for the match to change.
.Vlr. Hewitt replied that it is “up to”. There is no guarantee that says “just because you are
approved....”
He said the grant portion looked somewhat arbitrary.
(Meter 40:20) Mr. Hewitt talked about the phases of the electronic health record adoption -
the final phase being the transfer of patient information to another facility.
Rep. Skarpho! asked him what he would suggest they should do with regard to this if this was
a perfect world.
Mr. Hewitt replied that he suggest having a multi pronged approach with having a loan
program available as just an option in case the grants or loans don't come through from the
feds. Continue on with what you've put together regarding the loans around the HR and health
information exchange. He was less concerned about the big systems; the rurals is where the
.ssues are. Those are the ones he thinks are going to get hurt with the requirement to do the

electronic health record and do information exchange. They won't be able to afford it.
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.(Meter 44:00) Senator J. Lee put a face on this with examples of evacuating flood victims and
sending records with them.

Nancy Willis, St. Alexis Medical Center (meter 46:10) echoed comments by Mr. Hewitt but did
have one thing to clarify. St. Alexis Medical Center actually created their own electronic
health record. Itis not CCHIT certified and they don’t know how long it will take to get certified
but they don't feel they will be certified in time to take advantage of the Medicare incentives.
She asked if, on version .0209, they didn't' receive the grants if the dollars would still be
available to the providers to be accessible for loan fund or if this is to be used only for
matching funds (meter 47:50).

Rep. Weisz said that as the language is currently it would not be available. It's only to be used
to match the federal.

.\As. Willis said that would be a concern. They would still be required to be certified or they
would start getting penalized.

Rep. Skarphol said that, based on what they had heard today, they might need additional
discussions about the whole financing package. The language put together by Jennifer with
regard to the policy and configuration was pretty well worked through.

Ms. Clark commented on the discussion on the state as well as federal requirements.
Technically it is a little challenging to make a requirement in state law based upon something
that doesn'’t exist yet. She hesitated recommending putting it in statute. That's why
appropriations bills have legislative intent language (meter 50:05).

Both sides agreed to talk to their leadership about financial commitment and then meet again.

The committee was adjourned for the day.
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Minutes:
Senator Dever brought the conference committee on SB 2332 to order with ali members
present.
The version .0211 amendments (attachment #7) was a combination of versions .0209 and
.0210.

he committee was pretty much in agreement in terms of timelines and basic layout. The
money seemed to be the issue — how to allocate the loans/grants and when and how much.
Rep. Skarphol thought the policy issues were pretty well resolved.
Rep. Weisz had a question for Jennifer Clark from LC dealing with adding language that had to
do with the national standards. He wondered where it was.
Jennifer Clark, LC, explained that language is on page 3 sub d.
She went on to explain that two things had come to her attention when she reviewed this
version: On page 1 under the loan fund — the purposes were expanded a little but it isn't as
broad as it sounds (meter 03:15). As long as the language is in the section that is just broad
enough for the HIT office to direct the bank to do it they are ok. They don’t mind issuing a loan

that may be to pay for some services already received as long as they are within the scope of
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. what they are supposed to be for. To be consistent, they probably should make a similar
change in the language for the HIT office on page 3 sub ¢.
She said if they want to allow the office to provide these services directly, section 4 should
probably be clarified for consistency sake.
Rep. Skarphol said there is another change he would like to discuss dealing with the money.
(Meter 06:15) He said they had limited the capabilities of the utilization of dollars for a
particular aspect of the ratios of sharing. He thought it would be appropriate to give them the
flexibility to utilize what portion they think they need in which category by a mere report to the
budget section as to their intentions.
Discussion then followed on section 7 of the bill, combining the grants and loans to make an
$8 million appropriation for the purpose of the grants and the loans and then let the HIT office
.pply for the federal funds (meter 09:00). Rep. Skarphol said he would probably try to state it
based on current federal rules because the rules are probably going to be changing. His side
agreed with the philosophy that they are given that flexibility.
Ms. Clark - as long as they aren’t talking about the report to the budget section being approval
for them to go forward. They have their periodic reports so as those decisions are made that
information will come forward.
Removal of section 9 would almost be necessary. It says that the $2 million is designed for the
10-1 match. That change would have to be made all the way through if that is what they
decided to do.
Sen. Robinson said for this purpose a report to the budget section would suffice. Seeking
approval slows the process down.

‘enator J. Lee felt it was important to do that flexibility and the report is the right idea.
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. (Meter 10:50) She wanted to address some questions brought up when she asked Lynnette
Dickson to review it. Rep. Weisz explained why the upfront was taken out.
Senator J. Lee felt it was a big mistake to not permit some movement forward. She didn't
understand why a low interest loan wouldn't be something that would be an important thing.
She didn't think it would take 6-8 months to move forward and felt there has to be some state
safety net for this program.
Rep. Skarphol agreed that it wouldn't take a long time for the committee to get active. Until the
rules get firmed up there's not a lot they can officially do other than ask the players to begin to
think through the process. (Meter 15:40)
Senator J. Lee provided the committee with information that she had requested from Ms.
Dickson (attachment #8). She wanted to know where they were standing compared to where

.hey thought they were a couple of meetings back.
(Meter 19:40) Rep. Skarphol thought the first four listed were most critical and the total needed
was $44,500,000. If you took the entire $8 million at a 5 to 1 match you would have 48 million
dollars. Senator J. Lee submitted that the local public health units are also very important and
would make it the top five. It is the understanding that they would gualify in the same way as a
health care provider would and they have an equal need.
(Meter 21:00) Senator J. Lee gave more examples of how all these bills are not independent of
one another.
Senator Robinson made a point that Mr. Hewitt's comment was valid in that the large systems
will find a way to make at least some progress. There is a real question whether the rural
hospitals will make much if any progress — not only financial resources but aiso the human

.E‘SOUFCBS.

Rep. Skarphol again went back to the numbers and the 5-1 match.
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. Rep. Weisz — you’re not putting any into HIE.

Rep. Skarphol — by the time we come back in 2011, if they’'ve invested $48 million, he would
maintain they've made substantial movement forward to achieving “meaningful user status”
and would be much more ready to make more immediate progress with an investment in 2011.
Senator J. Lee — what happens if we don't get any of that money? Is this the best format in
which we can lay this out so that people can start doing what they have to do? Are we going
to be able to make an adequate step forward during the next biennium with what we've done
here?
Rep. Skarphol — explained that with the experience he’s had with information technology his
instinct would be that maybe 5% of the hospitals are ready to do this and have the knowledge
to move forward. There's a lot of work that needs to be done to get them to the point where it

.vould even be wise for them to think about borrowing money. What doesn’t need to happen
are failures but we do need to ensure that everyone is successful.
Senator Robinson asked if there is a set of conditions that they could put forth that, if met,
would allow some comfort in a trigger sometime down the road to buy some time for us and
also position our facilities to move. (Meter 27:00)
Rep. Skarphol had thought about that. An end of the year trigger — if we had 50million in
excess revenue projections fine but, at the end of the year, they should have some sense
whether or not they are going to be successful here. If they are successful, what do we need
to do because they have $48 million if they get the 5-1 match and utilize the full 8. If they

utilize the full 8 he thinks it would be extremely difficult for them to invest that wisely between

the end of this year and the next legislative session. He was trying to be realistic and wanted

.veryone to be successful.
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. Senator Dever asked if he understood correctly that the amounts and the way they are
structured in the bill now, as far as appropriations, is what Rep. Skarphol feels comfortable
with.

Rep. Skarphol replied that with the amendments he suggested giving them the flexibility to use
any of the dollars for whichever purpose they want, they would have, in essence, 48 million
dollars if they get the 5-1 grant to fully funded. If the feds do not deliver he did not believe they
can start to penalize. He felt everything could come together and work if they were just
patient. (Meter 30:50)

Rep. Weisz said his comments when he talked about the timeline weren’t meant to imply that
the committee wouldn’t necessarily be up to speed right away. The technical requirements
and all the other issues that are going to make for that RFP are going to be extremely difficult

.0 resolve. That takes time. For this to be successful it's the preplanning that's going to make

the difference.
They are looking at a broad spectrum of players that have to come on board to make this fit.
From a timeline he feels starting in January is plenty soon.
Senator J. Lee said she needed some consultation time on this. She also suggested asking
one of the stakeholders if they have a response to what the proposal is to get their perspective
on how this might work - to answer concerns about the time and the discussion about the
early loans.
Nancy Willis, St. Alexis Medical Center, said there is confusion between terms HIE and HIT. In
the language in the stimulus package the loan fund is for providers to move toward an EHR, an
electronic health record (meter 35:46). She talked about the “meaningful use” of the EMR and

.xplained how a facility who currently has nothing now, if there is money now in a loan pool,
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.could borrow money, buy a product and start using it in a meaningful way before they are
completely electronic.
She also felt if there is the ability to access dollars ahead of time they could work together with
other facilities (meter 37:50).
The other concern they had is that 2011 is actually the federal fiscal year which starts
Oct. 1, 2010. ltis their understanding that facilities or providers could already start applying for
incentives in January 2010. She didn’t feel they had the time they think they do to wait for the
federal stimulus dollars.
(Meter 39:09) Discussion followed on the federal fiscal year 2011. Rep. Skarphol submitted
that they could have money on the table in a very short time if they come back to session in
2011 and there is an immediate need.

.3\ chart from the American Hospital Association was referenced by Rep. Weisz. He said it
didn't show any reduction to 2013 on the incentives (meter 40:10).
Rep. Skarphol asked a question relating to getting software and becoming a user of it
immediately. He wanted to know if anybody was aware of or had any exposure to the
products and if it is user friendly or if it takes some degree of implementation. He pointed out
the difficulty higher education had implementing a software program.
Lynette Dickson, Center for Rural Health, said they just finished an eighteen month project
which she was the co-director of — putting in electronic health records in Park River, Cavalier,
and Northwood. It is absolutely a challenge but it is realistic to get it done in these facilities if
they want it to be done and if they have some funding. (Meter 45:11) She talked about the

challenges but felt they shouldn’t wait. Some facilities have done the work and are more than

.iiling to step up and help.
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_. (Meter 48:00) Rep. Weisz asked for clarification on the Medicare incentive. Discussion

followed that it applies to critical access hospitals.
Chip Thomas said that if you talk about reimbursement you talk about two different kinds of
hospitais — critical access which is paid on cost and PPS hospitals which are paid on a fixed
fee. (Meter 49:15) He went on to explain them in more detail. Then he tatked about the
incentive for the critical access hospital being twofold — when they start relative to when they
can get their cost recovered. The sooner they are in line and able to make the program work
for them beginning Oct. 1, 2010 they get an additional enhancement on their depreciation
payment. If they start before that they get the depreciation but without the enhancement. The
PPS is different. They get an incentive based on a percentage of their discharges that are
associated with Medicare. It's an add on. The PPS have the biggest incentive to be compliant

‘nd all six will be in the five year pericd (meter 51:20).

| Senator J. Lee asked if he saw a benefit to the hospitals if, in the flexibility, they included the
potential for earlier loans.
Mr. Thomas said if they would have made a commitment to be compliant the answer would be
yes. The problem is, the lenders would not loan to the group of facilities that would be eligible
for the loan for the reimbursement based on depreciation.

The conference committee meeting was adjourned for the day.
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Minutes:

Senator Dever opened the conference committee meeting on SB 2332. All members were

present.

The committee is now looking at version .0213 (attachment #10).

Rep. Skarphol reported that after the last meeting and all of the conversations about needing
.some potential loan money they made a decision to make some potential early loan money

available. He emphasized it was potential because there are some caveats that need to be

met in order for it to happen. Those changes show on pages 4-5 of the amendment.

Section 9 is the major portion where it talks about the contingent appropriation. The office of

management and budget has to indicate there is a demonstrated need for these loan dollars

and a specific amount needs to be requested.

Page 4 subsection e talks about some of the things that need to happen. |t is designed to try

to make sure whatever entity is getting a loan has at least done some preparatory work.

Rep. Skarphol moved that the house recede from its amendments and adopt amendment

.0213. The motion was seconded by Rep. Weisz.

Rep. Skarphol reported that the concerns from Jennifer Clark, LC, had been addressed in

ese amendments.
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N
. Senator Dever asked if the dollars in section 11 are the same dollars that are in section 8.
Rep. Skarphol said there will be 13 million dollars available. The first 5 would be the loan
dollars, the contingent Bank of ND transfer. If there is a demonstrated need for all of that there
could be 5 million dollars available at the end of the first quarter.
The second change in the money is that 8 million dollars was provided - as opposed to the
previous draft of 6 and 2 — and gives total flexibility as to how the 8 will be utilized
(meter 05:20).
Senator Dever asked for clarification that the 8 million dollars in section 8 is the same as in
section 11.
Rep. Skarphol - said that was correct.
Senator J. Lee — Section 2 is new and lays out how the loan fund would work and she didn't
.ave a concern with it. She was interested in seeing what the dollars might be in section & and
if they might see some potential to moving it up three months and opening it up for discussion.
Rep. Skarphol said the 22 and a half million was selected after consultation with the Office of
Management and Budget. That is not a number that is intended to try to make it impossible to
achieve but rather a realistic goal. The real issue is that you are transferring money from the
Bank of ND that they may or may not have available. They may not have earned 5 million
dollars in that three months. It comes out of Bank of ND earnings.
Senator J. Lee said that if we see we will have a significant ending fund balance there we
should just appropriate it from the general fund instead of pulling it out of the Bank of ND.
Rep. Skarphol said there wasn't a willingness on the House side to do that.
Senator J. Lee said this is a terribly important program and she recognized they have some
.hallenges to meet. She said she had a hard time understanding why they wouldn't consider

the possibility of ending June 30, for example, and appropriating from the general fund. She
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. didn’t think they should have to rely on whether or not they can pull any more dollars out of the
BND when the money is there. She asked to hear from someone who had information on
whether it is likely the money will be there and what the situation is likely to be June 30 and
Sept. 30 recognizing the projections.

Allen Knudson, LC, said there is no way of knowing if they will be over or under at this point.
Senator J. Lee asked what is going on now as far as compared to projections and what is
really there. Not just for the BND but for what there is now for potential general funds.

Mr. Knudson (meter 10:30) replied that they haven't received the latest budget collections
report from OMB. Through Feb. collections were coming in above forecast.

Senator J. Lee said she would like to have a discussion on whether or not a portion of that
could be appropriated from general fund with the balance coming from the BND after that if the

‘ank isn't likely to earn that money before that time.

Rep. Skarphol asked Mr. Knudson to tell the committee what is going on with the spending in
this session with regard to ongoing spending versus what is anticipated to be ongoing revenue.
Mr. Knudson answered that we are in the negative (meter 11:55).

Rep. Skarphol said that is one of the problems on the House side. The other problem is that
they need to ensure the people who want to borrow the money to do this are ready to do what
needs to be done. He pointed out that they aren’t ready to go back to the days when they had
a lot of IT project failures and a lot of money spent that wasn't appropriate at the time.

Rep. Weisz didn’t think they would be ready prior to Sept. 30, 2009. Timing wise he would feel
more comfortable if he knew they were ready to go (meter 13:40).

Senator Dever - This says “based on legislative estimates made at the close of the 2009

.-egislative session”. Are legislative estimates the same as OMB estimates?
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. Mr. Knudson said what it's going to be is the legislative forecast that was adopted by the
appropriations committees in February and then adjusted by all of the legislation approved
during the session that affects those revenue numbers. OMB would take those numbers and
do their projections for the biennium.

Rep. Skarphol said it's a number that's agreed on by both of the appropriations committees
and leadership and is endorsed in committee.

Senator Dever asked if that would be conservative.

Rep. Skarphol — in this case it was reduced from what OMB’s number was.

Senator J. Lee pointed out that this is a onetime investment, because of the stimulus money, in
trying to get these systems up and running. This isn't ongoing spending.

The roll call vote was taken on the motion of the house recede from the house amendments

’nd adopts amendments .0213. The motion passed 6-0-0.

Senate Carrier — Senator J. Lee

House Carrier — Rep. Weisz
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That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2332 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bilfl with "for an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 and three new sections to chapter 54-59 of the
North Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North Dakota loan funds for health
information technology, the creation of a health information technology advisory
committee and a health information technology office, and to health information
exchange grants; to repeal section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to the North Dakota health information technology steering committee; to provide an
appropriation; to provide for transfers; to provide for a report to the budget section and
the legislative council; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health informatlon technology loan fund - Appropriation.

1. The health information technology loan fund is established in the Bank for
the purpose of providing loans to health care providers to purchase and
upgrade electronic health record technology, train personnel in its use.
improve security of information exchange, and for other purposes as
established by the health information technology office, in collaboration
with the health information technology advisory committee. This fund is a
revolving loan fund. All moneys transferred into the fund, interest upon
moneys in the fund, and collections of interest and principal on loans made
from the fund are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall make loans from this fund to health care providers as

approved by the health information technology office director, in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory committee, in
accordance with the criteria established by the health information
technology office director under section 4 of this Act. A loan made under
this fund must be repayable over a period that may not exceed ten years.

The Bank shall administer the health information technology loan fund.
Funds in the loan fund may be used for loans as provided under this
section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank may
deduct a service fee for administering the revolving_loan fund maintained

under this section.

[

o

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health
information technology office. The health information technology office
director, in coilaboration with the health information technology advisory
commitiee, may approve the application of a qualified applicant that meets

the criteria established by the health information technology office director.

The health information technology office shall forward approved
applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the

Bank shall make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under
this section.

e
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The Bank may do all acts necessary to negotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and to
bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revolving loan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans under

. this section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan of funds

from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may take a
subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the reveolving

loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees and o
effect a redemption.

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technology planning loan fund - Appropriation.

1. The health information technology planning loan fund is established in the
Bank for the purpose of providing low-interest loans to health care entities

to assist those entities in improving health information technology
infrastructure. This fund is a revolving loan fund. All moneys transferred
into the fund, interest upon moneys in the fund, and collections of interest
and principal on loans made from the fund are appropriated for
disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shail make loans from this fund to health care entities as
approved by the health information technology office director, in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory committee, in
accordance with the criteria established by the health information

technology director under section 4 of this Act.

The Bank shall administer the health information technology planning loan
. fund. Funds in the loan fund may be used for loans as provided under this

(B

|

section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank may
deduct g service fee for administering the revolving loan fund maintained

under this section.

|+

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health
information technology office. The health information technology office
director, in collaboration with the health information technology advisory
committee, may approve the application of a qualified applicant that meets

the criteria established by the health information technology office director.
The health information technology office shall forward approved

applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the
Bank shall make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under
this section.

il

The Bank may do all acts necessary to neqotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary. to exercise any right of redemption, and to

bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revolving loan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans under

this section. If the applicant’s plan for financing provides for a loan of funds
from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may make a
loan subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the
revolving toan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees
and to effect a redemption.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
. is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology advisory commitiee - Dutles.
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The health information technology advisdm committes consists of the state
chief information officer or the chief information officer's designee, the state

health officer or the state heaith officer's designee, the governor or the
governor's designese, the executive director of the department of human

services or the executive director's designee, and individuals appointed by
the governor and the state health officer to represent a broad range of
public and private health information technology stakeholders.

The health information technology advisory committee shall collaborate
with and make recommendations to the health information technology
office, as provided under sections 1, 2, 4, and 5 of this Act.

As requested by the health information technology advisory committee, the

department shall provide or arrange for administrative services to assist the
heaith information technology advisory committee.

The health information technology advisory committee may employ an
exacutive director who serves at the pleasure of and under the direct
supervision of the health information technology advisory committee. The
executive director may employ personnel as necessary for the
administration_of this section.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology office - Dutles - Loan and grant programs.

1.

P

The health information technology office is created in the department. The
health information technology advisory committee shall make
recommendations to the health information technology office for
implementing a statewide interoperable health information infrastructure
that is consistent with emerging national standards; promote the adoption
and use of electronic health records and other health information
technologies: and promote interoperability of health information systems for
the purpose of improving health care quality, patient safety, and the overall
efficiency of health care and public health services.

The health information technology office director, in ¢coilaboration with the
health information technology advisory committee, shall:

a. Apply for federal funds that may be availabie to assist the state and
health care providers in implementing and improving health
information technology.

(s

Establish a health information technology loan program to provide
loans to health care providers for the purpose of purchasing and
upgrading certified electronic health record technology, training
personnel in the use of such technology, and improving the secure
electronic exchange of heatlth information, and for any other purpose
under section 1 of this Act.

Establish a health information technology planning loan program to
provide low-interest loans to health care entities to assist those
entities in improving their health information technology infrastructure
under section 2 of this Act.

1o

|2

Facilitate and expand electronic health informatien exchange in the
state, directly or by awarding grants.

Page No. 3 90048.0214
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Establish an application process and eligibility criteria for and accept
and process applications for loans and grants under subdivisions b, ¢,

and d. The sligibility criteria must be consistent with federal
requirements associated with federal funds received under

subdivision a. The eligibility criteria for loans under subdivision ¢ must
include a requirement that the recipient's approved health information
technology be strateqically atigned with the state's health information
technology plan and the associated federal standards and that the
recipient has passed an onsite electronic medical record readiness
assessment conducted by an assessment team determined by the
heaith information technology advisory committee and the health
information technology office director.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health informatlon technology office - Electronic health Information
exchange fund.

1. Thers is created an electronic health information exchange fund. The fund
consists of moneys deposited in the fund from federal or other sources or
moneys transferred into the fund as directed by the legislative assembly.

The health information technology office shall administer this fund and shall
distribute moneys in the fund accordingly. The moneys in the fund must be

used to facilitate and expand slectronic health information exchange.

Moneys in the fund may be used, subject to legislative appropriations, to

provide services directly, for grants as provided under this section, and for
the costs of administration of the fund.

A grant applicant shall submit an application to the health information

technology office, which shall determine the applicant's eligibility based
upon criteria established by the health information technology office

director in collaboration with the health information technology advisory
committee.

[~

|

This section does not create an entitlement to any funds available for
grants under this section. The health information technology office may

award these grants to the extent funds are available and, within the office's
discretion, to the extent such applications are approved.

SECTION 6. REPEAL. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code is
repealed.

SECTION 7. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND HEALTH
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE - REPORT TO
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL AND BUDGET SECTION. During the 2009-10 interim, the
health information technology office and health information technology advisory
committee shall provide periodic reports to the legislative council and the budget section
on the status of health information technology activities.

SECTION 8. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the health information technology office
director, up to $8,000,000 from the current earnings and the accumulated undivided
profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the health information technology loan fund to
meset any required match for federal funds or to the eilectronic health information
exchange fund to meet any required match for federal funds or as directed, a portion to
both funds to meet any required match for federal funds. The health information
technology office director shall request fund transfers from the Bank only as necessary
to comply with federal requirements and to meet cash flow needs of the funds.

Page No. 4 90948.0214
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SECTION 9. CONTINGENT BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFER. f 27
actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2009, through September 30, 2009,
exceed estimated general fund revenues for that period by at least $22,500,000, as
determined by the office of management and budget, based on the legislative estimates
made at the close of the 2009 legisiative session and upon certification by the health
information technology office director to the director of the office of management and
budget of a demonstrated need for health information technology planning loans, the
industrial commission shall transfer, as requested by the health information technology
office director, up to $5,000,000 from the current earnings and the accumulated
undivided profits of the Bank of North Daketa to the health information technology
planning loan fund, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

The health information technology office director shall request transfers from the Bank
only as necessary to meet cash flow needs of the fund.

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $350,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology department
for the purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology advisory
committee and the health information technology office, for the period beginning with
the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 11. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the electronic health information exchange fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$88,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, including up to $80,000,000
of federal funds deposited in the fund from the federal American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 to the information technology department for the purposes
established under section 5 of this Act, for the period beginning with the effective date
of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 12. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.”

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
SB 2332, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Dever, J. Lee, Robinson and
Reps. Weisz, Skarphoi, Holman) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the
House amendments on SJ pages 1258-1260, adopt amendments as follows, and place
SB 2332 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2332 be amended as follows:

Page 1, fine 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 and three new sections to chapter 54-59 of the
North Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North Dakota loan funds for health
information technology, the creation of a health information technology advisory
committee and a health information technology office, and to health information
exchange grants; to repeal section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the North Dakota health information technology steering committee; to
provide an appropriation; to provide for transfers; to provide for a report to the budget
section and the legislative council; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technology loan fund - Appropriation.

1. The health information technology loan fund is established in the Bank for
the purpose of providing loans to health care providers to purchase and
upgrade electronic health record _technology, train personnel in its use,
improve security of information exchange, and for other purposes as
established by the health _information technology office, in collabaration
with the health information technology advisory committee. This fund is a
revolving loan fund. All moneys transferred into the fund, interest upon
moneys in the fund, and collections of interest and principal on loans made
from the fund are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall make loans from this fund to health care providers as
approved by the health information technology office director, _in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory committee, in
accordance with the criteria established by the health information
technology office director under section 4 of this Act. A loan made under
this fund must be repayable over a period that may not exceed ten years.

o

|<2

The Bank shall administer the health information technology loan fund.
Funds in the lpan fund may be used for loans as provided under this
section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank
may deduct a service fee for administering the revolving loan fund
maintained under this section.

|

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health
information technology office. The health information technology office
director, in _collaboration_with the health information technology advisory
commitiee, may approve the application of a qualified applicant that meets
the criteria established by the health information technology office director.
The health information technology office shall forward approved

applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank,
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the Bank shall make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided
under this section.

The Bank may do all acts necessary to negotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and to
bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revolving loan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans
under this section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan
of funds from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may
take a subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the
revolving loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees
and to effect a redemption.

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technology ptanning loan fund - Appropriation.

1

i

oo

|

|

The health information technology planning loan fund is established in the
Bank for the purpose of providing low-interest loans to health care entities
to__assist those entities in _improving health information technology
infrastructure. This fund is a revolving loan fund. All moneys transferred
into the fund, interest upon moneys in the fund, and collections of interest
and principal on loans made from the fund are appropriated for
disbursement acceording to this section.

The Bank shali make loans from this fund to health care entities as
approved by the health information technology office director, in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory committee, in
accordance with the criteria established by the health information
technology director under section 4 of this Act.

The Bank shall administer the health information technology planning loan
fund. Funds in the loan fund may be used for loans as provided under this
section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank
may deduct a service fee for administering the revoiving loan fund
maintained under this section.

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health
information technology office. The health information technology office
director, in c¢collaboration with the health information technology advisory
committee, may approve the application of a qualified applicant that meets
the criteria established by the health information technology office director.
The health information technology office shall forward approved
applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank,
the Bank shall make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided
under this section.

The Bank may do all acts necessary o neqgofiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and to
bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revolving loan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans
under this section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan
of funds from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may
make a loan subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the
revolving loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees
and to effect a redemption.
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SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technology advisory committee - Duties.

1.

N

|2

|~

The health information technology advisory committee consists of the state
chief information officer or the chief information officer's designee, the

state health officer or the state health officer's designee, the governor or
the governor's designee, the executive director of the depariment of
human services or the executive director's designee, and individuals

appointed by the governor and the state health officer to represent a broad
range of public and private health information technology stakeholders.

The health information technology advisory committee_shall_collaborate
with and make recommendations to the health information technology
office, as provided under sections 1, 2, 4, and 5 of this Act.

As requested by the health information technology advisory committee, the
department shall provide or arrange for administrative services to assist
the health information technology advisory committee.

The health information technology advisory committee may employ an
executive director who serves at the pleasure of and under the direct
supervision of the health information technology advisory committee. The
executive director may employ personnel as necessary for the
administration of this section.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as foliows:

Health information technoelogy office - Duties - Loan and grant programs.

1.

[n

The health information technology office is created in the department. The
health information technology advisory committee shall make
recommendations to the health information technology office for
implementing_a statewide interoperable health information infrastructure
that is consistent with emerging national standards:; promote the adoption
and use of electronic health records and other health__information
technologies; and promote interoperability of heaith information systems
for the purpose of improving health care quality, patient safety, and the

overall efficiency of health care and public health services.

The health information technology office director, in collaboration with the
health information technology advisory committee, shall:

a. Apply for federal funds that may be available to assist the state and
health care providers in implementing and improving health
information technology.

Establish a health information technology loan program to provide
loans to health care providers for the purpose of purchasing and
uparading certified electronic _health record technology, training
personnel in the use of such technology, and improving the secure
electronic exchange of health_information, and for any other purpose
under section 1 of this Act.

(=3
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¢. Establish a health information technology planning loan program to
provide low-interest loans to health care entities to assist those
entities in improving their health information technology infrastructure
under section 2 of this Act.

d. Facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange in the
state, directly or by awarding grants.
e. Establish an application process and eligibility criteria for and accept

and process applications for loans and grants under subdivisions b, c,
and d. The eligibility criteria _must be consistent with federal
requirements associated with federal funds received under
subdivision a. The eligibility criteria for loans under subdivision ¢
must include a requirement that the recipient's approved health
information technology be strateqgically aligned with the state's health
information technology plan and the associated federal standards and
that the recipient has passed an onsite electronic medical record
readiness assessment conducted by an assessment team
determined by the health information technology advisory committee
and the health information technology office director.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technology office - Electronic health information

exchange fund.

1.

o

|0

There is created an electronic health information exchange fund. The fund
consisis of moneys deposited in the fund from federal or other sources or
moneys transferred into the fund as directed by the leqgislative assembly.
The health information technology office shall administer this fund and
shall distribute moneys in the fund accordingly. The moneys in the fund
must be used to facilitate and expand_electronic health information
exchange. Moneys in the fund may be used, subject to legislative
appropriations, 1o provide services directly. for grants as provided under
this section, and for the costs of administration of the fund.

A grant applicant shall submit an application to the health information
technology office, which shall_determine the applicant's eligibility based
upon_criteria established by the health information technology office
director in collaboration with_the health_information technology advisory
committee.

This section does not create an entitement to any funds available for
grants _under this section. The heaith information technology office may
award these grants to the extent funds are available and, within the office's
discretion, to the extent such applications are approved.

SECTION 6. REPEAL. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code is

repealed.

SECTION 7. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND
HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE - REPORT TO
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL AND BUDGET SECTION. During the 2009-10 interim, the
health information technology office and health information technology advisory
committee shall provide periodic reports to the legislative council and the budget
section on the status of health information technology activities.

{2} DESK, {2) COMM
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. SECTION 8. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the health information technology office
director, up to $8,000,000 from the current earnings and the accumulated undivided
profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the health information technology loan fund to
meet any required match for federal funds or to the electronic health information
exchange fund to meet any required match for federal funds or as directed, a portion to
both funds to meet any required match for federal funds. The health information
technology office director shall request fund transfers from the Bank only as necessary
to comply with federal requirements and to meet cash flow needs of the funds.

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFER. If
actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2009, through September 30, 2009,
exceed estimated general fund revenues for that period by at least $22,500,000, as
determined by the office of management and budget, based on the legislative
estimates made at the close of the 2009 legislative session and upon certification by
the health information technology office director to the director of the office of
management and budget of a demonstrated need for health information technology
planning loans, the industrial commission shall transfer, as requested by the health
information technology office director, up to $5,000,000 from the current earnings and
the accumulated undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the health information
technology planning loan fund, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending
June 30, 2011. The health information technology office director shall request transfers
from the Bank only as necessary to meet cash flow needs of the fund.

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $350,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology department
for the purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology advisory
committee and the health information technology office, for the period beginning with
the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011,

SECTION 11. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the electronic health information exchange fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$88,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, including up to $80,000,000
of federal funds deposited in the fund from the federal American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 to the information technology department for the purposes
established under section 5 of this Act, for the period beginning with the effective date
of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 12. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.”

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2332 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

(2) DESK, (2) COMM Page No. 5 SR-77-8973




2009 TESTIMONY

SB 2332



~ Human Services Committee

. January 27, 2009

Senator Lee and Committee Members:

Thank you for the opportunity to speak with you today regarding health information
technology and SB2332. I am Kimber Wraalstad, President/CEQ of Presentation
Medical Center in Rolla and a member of the North Dakota Health Information
Technology Steering Committee.

I would like to speak to four issues:

1. Impact of Health Information Technology to Patient Care

2. Cost of Health Information Technology

~
[

3. Bottineau/Rolla/Stanley and Northwest Alliance for Information Technology
Projects

4. The Rationale for the Proposed Grant

Thank you for your consideration and I will be happy to address any questions.
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Heaith information exchange (HIE)

Deflnition: The mobilizatlon of health Information electronically across organizations within o
reglon or community. HiE provides the capability to electronically move clinical information
between disparate health care information systems while maintaining the meaning of the
information being exchanged. The goal of HIE Is to facilitate access to and retrieval of clinical
data to provide safer, more timely, efficient, effective, equitable and patient-centered care.

Electronic Medical Records (EMRs) from different facilities may not be able to share data
without a work and planning from both the technical side and the operational side. Some
issues are listed below.

Technical considerations

The EMRs must have some minimal predefined functionality and have the capability to
send and receive data using established standards

If there is no unique person identifier, it may be difficult to identify a patient across
different organizations’ EMRs

Unless the data (i.e. drugs, tests, allergies, etc.) is standardized, much of the information
contained in one facllity’s EMR would be meaningless to another facility’s EMR even if
both facilities have a system from the same vendor

Other conslderations

A structure or organization will be required to:
o Administer access to the records
o Follow up if an unauthorized access complaint is received
o Oversee day to day activities
Procedures may need to be defined to support the patient’s ability to opt in or opt out
(from participation in the HIE) or restrict access to parts of their medical record
There may be substantial startup costs

Prepared by Alon Okerson, Director of Information Technology, Trinity Health, Minot ND on behalf of the
North Dakota Health Information Technology Committee

- .




Electronic Medical Records (EMR})

Definition(s): A computer-accessible resource of medical and administrative information
available on an individual collected from and accessible by providers involved in the individual's

care within a single care setting.
Natlonal Alllance for Health Information Technology

An application environment composed of the clinical data repository, clinical decision support,
controlled medical vocabulary, order entry, computerized provider order entry, pharmacy, and
clinical documentation applications. This environment supports the patient’s electronic medicai
record across inpatient and outpatient environments, and is used by healthcare practitioners to
document, monitor, and manage heaith care delivery within a care delivery organization {CDO).
The data in the EMR is the legal record of what happened to the patient during thelr encounter

at the CDO and is owned by the CDO.
HIMSS Analytics Database

Features of an EMR

s The patient’s information is in one place
e Based on role and need, access to information is secured
» information available to multiple care givers at one time wherever they may be
+ [nformation may be entered in real time so the record is kept up to date
s Availabllity of patient history
o Previous visits

Drugs
Allergies
Test results
Radiclogy images

o Ete.
Treatment guidelines can be provided to assist providers
Orders entered electronically and appropriate care givers notified
Drug to drug and drug to allergy interaction alerts
Immediate notification of appropriate staff of orders placed
Test results immediately available

Because all information is available from multiple vislts to muitiple providers, duplicate
tests are reduced or eliminated

* May contain discrete data that can be used for trending and reporting

0O 00GQ0

Not all EMR systems are created equal and may have only some of the above capabilities.



2> North Dakota

Health Information Technology .

About HIT

What is health information
technology (HIT)?

HIT is a method of managing health infor-
mation electronically, rather than traditional
paper records and charts. HIT gathers health
information in one place so providers can
thoroughly understand and easily access it.
HIT is often used interchangeably with:

s electronic medical records (EMR)

¢ electronic health records {EHR)

* health information exchange (HIE)

How can HIT be used?
HIT can improve the efficiency, safety and
quality of care that patients receive by Recommendations for

| _making patient information easily accessible improving-HiT in-North Dakota: -

3

across providers. e Create a state-funded grant or loan program

. to support rural and public health entities in
HIT in North Dakota the implementation of health information
¢ Rural hospitals and clinics lag behind

technology-driven quality improvement
urban facilities in adopting HIT, creating

12 programs.
an urban/rural divide across North e Develop a North Dakota Strategic Plan for
Dakota health care system.

) implementing and sustaining a statewide
* Health proft?s.smr!s St‘_“!e"ts str.ongly electronic health information exchange.
prefer practicing in clinical environments * Develop health information technology
supported by HIT. training programs to build human resource
¢ Telemedicine (the provision of clinical

capacity.
services via telephone, the Internet, or e Implement a peer-to-peer HIT support
other networks) adoption across ND is

_. program for rural health care provider
limited. oreanizati
ganizations.

What is the North Dakota HIT ¢ Sponsor rotating rural HIT technical support

s . c ittee? team to assist organizations that do not
teering Committee have the necessary staff to implement HIT
e Legislatively created in 2007, the

] -~ projects.
committee works to facilitate the * Create a formal organization within the state
adoption and use of health information

: charged with coordinating HIT efforts and
technology and exchange to improve potentially governing a health information
health care quality, patient safety and

i exchange initiative.
overall efficiency of health care and
public health services in North Dakota.

Lynette Dickson, MS, LRD, Chair, ND Health Information Technology Steering Committee
Center for Rural Health e Unjversity of North Dakota Schoo! of Medicine & Health Sciences
701-777-6049 » Mdickson@medicine.nodak. edu
website: httpr//rurathealth.und.edu/projects/sorh/hit.php



Who is involved with the
Steering Committee?

The HIT Steering Committee is a statewide
collaborative involving 22 public and private
members committed to strengthening
statewide HIT initiatives. There are five
work groups, with 48 members '
representing 44 organizations, which report
to the Steering Committee. Members
include providers, academic institutions,
state representatives, and public and
private organizations.

What does the Steering

Committee do?

e Assess the overall HIT environment in
North Dakota.

¢ Engage with leadership from other state
HIT and HIE initiatives.

s Assess current state laws and standards

- for exchanging health-information.————-

e Identify and disseminate new funding
sources and track information planning

. and implementation projects in the state.
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Who has Electromc Medical Recordsg .}
(EMR) In North Dakota? L

LU?

Students:mﬁmedlcine, climcal Iaboratory -
. sc:ence, and radlology techno[ogy

. mdlcate that technology is extremely or.
' very |mportant when selectmg a: place of
employment o - :

FACTS ABOUT HEALTH ENFORMATION TECHNOLOGY IN. NORTH DAKOTA

How are the activities of
the Steering Committee
funded?
The Steering Committee was authorized but
not funded by state government. Statewide
activities have been supported financially
through Blue Cross Blue Shield of North
Dakota and in-kind contributions from
committee members. Additionally, the
majority of support is provided by federaily
funded grants through HRSA's Office of
Rural Health Policy, administered by the
UND Center for Rural Health through the
following:
e State Office of Rural Health Grant
Program
¢ Small Hospital Improvement Program
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility
Grant Program

NDHIT Report———— -
Connecting North Dakota for o Healthier Future, Dec 2008
rurolheaith.und.edu/projects/sorh/ndhitreport. pdf

Top ‘tiwo uses pf telemedlcine in hosplta!s. wf
__vndeocornferencmg (e g meetlngs) and

L3 e AT T

o s

Lynette Dickson, MS, LRD, Chair, ND Heaith Information Technology Steering Committee

Center for Rural Health «  University of North Dakota School of Medicine & Health Sciences
701-777-604% o ldickson@medicine.nodak.edu
webhsite: http://ruralheaith.und.edu/projects/sorh/hit.php
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T North Dakota
Healthv\Informatlon%TechnologXW

s

Connecting North Dakota for a healthier future

PROPOSED REQUEST for APPROPRIATION — 2009 Legislative Session

1) Establish the ND Health Information Technology (HIT) Office to be located within
the ND Department of Health.
This DOH-HIT Office will exist to:

e Serve and maintain refationships with ND HIT Steering Committee (Advisory Committee) and other
public and private partners for the purpose of insuring coordination of information systems planning,
development, implementation and electronic exchange of information.

o Identify improvements in the management and use of public health and health care data to assess and
improve the health status of North Dakota, through collaborative efforts.

s Serve as liaison between state agencies (e.g. DOH, DHS and ITD) and the HIT Steering Committee
(Advisory Committee) and other

» Bridge gaps and link public health professional staff and clinical staff to the technology staff. The
position assures linking internal and external partners around public health data and informatics
issues to support better use of data to guide public health and health care practice.

¢ Provide oversight for administration of the grant program.

2) Create two positions to staff the ND HIT Office:
HIT Officer
C\ This position reports to the State Medical Officer, Department of Health.
Knowledge, Skills and Ability:

. This position is supervisory staff in the DOH- Health Information Technology Office and oversees the
performance of the project assistant and support staff. This position will be leading a wide range of planning,
assessment, policy development, and other activities related to informatics, the incumbent will be required to
possess strong core planning skills, and informatics skills, including a working knowledge of the various
planning methodologies for defining the needs for information system applications and the data standards
necessary for HIT interoperability.

The incumbent is also required to be skilted in group facilitation, consensus-building, communications
strategies, and translating complex HIT terms and concepts for non-IT staff.

This position must also have: strong interpersonal communication skills, with an ability to generate consensus
among a variety of different perspectives; project management skills necessary to plan, organize and manage
projects; and a high level of skill in the use of computers for data processing, presentations, and report writing.
A sound understanding of public health, health care systems, health data, and health data standards is required.
The incumbent must be able to work closely on teams and lead or participate in respectful joint decision-
making.

Project Assistant

This position reports to the HIT Officer/Director

Knowledge, Skills and Ability:

Knowledge and experience with grant program development, RFP and contracting processes.
Excellent ability to organize and develop and accomplish short and long range goals and objectives.
Excellent written and verbal communication skills in providing technical assistance.

Ability to prepare and review reports and papers on the results of grant projects and other activities.




January 25, 2009

Direct operation of the DOH-HIT Office and administer grant program:
(Cost based on 24 months)
Personnel — Salary/Fringe (Based on 24 months): $247,322
. HIT Officer/Director (100% FTE) and Project Assistant (50% FTE)
Operating (phone, travel, rent, printing, etc.): $26,250
Total DOH Administrative Cost: $273,726

3) Amend the existing statute to change the ND HIT Steering Committee (same members) to the
ND HIT Advisory Group which will provide direction to the DOH-HIT Office and Grant Program.

4) Establish a Grant Program

et = g —

Grant Program Title: LT : o = —
Improving Access, Quality a“d Patlent Safety through Health Informanon Technology (HIT)

The overarching goal for this grant program is to improve access, quality and patient safety, through the effectlve
adoption and implementation of electronic exchange of health information within and among health care facilities in a
given region (e.g. electronic health records, regional health information exchange, telehealth, etc.).

Eligible health care entities: All rural health clinics and community health centers; hospitals; licensed
nursing facilities; local public health units and nonprofit entities(with the purpose of providing health
information exchange coordination governed by a representative and other providers of health or health care
services) approved by the ND HIT Steering Committee.

All proposed grant projects will require collaboration between three (at minimum) or more ehg:bie health
care entities which are not owned by any one entity. The intent of the grant program is to facilitate the
formation of collaborative efforts between distinct corporate entities,

Matching Funds: Grant funds shall be awarded on a 25% match basis for the total grant amount awarded.
Applicants shall be required to provide 10% in the form of cash match and 15% in-kind match, such as staff or
services.

Proposed Funding Period: July 1, 2009-June 30, 2011

Eligible Technology Solutions: All grantees will be required to purchase or upgrade new health IT
products, that apply Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel(HITSP) interoperability
specifications and have Certification Commission for Health Information Technology (CCHIT)
certification.

1. Readiness Assessment anid Planning Grants®
Purpose: To support the structured planning activities that will prepare for successful adoption/implementation of
technology solutions. Activities may include: initial stages of collaboration with partners, readiness assessment,
development of education/training programs for healthcare professionals and staff, workflow analysis within
individual health care facilities as well as between community/regional facilities, business planning, determining
specific network HIT functions.
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 20 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of Each Grant: $45,000

Total Planning Grants Funded: $900,000

. Implementation Grants
. Electronic Medical Records (or related technology) Implementation Projects



\"—1‘ . o

January 25, 2009
Purpoese: To support communities/networks who can clearly demonstrate they have completed a structured planning
process and are in the position, at the time of submitting an application, to begin implementation of electronic health
record, e-prescribing or other related technology.
(’\ Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 4 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
mount of Each Grant: $900,000

Total EMR Grants Funded: $3,600,000

B. Telehealth Implementation Pilot Projects
Purpose: To support communities/regions who can clearly demonstrate the completion of the planning and readiness
phase and are in the position to begin implementation of a new or expanded telehealth program (e.g. teledialysis,
telestroke, telemental health, etc.)
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 3 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of each Grant: $50,000

Total Telehealth Grants Funded:$150,000

IIL._Health Information Exchange(HIE) Collaborative. Grants

Purpose: To support existing or newly established collaborative who can clearly demonstrate the completion of the
planning and readiness phase and are in the position to begin to connect and facilitate the exchange of health
information between eligible health care entities in a selected geographical region.

Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 2 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)

Amount of each Grant: $500,000

Total HIE Grants Funded: $1,000,000
__ Total Amount of Grants: $5,650,000 _

TOTAL APPROPRIATION $5,923,726
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Definitions -~~~ o e e T T e .
Health Information Teclmology The appllcatlon of mforrnatlon processmg mvolvmg both computer
‘hardware and software that déals with the storage, retrieval, shanng and use of healthcare mformatlon data,
and knowledge for commumcahon and decision makmg R - .
Electronlc medlcal record "An electronic record of health-related mformahon on an md1v1dual that can be
created gathered, managed and consulted by authonzed chmc1ans and staff w1thm one health care: NER
orgamzatlon - S D T
; . . R S R T e gy T e et e Lo S
Electromc health record An electromc record of: health-related mfonnatton on an mdnvxdual that conforms
to natlonally recognized mteroperablhty standards .and that can be created managed and consulted by
authonzed chmmans and staﬁ' ACToss. more than one hea]th care orgamzatlon
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Health mformatlon exchange- The electromc movement of health-related mfcrmatlon among orgamzatlonsi
according to natlonally recognized standards. |, -y
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PR e # SB2332
JOB-CREATING INVESTMENTS IN HEALTH CARE

ealth Information Technology Proposals in the Finance Committee. In addition to the provisions included in the
Chairman’s Mark, the Appropriations Committee Mark will include tandem policies addressing privacy of health
information and additional funding through discretionary programs. The Finance proposals would:

and adoption of health IT standards {for interoperability and minimum functionaiity), including the certification
of systems as meeting those standards
<2) Invest in the adoption and use of health iT systems by health care providers who serve Medicare and Medicaid
patients
3} Beginning in 2011, providers participating in the Medicare program would be eligible for temporary bonus

payments if they exhibit to the Secretary that they are meaningfully-using a-cartified HIT system; those who do

not eventually meaningfully use certified HIT would not receive full Medicare payments. Hardship exceptions
would be available to providers who face significant barriers to adoption, such as limited access to the internet

4} Beginning in 2011, high-volume Medicaid providers would be eligible for a temporary payment to subsidize the
adoption of a certified HIT system. Also beginning in 2011, high-volume Medicaid providers who meaningfully
use certified HIT would be eligible for a temporary payment to offset the ongoing costs of supporting,
maintaining, or upgrading certified HIT systems

( 1) Require the Health and Human Services (HHS) Secretary to implement an angoing process for the development

5) The Secretary of HHS would adopt measures for determining the meaningful use of a certified HIT system. At
minimum, measures would include the use of electronic prescribing technology, the exchange of health
information with other providers to help coordinate care, and the reporting of clinical quality measures

These proposals are estimated to cost $17.9 bitlion.

The Finance Committee has also contributed to the finalization of a spending proposal on Comparative Effectiveness
Research Funding. it will be marked up in the Appropriations Committee, and not as part of the Chairman’s Mark in
Finance. This proposal would invest $700 million to fund immediate studies on the comparative effectiveness of various
medical tests and treatments through the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quuolity and the National Institutes of
Health. The proposal would also provide $400 million to the Secretary of Health and Human Services to fund additional
new studies. This proposal is estimated to cost $1.1 billion.
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Testimony in Support of SB No. 2332
Senate Human Services Committee
January 27, 2009
Madam Chair Lee and Committee Members, I’'m Bruce Levi and [ represent

the North Dakota Medical Association.

The North Dakota Medical Association supports SB No. 2332. Health
information technology is fast becoming a key component of state efforts to
improve health care and is a means for facilitating quality improvement and
cost control, Appropriate, well-coordinated health information technology
strategies can bring together vital pieces of patient data essential for providing

quality care.

Despite documented advantages and federal support for HI'T initiatives,
physician adoption of HIT nationally has been slow, Research on HIT
adoption rates indicates that concerns about HIT adoption’s high cost,
uncertainty of return on investment after adoption, and worry over the
usability and obsolescence of new technologies rank highest among reasons
surveyed physicians have not yet adopted HIT. Doubts about the privacy and
security of patient data, practice compliance with HIPAA legislation, and the
potential for inappropriate disclosure of patient information to third parties
rank just behind financial concerns. [nitiatives such as that provided in SB No.

2332 provide incentives and the means to overcome these barriers.

The North Dakota Medical Association was a member of the ND Health
Information Technology Steering Committee created to facilitate the adoption
and use of health information technology and exchange to improve health care
quality, patient safety and overall efficiency of health care and public health
services in North Dakota. As such, we support SB No. 2332 as a logical step

forward and urge a “Do Pass” on the bill.



American Heart

Senate Bill 2332 Associations
Learn and Lives

Senate Human Services Committee

Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee. | am June
Herman, Senior Director of Government Relations for the American Heart Association in

North Dakota. | am here today asking for your favorable consideration of SB 2332.

This session the American Heart Association has already focused on two key pieces of

legislation:

» establishing Primary Stroke Center certification and EMS response systems for acute
stroke events (House Human Services) HB 1339

« inclusion of a stroke registry appropriation into SB 2004, the Department of Health's
budget.

SB 2332 represents another important building block for improved stroke care, as within it
is the potential to fund special telemedicine projects, projects such as tele-stroke services

to provide acute stroke care.

To put the need in perspective:
North Dakotans ages 65 and older are more likely to die from heart disease and stroke than
any other age group. In fact, 95 percent of stroke deaths and 87 percent of heart disease
deaths in 2005 were people 65 and older. Sixty-eight percent of North Dakotans with a
history of stroke are 65 and older, with stroke the leading admission cause for Long Term
Health Care. In 2003, North Dakota Medicare (ages 65 and older) payments for heart

disease and stroke hospital discharges exceeded $61 million dollars.

The most pronounced change in the state’s population will be a dramatic increase in the
elderly poputation. In 2000, 14.7 percent of the state’s residents were 65 and older. By
2010 the proportion of elderly will jump to 17 percent, and will move to 23 percent by 2020.
It is important for North Dakota to address Health Technology needs as an important

access to care issue for our future.

American Stroke
Associations



I've provided with my testimony some examples highlighting the need and potential for

improved stroke systems of care.
‘ « Map showing incident of stroke deaths by county, with comprehensive hospitals marked
with red dots
« Article explaining tele-stroke opportunities and the relationships possible between hub
and spoke hospitals
+ Example of web-based guideline tools addressed through our stroke registry

recommendations.

With a stroke, time lost is brain lost. We feel SB 2332 will enable North Dakota to build
critical health technology potential that can help us reduce stroke’s toll.

In conclusion, | ask for your “Do Pass” recommendation on SB 2332. | would be happy to

answer any questions you may have at this time.
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Stroke telemediclne s a consultative modality that facilitates

care of patlents with acute stroke at underserviced hospltals by -

speciallsts at stroke centers. The deslgn and Implementation of a
hub-gnd-spoke telestroke network are complex. This reviow de-
scrlbes the technology that niakes stroke telemedicine possible,
the members that should be Included In a telestroke team, the

" hub-and-spoke characteristics of a telestroke network, and the
format of a typlcal consuitation. Common obstacles to the prac-
tice of telestrake medlcine are explored, such as medicolegal,
economic, and market Issues. An example of a state-based tele-
stroke network is thoroughly described, and estabilshed Irterna-
tlonal telestroke networks are presentoed and compared. The
opportunities for futitre advances In telestroke practice, research,
and educatlon are considered.

Mayo Clin Proc. 2009; 84(1) 53.64

I ADHS = Arizonn Department of Hoahh Services; AV = audlovisual; CT =

computed tomography; IRB = Instltutional review board; MeSH = medi-
al subjoct heading; NIM = Natlosal Institutes of Health; PSC = primary
ko center; STARR = Stroke Telemedicine for Arizona Rural Resk
nits; STRoKE DOC = Stroke Team Remote Evaluation Using a Digital
bssrvation Camera; TIME = The Inttlal Mayo Clinle Exparience; tPA =
tisaue plasminogen activator .

-

tudies have described variability in the depth of stroke
care provided at hospitals in the United States and
abroad.!'* Although primary stroke centers (PSCs) are
equipped with the resources and personnel to provide pa-
tients with acute stroke with a timely, adequate assess-

ment and emergency stroke treatments, they represent

only a minority of all hospitals. Unfortunately, this level

of expertise may be unavailable at some urban and most -
rural centers that do not specialize in stroke. This gap in.

availability of emergency stroke care can be attributed to
a low number of certified PSCs, insufficient availability
of stroke specialists, and long distances between remotely
located patients and centrally located stroke specialists *#
Accordingly, therapies for acute stroke, such as tissue
plasminogen activator {{PA}, are underused by hospitals
that cannot provide patients with timely access to stroke

expertise. To overcome this gap in availability of and .

access to stroke specialists and to address the underuse of
therapies for acute stroke, telemedicine techniques that
_e adapted to the emergency evaluation of acute stroke
be used.® According to the American Telemedicine

(

REVIEW

Stroke Telemedicine

BarTM. DEMAERSCHALK, MD, MSc, FRCP(C); MADELDGE L. MiLEY, BSC (CANDIDATE),
Terri-ELLEN J. Bernan, MSN, FNP-BC, CCRN, CNRN; Bentiey J. Bosrow, MD; Doren A. CorDAY, BS;
Kay E. WerLk, MLS, AHIP; Marta 1. AGUILAR, MD; Tmotny J. InaaLL, MD, PuD;

Davin W. Dobick, MD, FRCP(C); Karma Brazpys, RN, BSN; Trrany C. Koca, BPsycy;
MicHagr P. WarDp, DO; ano Panire C. RicaemoNT, MD; For THE STARR COINVESTIGATORS

Association, telemedicine is the exchange of medical in-
_“formation from one site to another using electronic com-
munication, such as telephone, Internet, or videocon-
ference,S Telemedicine practices allow ,
for a specialist consultation, direct pa= | gor editorlal
tient consultation, patient monitoring, | ¢omment,
and medical education. The application | see page 3
of telemedicine for care of acute strokes,
often called telestroke, was a natural progression from
general telemedicine becanse of a shortage of stroke neu-

__ rologists and recent advances in technology? . _

Telecommunications, which started with the telephone
and advanced to audiovisual (AV) communication, has
changed the face of medicine not only in remote areas but
also in urban areas with a shortage of subspecialists. A
surge in the use of telestroke across the United States,
Canada, and Europe occurred in the late 1990s and early
2000s, resulting in the development of 20 new telestroke
networks. In this review, telestroke refers to live, AV tele-
communication applied to care of acute stroke. The imple-
mentation of telemedicine for stroke is a vital piece to the
puzzle of creating universal access to emergency care for
all patients with slrokc regardless of geographxc locatmn
“or hosp1tal resources.’

From the Department of Neurology (B.M.D., M.L.M,, T-E.J.K,, M.LA, T.LL,,
D.W.D.), Department of Emergancy Medlclne (B.J. B ), Division of ln‘.'orma-
tion Technology {D.A.C.}, Library Services, Divislon of Education Administra-

. tion {K.EW.), and Division of Research Adm[ntstrath.'e Services {K.B.,
T.C.K.), Mayo Clinic Hospital, Phoenix, AZ; Department of Blology, Loyola
University Chicago, Chicago, IL (M.L.M.}; Bureau of EMS ard Trauma Sys-
tern, Arizona Department of Health Services, Phoenix (B.LB.Y; Department
of Emergency Medicine, Kingman Regional Medical Center, Kingman, AZ
(M.P.W.); and bepartment of Emergency Medicine, Yuma Regional Medical
Center, Yuma, AZ (P.C.R.}. A list of the STARR Coinvestigators appears at
the end of this article.

This study was funded by an Arizena Department of Health Services research
grant (HI754123), a Mayo Clinlc research grant {90256993), the STRokE
DOC Arizena—The Initial Mayo Experlence (TIME) trial (clinicaltrlals.gov identh-
fier: NCTO0623350), and the Stroke Telemed cIne for Arizona Rural Resk
dents (STARR} Registry.

Individua! reprints of this article are nct availahle. Address correspondence to :

Bart M. Demaerschalk, MD, MSe, FRCP(C), Department of Neurolegy, Mayo
Clinic Hospital, 5777 E Mayo B!vd Phoemx, AZ 85054 {demaesschalk.bart

@mayo.edu),
© 2009 Mayo Foundation for Medical Education and Research

Mayo Clin Proc.  »  January 2009;84(1):53-64  + wwwﬁ??@yoé!irzz‘cproceedfngs.cam B3




STROKE TELEMEDICINE

TAELE 1. Comparison of Telemedicine Systems

Remote Bvaluation
of Acute Ischemic
BF Technologies® Polycor® Tandberg® InTouch Health? Stroks Call (REACHY®  Specialists On Callf.
Factor (San Diggo, CA) (Plgﬁsamon‘. CA)  (New Yark, NY) _ {Santa Barbara, CA) (Augusta, GA} (Westlake Village, CA)
Product offering * AccessVideo  VEN/HDX Tapdberg  * RP-7 RemotePresence  Web-based tools that  Third-party provision of
Telemadicine Fractitioner Cart Intern System (integrates integrate audiovisual . physicians on call 24 b/d,
System MXP - ‘robotic platform * commumication into 7 d/wk via video-
» : sudiovisual) - clinical practice conference softwore
Hardware provided Yes Yes Yes Yes No No
Software Yes Yes Yes Yes No No
Web-based No No Neo No Yes Yes
Annual cost ~24,000 ~23 000 ~25 000 Varies On the basis of On the basis of
wus$ monthly stroke yolume  monthly stroke volume
Maintenance fee Yes Yes s Yes . Yes No . No
Techmology support Telephone - Telephone Telephone Continuously Telephone Telephone and -
24h/d, 7 diwk and online and online "monitored and online onlinte request
Radiology ) L, . .
triinsmission Yes Yes Yes Yes - No No

! s Webssite: hanIwww.bf-nechno]ogxca.com/

Web site; hitpr/fwww polycom com/usa/en/solutions/industry solmomm:althcamltele mcdlcme.htmll

Wnb site: http:/fwwww tandberg,comfind_focus/healthcare/he/_solutions.j -
4 Web site: http:/fwww intouchhealth.com/prodocts _,rp?mbot.hmﬂ

e ch site: hitp:/fwww reachcall. com/company hitml,
T Web site: http//.brainsavingtech com.

METHODS

A team of clinicians (BMD M.L.M) and a mcdmal

librarian (K.E.W ) independently developed search strate-

gles, reviewed the medical literature, screened titles and
acts, identified potentially useful articles, extracted

ature search was conducted in the following Ovid

-databases: MEDLINE (1950 to 2008), EMBASE (1988 to .
2008), Healthstar (1966 to 2008), and CINAHL. (Cumula-
tive Index to Nursing and Allied Health Literature, 1982".

to 2008). In July 2008, the search:was repeatéd in
MEDLINE to identify any additional published articles.

The same combination of medical subject heading .
{MeSH) terms, textwords, and keywords was uged in all -

databases. The MeSH terms cerebrovascular accident,

cerebral infarction, brain ischemia, ischemic attack, -
transient, cerebrovascular disorders, and nssue ‘plasmi-
nogen activator were all exploded and combined usmg
the Boolean- operator “OR.” Textwords. tPA and stroke. -
were added to create one set. Another- sct was created; _
using the exploded MeSH terms relemea’xcme teIecam—
_munications, and remote consultation-and the textwordsr .
-telemedicine or telemedical. A collection of _]oumals in "’
the area of telemedicine was also mcluded in the last set
with the “OR” 'operator The 2 sets (set of stroke results T
and set of telemedicine results) were combinéd using the’
Boolean operator “AND” and limited to the English lan-
guage. Review articles on telemedicine in general.-were .

- also consulted. The bibliographic database seaich was

supplemented by hand searching for published absiracts,

‘ations with investigators and practitioners in the

_ Mayo Clin Proc. =

levant information, and assembled the review. Thé
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field, and review of conference proceedings. Duplicate
publications were removed. . - _. .. _

TELESTROKE TECHNOLOGY AND SERVICES

- One early stcf: in designing a telestroke network is select-

ing an operating system. Information technology. support is .
essential becanse the chosen system should be applicable
within any new or existing telestroke network. A growing 7

_ interest in telestroke has led to the development of muiner< .
ous equipment options for the stroke telemedicine team. . : ..
:Popular equipment for telestroke includes a.hardwar'e'..and: —

software package,. such as the systems provided by'.

. Polycom (Pleasariton, CA), Tandberg (New York, NY), BF -

Technologies (San Diego, CA), and InTouch Health (Santa
Barbara, CA). Alternatively, REACH Call (Augusta, GA) -
and Specialists On Call (Westlake Village, CA). are. Web- -
based online services for videoconferencing betwecn a pa—
nent and a-stroke specialist. S A
Table 1 presents a comparison of thesc telemcdlcme

systems. In the current era. of technology, an ideal tele=:
stroke system should involve a 2-way AV cénneciion for:,. |

assessroent and diagnosis of patients with stroke. Telemed-
icine systems enable online, real-time communication’ using
.a digital camera and software that are controlled by.the.

- . stroke spec:lahst The interrater reliability of a neurologi-7 .

" cal examination and a National Institates of Health. (INTH):
Stroke Scale score obtained- by AV ‘teleconferéncing ' -

“equipment was found to be excellent. Multiple- studies- -~ .-
concluded that remote examinztions of patients with acute .-

stroke with these systems are feasible and reliable ®° Most’

equipment choices feature a high-resolution digital camera,

www.mayoclinicproceedings.com
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patient to view the telestroke practitioner. Mainte-
nance needs are typically, minor,

‘Computed tcmogmphy (CT) transmission via a picture
archiving- -and comm}gmcauon system is relatively easy to
learn and implement into telestroke practice. Privacy and
‘security of the system can be maintained by secure socket
layer conditional access, data encryption, intruder alerts,
and access logging and reporting. These security features
.ensure Health Information Portability and Accountability
Act adherence for virtual telestroke consultations. Most

. operating systems incorporate a remote pan-tilt-zoom in-

‘terface to give a remote user full control over the transmit-

. ted image. An added feature of recording capability allows
-thie consultant to record and store the AV consultation.,

HUB-AND-SPOKE MODEL CHARACTERISTICS

Fisher"! proposed. a hub-and-spoke model of telemedicine-
delivered stroke care designed to enhance the administration
of acute stroke therapies. Evidence-based care® from the hub,

. .which should ideally be a Joint Commission—certified PSC,* =

is tramsmitted to the spokes. Hubs are generally located in
urban areas, and spokes are usually located in rural regions
- or~~urban hospitals that are not stroke centers. The optimal
1 ¢ spoke hospital has a sufficient volume of patients
te stroke but does not have available neurologists on

c emergencies. In addition, the emergency department .

staff should be receptive to collaborating on a telestroke
program, should have access.to CT 24 hours per day 7 days

per week, and should be supported by hospital administra-", -
‘tion. Collaboration between hub and spoke hospitals with - ..

these characteristics lays the foundation for maturation of
" stroke pracnce skills and credentials.

* Ideally, spoke hospitals should track the same stroke per- L

. formance measyres as hub PSCs track. An experieniced spoke " :

* hospital could attain PSC certification. via established .
" telestroke practicé. The spoke center should use sroke quality - . .

* fmeasures from patient admission to discharge. The spoke

“center would not be required to admit all patients with stroke .-
" to-attain PSC status; rather, transfer agreements with ather . - -
. institutions could be established for stroke patients with ad- -
-vanced care needs. As the guidelines for comprehensive. L
. " program. By deflmtron, spoke hospltals are underservrced
".Or undersupported by neurologists; Wthh creates the
. need for, telestroke For several reasons; ‘many emergency
- ,phymcrans are hesuant to accept the sole responsﬂarhty for.
-administering intravenous: thrombolysis for acute ischemic
*, stroke. Asa result; these emergency physicians are not
" using the avarlable acute stroke treatments; Such as BA 7. -

- In, contrast nearly 90% -of rural emergency departments L

"stroke centers® are further refined for implementation and

' practice, the spoke hospital’s acquisition of PSC status and the .
_ hub hospital’s acquisition of comprehensive stroke center -,
status would be mherent in the hub—spoke relauonshrp ‘

\

TELESTROKE TEAM MEM BERSHIP

slestroke team should consist of a broad range of
administrative, and research members at both the

* Maye Clin Proc.

hone, speakers, server for scan storage, and 2 monitor,

" Inforination fechnologist

January 2009;84(1):53-64 +-
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TABLE 2. Team Members of a
* Stroke Telemadicine Network.

Hub hospital . Spolée hospital

. Director (vascular neurologxst) - Director (emcrgency physrclan)
Codirector (emergency physician) . Site coardinafor .
Program coordinator/project managcr Emcr_gcncy physician

‘Information technologist -

Neurologist -
" . Radiology technologist

Nurse practitioner or " Credentialidg and pnwlegrhg
physician assistant ~ ' mssistant
Lawyer . "« Lawyer '~ i
_ Administrative assistant’ - Radiologist. i
- Financial analyst Emc:gcncy nurse
Operations administrator ; :
Rescarch coordinator

hub and spoke” to fultlll all aspects of the telestroke dy-
‘namic. Table 2 lists the proposed members of a telestroke

team. Neurologists, emergency physicians, nurses, ‘and ra-
diologists should col]aborale on the pravision of remote

care for patients with acute stroke In general, telestroke"

practitioners are board—ceruﬁed vascular neurologists;

however, no_formal requrrements for the practice of
telestroke currently exist. In reality, any trained practitio-
ner in the field of stroke could learn the requisite skills of
telestroke assessment because these skills are not difficult -
to acquire.” Stroke neurologxsts often aided by a remote

. bedside mirse, can quickly and rehably obtam valid NH-I

Stroke Scale scores by ‘a high-speed AV telemedlcme

. link.** Potentially effic1ent models of telesn-ake systems

might use vascular neurology fe]lowshlp——tramed nuise
pracunoners physician assistants, or neurology resrdents

“and fellows to perform prehimnary triage, screening, and
. neurologic’ dssessments: This preliminary work could then .
Sl be followed by a reassessment or review by a supervising

~vascular neurologlst dependmg on pertinent state laws.
*.Having emetgency medicine- physrcran stroke leaders par—

. ticipate-at hub-and- spoke centers is a. model Lhat appears o
" _be assogiated with program success.! -

To gain the éndorsement of spoke- hosp1tals a successful

:¢ollaboration. betweer- neurology and  emergency. ,medi-

cine pracuuoners is essential: Col]aboratxon between

"-émergency. medmme and neurology pracut:oners is_prob-

would be recepnve tor }ommg a telestroke network and

wwymayoclinicproceedings.com . 55
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TABLE 3. Suggested Target Intervals
{From Emergency Department Arndval to Actlv[ty)
for a Telestroke Consultation® -~ -

Activiy - ) L (mm)
Emergencydepamncmnmva.l B BRI
Triage nurse assessment " 5
Emergency physician assessment T (¢
Laboratory tests and CT of head ordered . C I5
Laboratory tests and CT of head conducted L 25

.+ Telestroke hotline activated by spoke hospitat 30
Preliminary telephone commimication bctwacn hub and .

- spoks hospitals . . 3
2-Way andiovisual telestroke consultation commences | 4D
Teleradiology review of head CT 45

. Diagnosis of stroke established and eligibility for short-term .~ + -

treatment determined 55
Treatments recommended and administered 60
Admission or transfer atmngcd, marking end of lelcsu'ok: o

consultation : 65
Consultation note dictated by hub hospital neurologmt : 75
Consnltation note transcribed and transmitted to spolee hosl:uml 120

* CT = computed tomography. '

. tr‘eatixig patients with acute stroke with thrombolysis -
if a. vascular ncurologlst could_provide_a. telcmed.lmne_.__

consultation.!?
.. Telestroke networks could benefit from a full-tlmc pro—
.. gram manager to bridge the clinical and" admxmsn'anve
ects of a network. Spoke radiology technologists ¢ serve .
‘1 critical role of ensuring that néuroimaging is transfe.n'ed
ccessfully to allow hub teleradiologic interpretation. In-

. formation technologists are “invaluable to the, initial devel- .

opreent, maintenance, and expansion of the nepwork,’s tele~.
communication requirements. Education specialisty may

help to apply -continuing medical education .credits to -

stroke tele-education opportunities. Research coordinators -

- Tmtei“

“between’ pcrsonnel at hubs and spokcs 18 esscntm] to a

successful telestmke practice.

THE‘ MODEL TELESTROKE CONSULTATION

Acute stroke 'is a time-sensitive condition that requires
multidisciplinaty coordination; thierefore, the American
Stroke Association created the stroke chain of survival to
improve clinical outcomes.’ Although this sequence of
events progresses smoothly for patients who have direct
access to’ expert stroke care, this model becomes inter-
rupted for patients who are remotely located and lack this
immediate access. When the chain of survival breaks, pa-
tients who may have benefited from specific short-term
therapies ultimately suffer. The overall goal of a telpstroke

‘consultatjon is to Testore the stroke chain of survival-and to

maximize patient récovery by delivering a timely assess-

- mént makmganaccurate diagnosis, determining eligibility
- for short-term therapy, and delivering the chosen treat-

- ment. Beginiiing with a patient’s early recoguition of °

stroke symptoms and culminating in a suecessful telestroke

consultation, each step along the way.is crucial to the ﬁna.l_. -

outcome: Table 3 depicts possible steps and target times for
the telestroke chain of survival. The spoke emergency phy-

- gician performs a quick assessment, récognizes an acute

. stroke syndrome, and activates the telestroke hotline at the
hub site (Figures 1 and-2). Developing an algorithm for the
step-by-step conduct of a telestroke consultation is impor-

. tant to developing a telestroke standard of care. In ideal!

' practice, the spoke and hub centers should use the same

" stroke alert algorithin to create continuity of care through-

are involved in any research effort ranging fromi the main-: " -

tenance of a simple prospective registry 16 .a soplnstlcaied

. randomized controlled trial of telemedicine-delivered ex=

pcnmemal therapy. Institutional review. board {IRB) spe- :

 cialists may be necessary at institutions less fandiliar with ¢
:the unique aspects of conducting telcresea.rch .Finance spe-:.:
- rcialists may- help explore all of the- currently, available::

. rembmscment opportunities for the:-hub,: provrder and
* - spoke recipient of the teleconsultations; Busmcss and ad-

. . ministration leaders, guided by legal ¢ounsel thans famil-:-

- iar.with telemedicine law, assist with-the: development of
5 rcgulatory documents and-contracts between the: respcctlve

Depending on the setting of the telestroke’ praqﬂce,r.‘_a.
. telestroke hotline service should be implemented: with- thé
reqmsne suppoit personnel. Risk management and quahty
11d be involved at both the hub and spokc Teamwork

56,

Mayo Clin P,roc: .-

- out an acute strokc eva]paﬁon.

B ' ILLUSTRATIVE TELESTRO KE CASE
A 75—ycar—01d female resident of a rural community identi-."; '

" fied the sudden onsét of left facial droop, slurred speech,
-and weakhess and numbness of tlie left arm and leg at 3:30-
-pM. She presented to the local emergency department of the

- spbk_ej hospital at 4:21 pM, at ‘which time the emergency- .

. department-physician examined her and initiated a stroke *°

¢ alert. Blood samples were drawn, CT Was éomplete‘d,'aigd

* the spoke center activated the telestroke hub hotline. The - . -
~~hub centér’s on-call stroke neurologist responded. Aftérthe. .~ -

: pat_ic’n_tf-h:id__uﬁdérgoné- CT, the telestroke camera §ystém

‘institutions. Crcdenuahng privileging; and licensing experts <" -
- assist the hub teleconsultants in estabhshmg the: appropnafe
" . authorization to perform remote stroke -telecofsultations::

January 2009,84(1):53-64

-~ was placed in front of the patient and the consultation” -

began at’5:08 pm: The patient and her: family initeracted with
- the “stroke’ neurologlst via the cdmera system, answered
- questions, and engaged in the consittation. -The spoke
 emergency. ‘dcpanmcnt nurse assisted the stroke netrolo- -
"7 gist 'with the' examination and the laboratory results. The ‘

‘-strokc neurologist zoomed in on the éardiac monitor to

www.mayoclinicproceedings.com
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the patient’s electrocardiographic results, heart

Mlood pressure, respiratory rate, and oxygen satura-
tions. During the AV telemedicine examination, the stroke
neurologist simultangously accessed the CT by 2 Digital -
Imaging and Communications in Medicine system.
Through examination via the AV camera system, the NIH

" Stroke Scale score was determined to be 6. After the clini-
cal, laboratory, and CT examinations were complete, the -
neurologist requested the presence of the emergency physi-.
cian and the daughter at the bedside to discuss the plan for
cire. At 5:53 pM the stroke neurologist reviewed the obser-
vations and recommended the administration of tPA. The
spoke emergency department initiated tPA at 6:09 pm. The
hub stroke neurologist dictated a consultation and faxed it : ‘
‘to the spoke center emergency dcpa.ﬁmcnt. FIGURE 1. A spoke hospltal emergency physician at a mock

patient's bedside Is assisting the hub hospitat stroke neuroiogist
with the examination. .- ‘ :

THE MEDICOLEGAL ISSUES. ’
The practice of telemedicine in the United States is under dent on pupﬁc sector financing in the form of grants and |
the control of the individual states, requires state licensure, tclecor'n.muﬁications subsidies, which are nearly always
~and is limited by state geographic boundaries. Internet- restricted to rural counties. As a consequence, many tele-
" baséd; site-independent approaches to’ acute- stroke-care—- - medicine -programs. tend -to be_associated_with academic

allow a physician-patient interaction to take place when the medical systems in states and provinces with latge rural
2 partiés are in different geographic locations anywhere in areas and physician specialist shortages. These issues are

_tf __'rld. The jurisdiction restrictions placed on telemed- even more complex when considering the economics of
d ctice constriin the potential for regional, national, telestroke networks .- - )
_ riational networks. Some telemedicine experts rec- ‘Obtaining direct revenue from .insurance payers for
~ ommend that the practice of telemedicine be handled dif- - telestroke consultations is difficult. Medicare will only
ferently than the practice of face-to-face medicine, as re- reimburse for telemedicine-that inclndes consuitations

lated to licensure (i¢, a national or a regional geographic (Table 4) if the patient is linked with the hub vascular

multistate licensure model)

lated according to national laws, The fact that tele- graphic area. Medicare defines such eligible regions as

- consultation i acute stroke is similar to face-to-face on- rural health professional shortage areas and counties not
“site consultation should facilitate these regulations 2 Some o ' S

' piysicians are concerned that they would bé vulnerable to a

. malpractice lawsiit in the event that technical problems

" impedea consultation and result in an adverse outcome.?

" Given that telemedicine practice is not new, the ethical

' #nd mialpractice aspects have largely been confronted and .
tesolved ® - - ‘ IR

_ THE ECONOMIC ISSUES
Telemedicine networks, whether urban or rural, réquiré a
- gibstantial capital investment in equipment and technical
' -support. Components of the total cost of developrent and
" maintenance of a telestroke petivork include the telemedi-
- cine equipment, information technology support, the nec-
e« -y clinical and administrative personnel, per_sonﬁel

: Lo : . FIGURE 2. A hub hospital stroke neurologist and research coordina-
‘ arid credentialing, and allowances for on-call cov- tor are.canducting a 2-way audiovistal telestroke consultation with -

Most telemedicine programs are financially depen- the spoke hospital. .

Mayo Clin Proc.  » January 2009;84(13:53-64 »  wwmmingyoclinicproceedings.com . b7

! 2 neurologist by live 2-way video communication and in |
The iability of telemedical procedures has to be regu- instances when the spoke is located in an eligible geo-

|
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TABLE 4. Medicare Relmbursement
for Telemedicine Consuitation®™

Reimbursement amount

- . Consultation duration
CPTcode {min) {Uuss
99241 . 15 e 4592
99242 30 - P © 8533
99243 _ 40 , 117.08
99244 60 S Vi
99245 80 21174

* CPT =Current Procedural Terminology. . .
Y For Further information, see the telemedicine overview at Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services (bttp://www.cms hhs.gov/Telemedicine).

classified as a metropolitan statistical area. Although these
restrictive circumstances exist in most states ¥ New York's
state-based telestroke program has becn bolstered by ap-
proval of Medicaid reimbursement for both -ends of the
~ consnitation.? Confirmatory trials of telestroke efficacy
coupled with cost-effectiveness analyses will provide
health care policy makers with the data necessary to pro-
ceed with national telestroke reimbursement plans.
Historically, third-party payers have been slow to recog-

nize' teleconsultation activities for reimbursement; how-- — -

ever, survey data indicate that the United States is progress-

ing toward expanded private reimbursement for telemed- -

. icine services.?7® California, Lowisiana, Kentucky, Texas,

d Oklahoma have introduced legislation rega:dmg
andatory private payer reimbursement for telemedicine.”

ivate reimbursement for télemedicine consultations

was found to be generally comparable to that of traditional
face-to-face consultations. Although surveys have re-’
cognized that small improvements in private reimburse- -
ment have occurred, this favorable change alone. i8:in- -
* sufficient to foster the creahon of broader telemedlcme

networks.
No detailed , high-quality analyses of the cost—effccnve—
‘ness of telemedicine for.stroke have been performed,
. which has been a barrier to making a case for a uniform

syStem for reimbursement for stroke telecousultat:ou“ '

" Systematic reviews of cost-benefit studies of telemedmme
in general in 2001-2002 reported that most did not meet

- acceptable quahty criteria, most were restricted to’ sunple

cost comparisons, and no study used cost utlhty analy51s or
included sensitivity analyses.

Several investigators have conducted ﬁnanc:al analyses
~of the implementation of rural and urban telcmed:cmc pro-
-, graros. Only those analyses conducted from- the ‘societal
* perspective have démonstrated profitable returns oh mvest—

ments.”'** In Denmark, the budgetary impact and cost-
effectiveness of the national use of thrombolysis for stroke
administered via telemedicine was estimated. The results

58 " Mayo Clin Proc.

emonstrated that thrombolysis by telestroke network was
inant to conservative management.>* Studies con--

January 2009,84(1):53-64  +

ducte:d from the socu:tal perspective, compared with those

conducted from an institutional perspective, have a-fen-

dency to overestimate the total revenue. For example, when
telestroke consultations prevent unnecessary air. or ground

transfers, the savings accrued do not directly benefit the

health care mstltutlon that is investing the capital. There-

fore, from the sponsoring institution’s perspective, there is -
a perception that telemedicine is not a financially profitable .
" endeavor. In the absence of ongoing government grant

support, any telestroke-sponsoring institation must devise

a business model that produces a se]f-sustammg profitable -
_or break-even program :

REVIEW OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF A STATE
TELESTROKE NETWORK '

The Stroke Telemedicine for Anzona Rural Residents

(STARR) network currently consists of 2 1-hub, 2-spoke
telestroke system. The road to the creation and implemen-

tation of this network was arduous. In preparation, 2 Mayo

Clinic physicians (BMD., BJB)) visited previously es-

tablished telestroke networks and reviewed the available - .

telestroke technologies and equipment in 2005. In addition,

a statewide needs assessment was administered to all re- .
motely located hospitals with emergency departments in -

Arizona. This survey illustratéd the need for incréased

- access to stroke expertise in Arizona’s Tural commirnities,

assessed each institution’s current stroke resources, and

" demonstrated that most institutions were willing' to and! -

capable of participating in a télestroke initiative.'® In 2006,

- a collaboration was initiated between Mayo Clinic and the

University of California, San Diego, Stroke Team Remote

“Evaluation Using a Digital Observation Camera (STRoXE
lDOC) trial (clinicaltrials.gov identifier: NCT00283868). -

The foundation ‘was laid for a randomized controlled

“ -trial to test the feasibility of a telestroke consultation per-
. formed via BF Teclinologies’ STRokE DOC camera sys-
“ tem vs telephone’ consultation in Arizona. This study, °

STRokE DOC Arizona—The, Initial Mayo.Clinic Experi-

_ence (TIME) (clinicaltrials.gov identifier: NCT00623350),'%. - . °
- " was drranged to be a validation study of the University of

California, San Diego, STRokE DOC research trial. The

STARR group directors applied for an Arizona Department -
. of Health Services (ADHS) research grant in 2006 to.sup- -
~port 1 year-of STRokE DOC Arizona’ TIME research. In
" '2007 the group applied for additional grant funds to sup- ..
port expansion of the STARR network for 5 years. The

STARR team developed relationships ‘with various emer-

_géncy physicians and remote hospital ‘personnel to:begin

forming the necessary telestroke teams at all involved sites.

Yuma-and angmaﬁ Regional Medical Centers  were se-
lected as the spoke sites for the. STRokE DOC Arizona .

www . mayoclinicprocéedings.com
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trial and the overall STARR network. To initiate the

team conducted on-site visits and videoconferences. The
ADHS grant made it p0351ble to implement the telestroke
. system without mggsmg any start-up costs on the rural
hospitals. As the project progressed, a series of part-time
project managers were hired, and eventually a full-time
- project manager was brought onto the team. The STRokE
DOC Arizona TIME trial commenced in December 2007.
" During the first year of operation, the STARR network
‘used the BF Technologies camera system to perform
telestroke consultations at the 2 spoke sites (Figure 3). The
Digital Imaging and Communication in Medicine System
was used for neuroimaging transmission. Four Mayo Clinic
" 'board-certified vascular neurologists shared the telestroke
on-call duties (24 hours per day 7 days per week). A
- dedicated toll-free telestroke hotline and group paging sys-
tem. was established for the spoke centers to alert the on-

B

poke sites and complete necessary training, the STARR

" call stroke neurologist. Although teleconsultations were

‘'generally easy to perform, occasional minor and major
technological difficulties were noted.

From December 1; 2007, to May 31, 2008, the Mayo
Clinic Hospital hub received approximately 16 hotline acti-
vations per month (2 per spoke center per week). Half of

liminary telephone screening. On average, 30% of all
ients with stroke who received a full consultation were
etermined to be eligible for thrombolysis. Accordingly,
‘thrombolysis adiinistration for eligible patients with

* stroke increased 10- to 20-fold from the participating spoke

B hospitals' historic baseline in the first 6 months of the
. -program (from approximately 0.5 to 1.0 per hospital per
-year to approximately 10 per hospital per year),

The STARR network experience has shown that a sue-
cessful network is the product of hard-working, dedicated

- ‘professionals at both the hub and spoke. Regular communi-
cation between hub and spoke is essential for:maintaining
enthusiasm for the project, good climical practice guide-

.. lines, and troubleshooting of various logistical and techni-

" ¢al complications that may arise. A weekly or ‘monthly .

‘newsletter with updates, congratulations, and feedback is a
~ -useful mechanism for sustaining this open communication.
~Using the data derived from the Arizona state needs assess-

“'ment,” the STARR network planned to expand by adding 4,

- additional spoke sites (Figure 4). When selecting new

("~ be calls did not meet stroke alert criteria on the basis of

e -spokes for the network, the team considered the following

- aspetts: size of the spoke hospital, volume of patients with
" stroke, regional need for stroke services, and desire and
wﬂhngncss of the spoke personnel to participate. Several
“options arise when explormg expansion opportunities for

(.w:mstmg telestroke network. For instance, the team con-

red new equipment options, addition of new support -

FIGURE 3. The BF Technologies (San Dlego, CA) .Stroke Team
Remate Evaluation Using a Digital Observation Camera used for the
Stroke Telemedicine for Arizena Rural Residents study.

-personael to the team, development of a new method of
operation, addition of new metropolitan PSC hubs* and
-rccrmtment of additional vascular neurclogists. D1v1dmg .
* the progression of the network into stages allows for revis-

ing and improving the existing network.
Although the ADHS grant funding will support network

‘ expanswn for 5 years, transition to a self-sustaining busi- .
ness model is the expectation. This model would need to -
address internal (organizational, technical, and educa-. -
tional) and external (economic, legal, and market) business

factors that are identified by other telestroke networks as

_being important.® The Arizona Telemedicine Prograru, i

long-standing multidisciplinary medical and surgical state-
wide network, published its business model in 2005, which
could serve as a starting pomt »

RESEARCH ADVANCES IN STROKE TELEMEDICINE

Tclephénc guidance for acute stroke is'not a novel ap-
proach to overcoming the shortage of stroke neurologists in
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Established spoke sites:
¢ Kingman
¢ Yuma

Future potenttal spoke sltas:

.1 Chinle, Apathe ’
2 Varde Valley Madiical Conter
3 Northem Arizona Vetarans

Administration Health System

4 La Pxz Raglonal
S Cohre Vailey Community
6 Carondalst Holy Cross, Nogales
7 Sierra Vista

FIGURE 4. The Stroke Te!emedtcme for Arizona Rural Residents network map ouﬂlnrng hub

and spoke (current and potential) hospitals,

. both urban and rural environments. The telephone. stroke. -
consultation has a natural appeal in terms of its Iong history
of use, universal availability, low cost,and simplicity. Frey
et al’* showed that 2 “drip and ship” (ie, intravenous throm-
bolysis initiated at remote hospital followed by transport
to PSC) tPA treatment algorithm via telephone stroke con-
sultation was as effective and time-efficient as standard
face-to-face PSC evaluation of patients with stroke, Fur-
thermore, Vaishnav et al”® published a rctrospcctlvc survey
of rural patients who received thrombolysis by telephone-
assisted stroke consultation. The authors concluded that .
this protocol was safe, practical, and effective with treat-

ment times that did not differ significantly from pubhshed ‘

randomized controlled trials.
New stroke AY tclemedlcmc consultation systems-must

" bE c‘:’bmpared"wﬁb’ standard; telephone-guided protocols.

Randomized controlled trials. that compare AV telemed-
_icine with telephone stroke consultations include the Uni-
, versity .of California, San Diego, STRokE DOC trial
(chmcaltnals .gov identifier; NCT00283868), Mayo Clinic
- STRokE DOC Arizona TIME (clinicaltrials gov identifier:
NCT00623350), and TRUST-tPA: Therapeutic Trial
-Evaluating Efficacy of Telemedicine (TELESTROKE) of
Patients with Acute Su-oke {(clinicaltrials.gov identifier:
NCT00279149) The Umvers1ty of California, San Diego,’
STRokE DOC study was the first of these 3 trials to be
published and was made available online on August 3,
2008. Meyer et al*® reportéd that correct decisions concern-

~ ing suitability for thrombolysis were made more often in
_ the telemedicine group than in the telephone group (98% ¥s
829:; odds ratio, 10.9; 95% confidence interval, 2.7-44 6;
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P=0009). Stroke telemedicine consultations seem to result
in more accurate decision making compared with tele-

+ phone consultations. The completion of remaining trials

and publication of the results will provide additional infor-
mation about the comparison of telemcdmme and “tele-
phone consultation in stroke care.

Through systematic review, 20 tclcstroke networks

were identified (15 in North Ameérica and 5 in Europc)
(Figure 5). Twelve of these networks have published their
telestroke research experiences: Partners Telestroke Cen-
ter,! Telemedic Project for Integrative Stroke Care 344
Remote Evaluation of Acute Ischemi¢ Stroke,>*** Tele-
medicine i Stroke in Swezbia,* Maryland Brain Attack
Center,” STARR,'“* University of Pittsburgh,*® STRckE
DOC, 124057 Michigan Stroke Network,® Ontario Telehealth

Network Telestroke Program ** University of Texas," and

-

Emergency Neurology Network-Stroke®® (Table 5). Estab- -

lished networks with published data are relatively small in

size and scope and receive manageable call -fréqucncigs. ‘
" Few technical complications were repotted. A high propor-
- tion of telestroke consultations resulted in thrombolysis.

Quality outcome measures indicating a need for improve-

ment included speed and efficiency of the consultation and
care and rates of symptomatic mtracramal hemorrhagc in -

thrombolysm recipients.

THE FUTURE' OF TELEMEDICINE
IN THE NEUROSCIENCES "

The future of telemedicine in the neurosciences encom- -
_passes clinical, research, and education applications. Most
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16 TEMPiS, Bavaria, Germany
17 TESS, Swabla, Germany
18 RUN-Stroke, France

19 STENO Stroke Network, Unlversity of Erlangen, Erangen, Germany .
20  Helsinki University Central Hospital, University of Helsinki, Helsinki, Fintand

United States

STARR, Mayo Clinic Arlzona, Phoenix

STRokE DOC, University of Californla San Diego, San Diego

REACH, Medical Collegs of Georgla, Augusta :
Partners Telestroke Center, Massachusetts General Hospital, Boston
Maryland Brain Attack Center, University of Maryland, Baltimore
Michigan Stroke Network, St Joseph Mercy Haspital, Detroit
University of Texas Health Sclences Center, Houston

University of Pittsburgh Medlcal Center, Plttsburgh, PA

Utah Telehealth Network, University of Utah, Salt Lake City
University of California Los Angeles, Los Angeles

Renown Institute for Neurosclence, Reno, NV

Colorado Neurological Stroke Center, Englewood

Canada

13 Ontario Telehealth Network Telestroke Program, Toronta, ON _ .
14  Alberta Provincial Stroke Strategy Telestroke Inltlative, Calgary and Edmonton, AB
15  British Columbia Provincial Telastroke Initlative, Yancouver, BC- )

Europe

" FIGURE'S. Map of cutrent North American and European telestroke networks. REACH = Remote Evaluation of Acute Ischemic -
Stroke; RUN-Stroke = Emergency Neurology Network-Stroke; STARR = Stroke Telemedicine for Arizona Rural;Residents;
" STENO = Stroke Network of Unlversity of Efangen; STRokE DOC = Stroke Téam Remoate Evaluation Using a Digital Observation -
Camera; TEMPIS = Telemedic Project for Integrative Stroke Care; TESS = Telemedicine in Stroke In Swabia. _

countries gxpeﬁenCE' a perennial shortage of clinical neuro-
" science $pecialists outside metropolitan and urban sectors.
Organizing régionally specific stroke systems of care that
include telemedicine is an accepted solution to the global
stroke épidemic &' In addition to consideration of telestroke
. ~nplications, the use of telemedicine for all clinical neuro-
nce disciplines is being pursued on an international
528 Telemedicine is useful not only in the emergency
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departrrieﬁt- but also in the prehospital ambulance setting,”

the intensive care unit, rehabilitation, and outpatient-stroke
prevention clinics. e

A developed telestroke network may offer an excellent
forum for collaborative clinical reséarch between univer-
sity stroke centers and smaller remote hospitals® Hub
hospitals engaged in acute stroke trials could use telemedi-

cine to screen, obtain consent from, enrol}, randomize,
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TABLE 5. Telestroke Research Experlences of 12 Networks

Univ of
Maryland Pittsburgh Michigan  Ontario  Univ of
Brain Attack Medical STRokE Stoke  Telehealth Texas RUN-
PDC“ LSS"M REACH*®® TESS* Center STARR'™ Center’® DOC% Network® Network®™ HSC'. Stoke®
Laocation Boston, Bavasﬁ Augusta, Swabia, Baltimore, Phoenix, Pitrsbnrgh San Dlagu Dc,trmt. Taronto, Houston, France
‘MA Germaiy GA~  Gemany - MD AZ PA CA Ml ON ™

No. of hubs/spoke ‘ ) ) . )

hospitals . NAT 2412 . 1/8 17 mn 12 14 1/4 1122 2n 12 ) i1
No, of teleconsultants NA 5 5 4 5 4 NA 3 NA [ 3 NA
Srudy doration (mo) 7 20 - 26 18 36 6 15 44 9 34 - 13 NA
Study consultations : . . K . . :

pecformed 24 396 194 153 23 33 33 223 90 .1 Na, 1000
Rate of calls to hub .. -
'_ per24 b [AX ) NA 0.25 . 028 0.05 0,18 007 0.17 033 009 NA NA
ED arrival to

consultation {min) 70 NA 44 59 NA 35 NA 7 NA NA NA NA
Mean consultation . .

duration {min) NA 15 NA 15 NA 55 NA 28 NA . NA NA NA
ED arrival to tPA {min) 108 78 105 = NA . NA . 124 70 110 NA NA 83 NA
Stroke onset to tPA : ' -

{min} 124 NA | 111 NA NA 158 NA 151 NA NA NA NA
No. of tPA ’ .

administrations 6 86 30 2 5 10 NA 56 16 27 14 NA
Evaluated patients :

receiving A (%) 40 2 16 1 24 30 NA ] 18 30 NA NA
tPA protocol : ’ :

violations (%) 0 NA NA Q0 NA 40 6 14 NA NA NA NA .
SICH/ASICH (%) — —. 16.7/167_ B5/MNA___ . 0. __. 500__ NAMNA .. 100 NAMNA __7NA_ . NANA _ NANA_ NANA 00 _..
Technical . .

complications (%) 7 NA 3 i) 9 67 NA 19 NA NA L2 NA
Mimics (% of ‘ ‘

consultations) 33 12 9 .2 NA NA NA 3 NA NA NA NA
Consultatians resulting i : ) : )

in transfer (%) 77 K T2 NA 4 45 NA . 66 36 NA © NA - NA

* ASICH = asymptomatic intracranial hetorrhiage; ED = :um-genq; department, HSC= Heslth Sciences Center; NA not available; PTC = Partners Telestroks Ccnter;
REACH = Remote Evaluation of Acute Ischemic Stroke; RU'N-Stmks = Emergency Neurnlogy Network-Stroke; SICH = symptomatic intracranial hémorrhage; STARR =
Stroke Telemedicine far Arizena Rural Residents; STRokE DOC = Stroke Team Remote Evaluation Using & Digital Observation Camers; TEMPIS = Telemedic Pro]zc( for
Integrative Stroke Care; TESS = Telemedicine in Stroke in Swabm. tPA= lusue plasminogen acnvntnr Univ = umiversity,

treat, and follow up patients. Spoke subinvestigators could
partner with experienced hub hospital investigators to form
a research tear. On-site 'pharmacies would be needed at
each spoke. For more complex experimental intra-arterial
thcrapu:s telemedicine could be used to identify chgible
patients, obtain their consent, and randomize them before
transport from spoke to hub hospltal for definitive treat-
ment.!! Although several authors have suggested that
telemedical assessment could realistically be used to select
panents for clinical trials, its actual use for this purpose has
not been reported.T!! 21266483 Contubutmg factors could i in- -
clude the research mexPenence of some Spoke hospnals
that do not apply to an IRB, long interhospital transport
* times, spoke reimbursement issues; and hub IRB discom-
fort with the oversight of off-site research.

Thé telemedicine system can also sérve as an educa-
tional tool. Spoke initiation training, continuing medical
education lectures, stroke education, and quality assess-
ment and improvement meetings can be delivered via the

" network. For example; the network could serve as a plat-
form from which to teach spoke centers about novel stroke
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therapies and their implementation.! Telementoring facili-
tates the training and supervision-of physicians in acute
stroke practice at both the hub and spoke hospitals. -

CONCLUSION

Since Levine and Gorman proposcd the application of
telemedicine for strtoke in 1999, the field has been advanc-

‘ing at an international level. The architecture and design of
: rural and urban telestroke networks are now better defined.

The technology has been adaptcd to suit the needs-of an
emergency, time-sensitive, acute stroke encounter. Well-
designed studies-have shown that this consultative modal-
ity is valid, accurate, and reliable. Numerous telestroke

networks exist worldwide, and most of these networks.

have published their fmplementation experiences and early

ottcome results. Importantly, sophisticated 2-way AV

telestroke consultations are being rigorously. compared
with simple pragmatic telephone consultations in prospec-

" tive randomized controlled trials. Successfully delivered

promises of telestroke include remote instant expert stroke

www.mayoclinicprocgedings.com
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oses, delivery of short-term therapies, and secondary

ention advice. Promises of telestroke applications that
have. been slower to materialize include widespread na-
-Honal and international telestroke networks that offer stan-

" dardized ev1dence-based care, telestroke research networks
for testing hew stroketherapies, standardized measure-
ments of telestroke quality of care, and acceptable guide-
lines for telestroke practice. The long-term sustainability
and growth of telestroke practice remain threatened by
um-esolved legal, economic, and market factors. Telestroke
pracunoncrs and investigators should focus attention on
.analyzing and solving the business issues of the practice to
allow further advances in the télestroke field and longevity
of telestioke practice.
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Senate Appropriations Committee

February 13, 2009

Chairman Holmberg and Committee Members:

Thank you for the opportunity to speak with you today regarding health information
technology and SB2332. I am Kimber Wraalstad, President/CEO of Presentation
Medical Center in Rolla and a member of the North Dakota Health Information
Technology Steering Committee.

I would like to speak to four issues:

1. Impact of Health Information Technology to Patient Care

2. Bottineauw/Rolla/Stanley and Northwest Alliance for Information Technology
Projects

3. Cost of Health Information Technology

4. The Rationale for the Proposed Grant

Thank you for your consideration and I will be happy to address any questions.



EMR Adoption Model Structure Ensures Objectivity

* All application capabilities within each stage must be operational before that stage can be achieved.

= All lower stages must have been achieved before a higher level is considered as achieved.

* Ahospital can achieve Stages 3-6 if it has met all of the application requirements for a single patient care
service (e.g. single nursing floor, cardiology servige),

* Using the rules above, additional pofnts are given for the implementation of applications in stages higher
than the ane fully achieved by the healthcare organization. In this fashion, other implemantation paths than
those prescribed by the stages can be taken into consideration for correlation with quality and
financial research.

Stage Description
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SB2332 — Health Information Technology
Senate Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room
February 13, 2009, 10:00 a.m,
Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, my name is Darrell Vanyo from Fargo. |
am here in support of SB2332. Two years ago, legislation was passed providing for the
formation of the Health Information Technology (HIT) Steering Committee. The
legislation called for this committee to be appointed by the Governor and to be
representative of various agencies, associations, providers, payers, and consumers
throughout the state. Tam a member of that steering committee and 1 am also co-chair of

the Health Information Exchange (HIE} workgroup, a sub-committee of the HIT Steering

Committee.

For the past two years, the HIE workgroup has discussed varied approaches to the state-
wide exchange of health information, patient identification, security/privacy issues and
the engagement of all providers and health agencies throughout the state. The workgroup
has even reviewed a number of vendor solutions; but ultimately reached the conclusion
that a funding source is necessary to build the foundation and jump start the entire

Process.

To date, external funding for health care providers has come by way of very limited
federal and Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota grant monies. Blue Cross Blue
Shield of ND has awarded $1.4 million toward 32 funded projects over the past § years

and North Dakota health care facilities have received over $9 million in federal grants



since 1999, While this may sound impressive, these funds have provided only seed
money to support partial investments for technology. Only recently, have the proposed
variations of the Federal Economic Stimulus Bill referenced the inclusion of $2 billion
dollars for HIT loans, grants and technical assistance. There are further inclusions for up
to $17 billion in Medicare and Medicaid payment incentives to be paid out through 2014
for those health providers making use of HIT/HIE. Beginning in 2014, these incentives
will give way to penalties being invoked for those providers not on board with health

information exchange.

So why is this a problem for the state? First, there is talk that the federal monies may
only come if there are state matching funds. Without the state appropriating dollars for
the next biennium, North Dakota stands to losc significant federal dollars for the
advancement of HIT. Second, the burden for health providers to take on this additional
expense is very significant — particularly for the smaller rural providers who are
struggling to keep their doors open. They really do need a helping hand to access
funding, albeit on the state or federal level. Third, the exchange of health information
electronically requires that there be electronically stored information. Today throughout
North Dakota, 38% of rural hospitals, 47% of primary care clinics, 16% of public health
units, and 23% of long term care facilities do not have electronic medical records (EMR).
EMR’s are the basic foundation needed to springboard all providers toward the use of
HIT/HIE. As indicated by providers, the most significant barrier to implementing

EMR’s is the lack of funding and current reimbursement. If HIE is to be statewide, all



providers need assistance, in varied degrees, to get to a level playing field. To that end,

external dollars are nccessary or providers will find themselves in a financial death spiral.

In conclusion, 1 would like to also address the need for a statewide HIT director and

office, which of course requires a portion of the appropriation being requested.

Every state that has had any success in moving toward the statewide exchange of health
information has had a statewide director and has had a significant infusion of dollars from
the state. Every good cause requires strong and dedicated leadership. The volunteers
making up the current HIT Steering Committee have dedicated countless hours to this
cffort over the past two years. Their continued dedication will still be needed in the
future. However, the task of coordinating the efforts of all throughout the state in order to
evaluate vendors, make decisions about those vendors, oversee implementation efforts,
administer the flow of grant monies to providers and agencies, and coordinate activities
so that all current systems within a providers office can be integrated into a statewide
system allowing for the secure exchange of health information can only be done well and

expeditiously with a dedicated director.

[ hope this has helped you better understand the rationale for this bill. I ask for your

support of SB2332 and the requested appropriation. Thank you.
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Health Information Technology Definitions

NAHIT, ONCHIT Announce Health Information Technology Definitions w

The National Alliance for Health Information Technology {NAHIT) has finalized definitions for
six critical health information technology terms, according to an announcement on the NAHIT
Web site.

HHS’ Office of the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology (ONCHIT}
sponsored the definitions project.

Project participants determined that dual interpretations of health information exchange
(HIE) as both a process and an entity, created the need for a sixth term—health information
organization {HIQ). The additional term clarifies the difference between the process of
information exchange and the oversight and accountability functions necessary to support it.

The finalized definitions include:

« Electronic medical record" An electronic record of I"aalth-related information on an
individual that can be created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized
clinicians and staff within one health care organization.

Electronic health record: An electronic record of health-related information on an
individual that conforms to nationally recognized interoperability standards and that
can be created, managed, and consulted by authorized clinicians and staff across more
than one health care organization.

Personal health record: An electronic record of health-related information on an
individual that conforms to nationally recognized interoperability standards and that
can be drawn from multiple sources while being managed, shared, and controlled by
the individual.

Health information exchange: The electronic movement of health-related information
among organizations according to nationally recognized standards.

Health information organization: An organization that oversees and governs the
exchange of health-related information among organizations according to nationally
recognized standards.

Regional health information organization: A health information organization that brings
together health care stakeholders within a defined geographic area and governshealth
information exchange among them for the purpose of improving health and care in
that community.

To read NAHIT's report to ONCHIT, including the definitions, visit:
http://www.nahit.org/images/pdfs/HITTermsFinalReport 051508.pdf.

To read the HAHIT announcement go to http://www.nahit.org/.
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ND Senate Appropriations Committee Hearing — SB2332 )
Friday, February 13, 2009

od moming Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee.

.ank you for this opportunity to speak on behalf of the ND HIT Steering Committee with regard to Senate Bill No.
2332 introduced by Senators Lee and Robinson and Representatives Weisz and Kaldor,
My name is Lynette Dickson; [ am a Program Director at the Center for Rural Health, University of North Dakota and
have been serving as the Chair of the Steering Committee. This Committee has 22 members in addition to over 45
additional stakeholders that serve in five work groups (HIE, Communication/Education; Legislative/Policy;
Privacy/Security; Finance/Resources).
My colleagues have shared information with regard to their area of expertise and involvement with HIT Steering
Committee. T would like to provide background information with regard to how the request was developed for SB
2332. We have prepared this document which provides more detail with regard to the requested appropriation
{(Handout).
Since the committee was legislatively created in 2007 without appropriation we were determined to not let our state
fall further behind so we continued to meet on a regular basis to learn from other states, educate ourselves on lessons
learned on local EMR implementation as well as how other state level health information exchange(HIE) models are
working. In the past three years, the Center for Rural Health has supported this statewide effort by using

Iproximately $90,000 federal funds from HRSA grants, we administer. These funds have supported monthly

—_ ference calls, website development and maintenance, face to face meetings, speaker fees, printing/copying of
.douts as well as a statewide HIT survey, analysis and final report (handout). In addition BCBSND has provided
financial support; ND Healthcare Review, Minot conducted the statewide survey of clinics not to mention the
numerous in-kind contributions through the member organizations volunteer efforts.  With extraordinary dedication

and effort on behalf of North Dakota this has taken place.

Kory Mertz, Policy Associate with National Congress on State Legislators (NCSL) shared with me yesterday that the
“vast majority of states have established an office working on health IT efforts” which is naturally conducive to

moving things forward.

The Steering Committee is proposing in this Bill that a state office be established which is dedicated to this effort with
full time staff, with the appropriate background and expertise, which would work with the existing Steering Committee
serving as an Advisory Group to allow the much needed work to be done in a more accelerated manner. Therefore the
Department of Health developed an estimated cost of hiring a HIT Officer, Project Assistant and a portion for
operating expenses for a total of $273,726.

Second ~ The proposed grant program was developed based on the 1) need demonstrated in the HIT statewide surveys;

abthe experience of the CRH administering HIT grants; and 3) the work of the HIT Funding and Resource Work
‘Jp, who researched and reviewed ten other state supported HIT grant programs such as MN, AZ, NY and FL to

name a few.,



On the handout you will see the basic components with regard to eligible health care facilities, a required matching

fund (25% with 10% cash match and 15% in-kind match); require collaboration between three (a¢ minimim) or more

eligible health care entities which are not owned by any one entity, with the intent of facilitating collaberation; and
.igible technology to be purchased or upgraded would be required to be standards based and meet interoperability

specifications of an approved certification body.

The grant program would have three levels:

1} Readiness and Planning Grants:

Total number of grants to be funded: 20 (minimum of three facilities)
Minimum number of participating facilities: 60

Amount of each grant: $45,000 x 20

Total Readiness and Planning Grants: $900,000

2) Implementation Grants

A. Electronic Medical Records (or related technology) Implementation Projects
Total number of grants to be funded: 4 (minimum of three facilities)

Minimum number of participating facilities: 12

Amount of each grant: $900,000

Total number of Implementation Grants: $3,600,000

B. Telehealth Implementation Pilot Projects
Total number of grants to be funded: 3 (minimum of three facilities)

inimum number of participating facilities: 9
mount of each grant: $50,000 x 3 = $150,000

3) Health Information Exchange (HIE) Collaborative Grants
Total number of grants to be funded: 2 (minimum of three facilities)
Minimum number of participating facilities: 6

Amount of each grant: $500,000 x 2

Total HIE Grants: $1,000,000

Total Amount of Grants: $5,650,000

Total Appropriation $5,923,726
The need, as my colleagues and the survey results have demonstrated, far out ways the available funding given the

number of facilities and the range of HIT applications. This concludes my testimony, thank you again for this

opportunity to speak on behalf of the Steering Committee. I would be pleased to respond to any questions.



February 6, 2009

2> North Dakota

Connecting North Dakota for a healthier future

PROPOSED REQUEST for APPROPRIATION - 2009 Legislative Session

1) Establish the ND Health Information Technelogy (HIT) Office to be located within
the ND Department of Health.

This DOH-HIT Office will exist to:

Serve and maintain relationships with ND HIT Steering Committee (Advisory Committee) and other
public and private partners for the purpose of insuring coordination of information systems planning,
development, implementation and electronic exchange of information.

Identify improvements in the management and use of public health and health care data to assess and
improve the health status of North Dakota, through collaborative efforts.

Serve as liaison between state agencies (e.g. DOH, DHS and I'TD) and the HIT Steering Committee
(Advisory Committee) and other

Bridge gaps and link public health professional staff and clinical staff to the technology staff. The
position assures linking internal and external partners around public health data and informatics
1ssues to support better use of data to guide public health and health care practice.

Provide oversight for administration of the grant program.

2) Create two positions to staff the ND HIT Office:

HIT Officer

This position reports to the State Medical Officer, Department of Health.

Knowledge, Skills and Ability:

This position is supervisory staff in the DOH- Health Information Technology Office and oversees the
performance of the project assistant and support staff. This position will be leading a wide range of planning,
assessment, policy development, and other activities related to informatics, the incumbent will be required to
possess strong core planning skiils, and informatics skills, including a working knowledge of the various
planning methodologies for defining the needs for information system applications and the data standards
necessary for HIT interoperability.

The incumbent is also required to be skilled in group facilitation, consensus-building, communications
strategies, and translating complex HIT terms and concepts for non-IT staff,

This position must also have: strong interpersonal communication skills, with an ability to generate consensus
among a variety of different perspectives; project management skills necessary to plan, organize and manage
projects; and a high level of skill in the use of computers for data processing, presentations, and report writing,
A sound understanding of public health, health care systems, health data, and health data standards is required.
The incumbent must be able to work closely on teams and lead or participate in respectful joint decision-
making,

Project Assistant

This position reports to the HIT Officer/Director

Knowledge, Skills and Ability:

Knowledge and experience with grant program development, RFP and contracting processes.
Excellent ability to organize and develop and accomplish short and long range goals and objectives.
Excellent written and verbal communication skills in providing technical assistance,

Ability to prepare and review reports and papers on the results of grant projects and other activities.
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Direct operation of the DOH-HIT Office and administer grant program:
(Cost based on 24 months)
Personnel — Salary/Fringe (Based on 24 months): $247,322
HIT Officer/Director (100% FTE) and Project Assistant (50% F1E)
Operating (phone, travel, rent, printing, etc.): $26,250
Total DOH Administrative Cost: $273,726

3) Amend the existing statute to change the ND HIT Steering Committee (same members) to the
ND HIT Advisory Group which will provide direction to the DOH-HIT Office and Grant Program.

4) Establish a Grant Program

Grant Program Title:

Improving Access, Quality and Patient Safety through Health Information Technology (HIT)

The overarching goal for this grant program is to improve access, quality and patient safety, through the effective
adoption and implementation of electronic exchange of health information within and among health care facilities in a
given region (e.g. electronic health records, regional health information exchange, telehealth, etc.).

Eligible health care entities: All rural health clinics and community health centers; hospitals; licensed
nursing facilities; local public health units, EMS, ambulance services and nonprofit entities(with the purpose
of providing health information exchange coordination governed by a representative and other providers of
health or health care services) approved by the ND HIT Steering Committee.

All proposed grant projects will require collaboration between three (at minimum) or more eligible health
care entities which are not owned by any one entity. The intent of the grant program is to facilitate the
formation of collaborative efforts between distinct corporate entities.

Matching Funds: Grant funds shall be awarded on a 25% match basis for the total grant amount awarded.
Applicants shall be required to provide 10% in the form of cash match and 15% in-kind match, such as staff or
services.

Proposed Funding Period: July 1, 2009-June 30, 2011

Eligible Technology Solutions: All grantees will be required to purchase or upgrade new health I'T
products, that are standards based (e.g. Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel
[HITSP)]) and meet interoperability specifications of approved certification bodies for the specific
type of technology being purchased (e.g. Certification Commission for Health Information
Technology (CCHIT) for EMRs; National EMS Information System[NEMSIS} for EMS systems).

1. Readiness Assessment and Planning Grants:
Purpose: To support the structured planning activities that will prepare for successful adoption/implementation of
technology solutions. Activities may include: initial stages of collaboration with partners, readiness assessment,
development of education/training programs for healthcare professionals and staff, workflow analysis within
individual health care facilities as well as between community/regional facilities, business planning, determining
specific network HIT functions.
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 20 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of Each Grant: $45,000

Total Planning Grants Funded: $500,000
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IL.Implenientation Grants

A. Electronic Medical Records (or related technelogy) Implementation Projects

Purpose: To support communities/networks who can clearly demonstrate they have completed a structured planning
process and are in the position, at the time of submitting an application, to begin implementation of electronic health
record, e-prescribing or other related technology , including NEMSIS technology.

Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 4 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)

Amount of Each Grant: $900,000

Total EMR Grants Funded: $3,600,000

B. Telehealth Implementation Pilot Projects
Purpose: To support communities/regions who can clearly demonstrate the completion of the planning and readiness
phase and are in the position to begin implementation of a new or expanded telehealth program (e.g. teledialysis,
telestroke, telemental health, ete.)
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 3 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of each Grant: $50,000

Total Telehealth Grants Funded:$150,000

111, Heilth Information Exchange(HIE).Collaborative Grants

Purpose: To support existing or newly established collaborative who can clearly demonstrate the completion of the
planning and readiness phase and are in the position to begin to connect and facilitate the exchange of health
information between eligible health care entities in a selected geographical region.

Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 2 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)

Amount of each Grant: $500,000

Total HIE Grants Funded: $1,000,000
Total Amount of Grants: $5,650,000

TOTAL APPROPRIATION $5,923,726
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Testimony in Support of Engrossed SB No. 2332 ,‘%
House Human Services Committee
March 16, 2009

Chairman Weisz and Committee Members, I’'m Dean Haas and I

represent the North Dakota Medical Association.

The North Dakota Medical Association supports SB No. 2332 as a
vehicle for assisting our North Dakota health systems develop and
coordinate health information technology. Health information
technology is fast becoming a key component of state and federal
efforts to improve health care and is a means for facilitating
quality improvement and cost control. Appropriate, well-
coordinated health information technology strategies can bring
together vital pieces of patient data essential for providing quality
care. In addition, the federal government has recently adopted
initiatives in the stimulus bill to boost health information

technology.

Despite documented advantages and federal support for HIT
initiatives, ﬁhysician adoption of HIT nationally has been slow.
Research on HIT adoption rates indicates that concerns about high
cost, uncertainty of return on investment after adoption, and worry
over the usability and obsolescence of new technologies rank
highest among reasons HIT has not yet been adopted. Doubts
about the privacy and security of patient data, practice compliance
with HIPAA legislation, and the potential for inappropriate
disclosure of patient information to third parties rank just behind
financial concerns, Initiatives such as that provided in SB No.

2332 provide incentives and the means to overcome these barriers.



The North Dakota Medical Association is a member of the ND Health
Information Technology Steering Committee created last legislative session to
facilitate the adoption and use of health information technology and exchange
to improve health care quality, patient safety and overall efficiency of health
care and public health services in North Dakota (NDCC 23-01-31). SB 2332
would re-establish that committee and authorize it make recommendations for
implementing a statewide interoperable health information infrastructure,
develop a grant program to assist in the planning and implementation of HIT
projects, and establish an entity for accepting and expending contributions,

gifts and grants from the federal government.

We request that the committee vote a “Do Pass” on Engrossed SB 2332 and re-
refer the bill to the Appropriations Committee for further consideration of the
appropriation language and consideration of provisions of the federal stimulus
bill, HR 1, the “American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,” which
includes funding to strengthen the HIT infrastructure, and provides grants to
states for health information exchanges and loan programs. A summary of the

HIT provisions of the stimulus bill is attached.



Health information technoloqy (HIT)
Provides approximately $19 billion for Medicare and Medicaid Health Information
Technology (HIT) incentives over five years.

Creates statutory authority for the Office of the National Coordinator for Health
Information Technology (ONCHIT) within HHS; President Bush created ONCHIT by
Executive Order in 2004,

Establishes HIT Policy and Standards Committees that are comprised of public and
private stakeholders (e.g., physicians) to provide recommendations on the HIT policy
framework, standards, implementation specifications, and certification criteria for
electronic exchange and use of health information.

HHS to adopt through the rule-making process an initial set of standards,
implementation specifications, and certification criteria by Dec. 31, 2009.

ONCHIT will be authorized to make available an HIT system to providers for a nominal
fee.

Provides financial incentives through the Medicare program to encourage physicians
and hospitals to adopt and use certified electronic health records (EHR) in a
meaningful way (as defined by the Secretary and may include reporting quality
measures). Authorizes ONCHIT to provide competitive grants to states for loans to
providers.

Medicare incentive payments will be based on an amount equal to 75% of the
Secretary’s estimate of allowable charges, up to $15,000 for the first payment year.
Incentive payments would be reduced in subsequent years: $12,000, $8,000, $4,000,
and $2000, ending in 2015. Physicians who report using an EHR that is also capable
of e-prescribing will no longer be eligible for the e-prescribing bonuses established by
the Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPAY); they will be
eligible for HIT incentives only to avoid “double-dipping.”

Early adopters (including those who have already implemented HIT systems) whose
first payment year is 2011 or 2012 will be eligible for an initial, larger incentive
payment up to $18,000. In 2014, the payment limit for new adopters will be $12,000.
For eligible professionals in a rural health professional shortage area, the incentive
payment amounts will be increased by 10 percent.

Also provides incentives for eligible physicians, hospitals, Federally-qualified health
centers, rural health clinics, and other providers under Medicaid.

Physicians who do not adopt/use a certified HIT system will face reduction in their
Medicare fee schedule payments of -1% in 2015, -2% in 2016, and -3% in 2017 and
beyond. E-prescribing penalties sunset after 2014,

Both bills allow HHS to increase penalties beginning in 2019, but penalties cannot
exceed -5%. Exceptions will be made on a case-by-case basis for significant
hardships (e.g., rural areas without sufficient Internet access).

Federal privacy and security laws (HIPAA) were expanded to protect patient health
information, including: defining which actions constitute a breach (including some
inadvertent disclosures), imposing restrictions on certain disclosures, sales, and
marketing of protected health information, requiring an accounting of disclosures to a
patient upon request, authorizing increased civil monetary penalties for HIPAA
violations, and granting authority to state attorneys general to enforce HIPAA.

© American Medical Association 2009 4
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PROPOSED REQUEST for APPROPRIATION — 2009 Legislative Session

1) Establish the ND Health Information Technology (HIT) Office to be located within
the ND Department of Health,

This DOH-HIT Office will exist to:

» Serve and maintain relationships with ND HIT Steering Committee (Advisory Committee) and other
public and private partners for the purpose of insuring coordination of information systems planning,
development, implementation and electronic exchange of information.

» Identify improvements in the management and use of public health and health care data to assess and
improve the health status of North Dakota, through collaborative efforts.

¢ Serve as liaison between state agencies (c.g. DOH, DHS and ITD) and the HIT Steering Committee
(Advisory Committee) and other

* Bridge gaps and link public health professional staff and clinical staff to the technology staff. The
position assures linking internal and external partners around public health data and informatics
issues to support better use of data to guide public health and health care practice.

s Provide oversight for administration of the grant program.

2) Create two positions to staff the ND HIT Office:
HIT Officer
This position reports to the State Medical Officer, Department of Health.
Knowledge, Skills and Ability:
This position is supervisory staff in the DOH- Health Information Technology Office and oversees the
performance of the project assistant and support staff. This position will be leading a wide range of planning,
assessment, policy development, and other activities related to informatics, the incumbent will be required to
possess strong core planning skills, and informatics skills, including a working knowledge of the various
planning methodologies for defining the needs for information system applications and the data standards
necessary for HIT interoperability.
The incumbent is also required to be skilled in group facilitation, consensus-building, communications
strategies, and translating complex HIT terms and concepts for non-IT staff.
This position must also have: strong interpersonal communication skills, with an ability to generate consensus
among a variety of different perspectives; project management skills necessary to plan, organize and manage
projects; and a high level of skill in the use of computers for data processing, presentations, and report writing,
A sound understanding of public health, health care systems, health data, and health data standards is required.
The incumbent must be able to work closely on teams and lead or participate in respectful joint decision-
making.

Project Assistant
This position reports to the HIT Officer/Director
Knowledge, Skills and Ability:
* Knowiedge and experience with grant program development, RFP and contracting processes.
= Excellent ability to organize and develop and accomplish short and long range goals and objectives.
e Excellent wntten and verbal communication skills in providing technical assistance.
»  Ability to prepare and review reports and papers on the results of grant projects and other activities.

et |
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Direct operation of the DOH-HIT Office and administer grant program:
(Cost based on 24 months)
Personnet — Salary/Fringe (Based on 24 months): $247,322
HIT Officer/Director (100% FTE} and Project Assistant (50% FTE)
Operating (phone, travel, rent, printing, etc.): $26,250
Total DOH Administrative Cost: $273,726

3) Amend the existing statute to change the ND HIT Steering Committee (same members) to the
ND HIT Advisory Group which will provide direction to the DOH-HIT Office and Grant Program.

4) Establish a Grant Program

Grant Program Title:

Improving Access, Quality and Patient Safety through Health Information Technology (HIT)

The overarching goal for this grant program is to improve access, quality and patient safety, through the effective
adoption and implementation of electronic exchange of health information within and among health care facilities in a
given region (e.g. electronic health records, regional health information exchange, telehealth, etc.).

Eligible health care entities: All rural health clinics and community health centers; hospitals; licensed
nursing facilities; local public health units and nonprofit entities(with the purpose of providing heaith
information exchange coordination governed by a representative and other providers of health or health care
services) approved by the ND HIT Steering Committee.

All proposed grant projects will require collaboration between three (at minimumj or more eligible health
care entities which are not owned by any one entity. The intent of the grant program is to facilitate the
formation of collaborative efforts between distinct corporate entities.

Matching Funds: Grant funds shall be awarded on a 25% match basis for the total grant amount awarded.
Applicants shall be required to provide 10% in the form of cash match and 15% in-kind match, such as staff or

services.

Proposed Funding Period: July 1, 2009-June 30, 2011

Eligible Technology Solutions: All grantees will be required to purchase or upgrade new health [T
products, that apply Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel(HITSP) interoperability
specifications and have Certification Commission for Health Information Technology (CCHIT)
certification.

1. Readiness Assessment and Planning Granls:

Purpose: To support the structured planning activities that will prepare for successful adoption/implementation of
technology solutions. Activities may include: initial stages of collaboration with partners, readiness assessment,
development of education/training programs for healthcare professionals and staff, workflow analysis within
individual health care facilities as well as between community/regional facilities, business planning, determining
specific network HIT functions.

Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 20 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)

Amount of Each Grant: $45,000
Total Planning Grants Funded: $900,000
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I Implementation Grants
A. Electronic Medical Records (or related technology) Implementation Projects
Purpose: To support communities/networks who can clearly demonstrate they have completed a structured planning
process and are in the position, at the time of submitting an application, to begin implementation of electronic health
record, e-prescribing or other retated technology.
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 4 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of Each Grant: $900,000
Total EMR Grants Funded: $3,600,000

B. Telehcalth Implementation Pilot Projects
Purpose: To support communities/regions who can clearly demonstrate the completion of the planning and readiness
phase and are in the position to begin implementation of a new or expanded telehealth program (e.g. teledialysis,
telestroke, telemental health, etc.)
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 3 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of each Grant: $50,000

Total Telehealth Grants Funded:$150,000

111, Health Information Exchange(HIE) Collaborative Grants
Purpose: To support existing or newly established collaborative who can clearly demonstrate the completion of the
planning and readiness phase and are in the position to begin to connect and facilitate the exchange of health
information between eligible health care entities in a selected geographical region.
Total Number of Grants to be Funded: 2 (Minimum of three facilities per grant)
Amount of each Grant: $500,000

Total HIE Grants Funded: $1,000,060

Total Amount of Grants: $5,650,000

TOTAL APPROPRIATION $5,923,726

Definitions _

Health Information Technology: The application of information processing involving both computer
hardware and software that deals with the storage, retrieval, sharing and use of healthcare information, data,
and knowledge for communication and decision making.

Electronic medical record: An electronic record of health-related information on an individual that can be
created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized clinicians and staff-within one health care
organization.

Electronic health record: An electronic record of health-related information on an individual that conforms
to nationally recognized interoperability standards and that can be created, managed, and consulted by
authorized clinicians and staff across more than one health care organization.

Health information exchange: The electronic movement of health-related information among organizations
according to nationally recognized standards.
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Senate Bill 2332 Associatione

Learn and Lives

American Stroke
Associations

House Human Services Committee

Chairman Wiesz and members of thelHouse Human Services Committee. | am June Herman,
Senior Director of Government Relations for the American Heart Association in North Dakota. | am
here today asking for your committee's support of SB 2332 and reinstating some of the important
appropriations that Senate Human Services felt important with this bill.

SB 2332 as originally introduced established the following:

« Formalizes a Health 1T adviscry group and Health IT office within the Department of Health
($500,000)

» Health IT funding — ($5,423,572) (see attachment})

Also attached to my testimony is a proposed amendment for your consideration that reinstates the
original appropriations as passed by Senate Human Services.

The American Heart Association’s support of SB 2332 has been from a patient perspective. Acute
events such as heart attack, cardiac arrest and stroke rely on access to health care and effective
and timely access to larger facilities with broader capabilities. 1t is important that rural communities
are able to maintain access to critical access hospitals when basic care is essential, and prompt
transfer when advance treatments can greatly improve patient outcomes. Health {T is a core
structure to ensure both rural hospitals remain viable and to share vital patient record information

when advance treatment is in the interest of the patient.

In the next several weeks more will be known on federal stimulus funds directed to Health IT, the
degree of any state match requirements, and the gap in ND hospital technology in order to compete
for federal HIT funding. Support is still very much needed to get the facilities, eépecially rural, to a
level of Eletronic Health Record (EHR) adoption in order to be a ‘meaningful user’ to apply for
federal funding. (Definition still to be defined by the Sec. DHHS). So far the discussion has been
that the hospital must use a certified EHR, be able to exchange quality data(what data TBD), be
part of a health information exchange(what is HIE TBD), and e-prescribing (clinics only); which will
be a requirement to be eligible to access the Medicare/Medicaid incentive dollars. Also important
to note, if physicians and hospitals are not ‘meaningful users’ of EHR the incentive program will be

phased in to penalties for not adopting.



Included in the original SB 2332 request is another important building block for improved stroke
care, as within it is the potential to fund special telemedicine projects, such as tele-stroke services
to provide acute stroke care. With a stroke, time lost is brain lost. SB 2332 provides for the
granting opportunities for tele-medicine efforts. Given hospital survey responses showing high
interest in tele-stroke, the granting program provides the opportunity for the piloting of tele-stroke
capabilities in the state, connecting “hub” hospitals with “spoke” hospitals. In other words, grants
providing public good beyond the capacity of individua! efforts, as we learned during Lincoln day

celebrations yesterday.

Telestroke networks are feasible and rapidly deployable at institutions that have well coordinated
clinical and IT expertise available, and should meet the implementation timetable connected to

federal stimulus funding.

In conclusion, | ask for your “Do Pass™ recommendation on SB 2332, amended back to the original
appropriation request. We can then look to the additional information that will become available,
and through House Appropriations or conference committee, adjust appropriations to a level that best
leverages North Dakota resources and capabilities. | would be happy to answer any questions you

may have at this time.



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2332
Page 3, line 2, replace "$500,000" with "$5,923,572"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment reinstates the original appropriation amount approved by
Senate Human Services from the general fund for the costs of the health
information technology office in the State Department of Health from $500,000 to

$5,923,572
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90948.0206 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representatives Skarphol and Svedjan
April 25, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2332

That the House recede from its amendments on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate Journal and
pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2332 be
amended as follows: :

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bili with “for an Act to create and
enact a new section to chapter 6-09 and two new sections to chapter 23-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North Dakota loan funds for health
informatlon technology, creation of a health information technology office, and health
information exchange grants; to amend and reenact section 23-01-31 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota health Information technology
steering committee; to provide an appropriation; to provide for transfers; to provide for a
report to the legislative council; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
Is created and enacted as foilows:

Health information technology loan fund - Appropriation.
1. The health information technology loan fund is established in the Bank for

the purpose of providing Ioans to health care providars to purchase and
upgrade electronic health record technology., train personnel in its use, and
improve security of information exchange. This fund is a revolving loan
fund. All moneys transferred into the fund, Interest upon monevs In th

fund, and coliections of interest and principal on loans made from the fund
are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall make loans from this fund to health care providers as
roved by the health information technology office in accordance with

the criteria established by the health information technolog y steering

committee under section 23-01-31. A loan made under this fund must be

repayable over a period of ten years.

The_Bank shall administer the health information technology loan fund.
Funds in the loan fund may be used for loans as provided under this
section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank may

deduct a service fee for administering the revolving loan fund maintained

under this section.

ro

foe

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the heaith
information technology office. The health information achnol office

may approve the application of a qualified applicait that mests the criterlia

established by the health information technology steering committee. The
health informatlon technology office shall forward roved gpplications to

the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the Bank shall

make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under this section.

[+

[

The Bank may do all acts necessary {o negotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption. and to

bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revolving ioan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed {o obtain loans under

Page No. 1 90848.0206




this section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan of funds °
from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may take a

subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the revolving 0
N\,

ioan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees and to
effect a redemption.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

23-01-31. North Dakota health information technology steering committee
- Dutles - Loan and grant programs.

1. The North Dakota health information technology steering commiitee
consists of the state health officer or the state health officer's designes, the
governor or the governor's designee, the executive director of the
department of human services or the executive director's designes, and
ning indlviduals appointed by the governor te-represent-state-gevernment
interests; and individuals-appointed-by the state health officer to represent
health information technology stakehalders.

The health information technology steering committee shali;

a. Apply for federal funds that may be available to assist the state, health

care_entities, and health care providers in implementing and improving
health information technology.

o

b. Establish a health information technology ioan program to provide
loans to health care providers for the purpose of purchasing and
upgrading certifled electronic heaith record technology, training
personnel in the use of such technology, and improving the secure C)
slectronic exchange of health information under section 1 of this Act. .

Establish a grant program for the health information technology office
to provide grants from the electronic health information exchange

grant fund to facilitate and expand electronic health information
exchange.

Establish an application process and eligibility criteria for loans and
grants under subdivisions b and c¢.

Consult with the information technology department regarding the
health information technology infrastructure of the state.

o

=

i

SECTION 3. Two new sections to chapter 23-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code are created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology offlce. The health information technology
. office is created in the state department of health. The health information technology

steering committee and the information technology department shall make
recommendations to the health information technology office for implementin

statewide interoperable health information infrastructure that is consistent with emerging
national standards, promots the adoption and use of electronic_heaith records and other
health information technologies, and promote interoperability of health information
systems for the purpose of improving health care quality, patient safety. and the overall
efficlency of health care and public health services. The health information technology
office shall accept and process applications for loans from the health information
technology loan fund as provided under section 1 of this Act and section 23-01-31 and O
for grants from the electronic health information exchange grant fund. The heaith
information technoloqy office shall provide or arrange for administrative services

assist the health information technology steering committee.
Page No. 2 90948.0206
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Electronic health Iinformation exchange grant fund.

1. There is created an electronic health information exchange grant fund. The
fund consists of moneys deposited in the fund from federal or other
sources or moneys transferred into the fund as directed by the leqgislative
assembly. The health information technology office shall administer this
grant fund as provided by the health information technology steering
committee and shall distribute funds accordingly. The grants must be used
to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange. Moneys in
the fund may be used, subject to legislative appropriations, for grants as
provided under this section and the costs of administration of the fund.

2. A grant applicant shall submit an application to the health information
technology office, which shall determine the applicant's eligibility based
upon criteria established by the heaith information technology steering
committee.

3. This section does not create an entitlement to any funds available for

grants under this section. The health information technology office may

award these grants to the extent funds are avallable and, within the office's

discretion, to the extent such applications are approved.

SECTION 4. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND HEALTH
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STEERING COMMITTEE - REPORT TO
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. Before October 2010 the health information technology
office and health information technology steering committee shall report to the
legislative council on the status of the health information technology activities.

SECTION 5. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the state health officer, up to $1,000,000
from the current eamings and the accumulated undivided profits of the Bank of North
Dakota to the health information technology loan fund to meet any required match for
federal funds and up to $5,000,000 from the current samings and the accumulated
undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the electronic health information
exchange grant fund to meet any required match for federal funds.

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $250,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the
purpose of defraying the costs of the heaith information technology office and advisory
committee, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending
June 30, 2011.

SECTION 7. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the electronic health information exchange grant fund, not otherwise appropriated, the
sum of $38,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, Including up to
$35,000,000 of federal funds deposited in the fund from the federal American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2008 to the state department of health for the purpose of
providing grants to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange, for the
period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011,

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.”

] Renumber accordingly

Page No. 3 90948.0206



ND Health Information Technology Steering Committee - (Member List)

VISION

Implement a statewide health information technology and exchange infrastructure.

MISSION

Facilitate the adoption and use of health information technology and exchange 1o improve healthcare guality, patient safety
and overall dfficiency of healthcare and public health services in North Dakota.

Website http://ruralhealth.und.edu/projects/sorh/hit, php

Chair - Steering Committee

Lynette Dickson, MS, LRD, Program Director

Center for Rural Health

University of North Dakota

School of Medicine and Health Sciences

Phone: (701) 777-6045

E-mail: ldickson@medicine.nodak.edu
- Represeni

Terry Dwelte, MD), State Health Officer
North Dakota Department of Health
Phone: (701) 328-2372

E-mail: tdwelle@state.nd.us

[Representing Deparement-of tealthy

Ray Gruby, MD, CEQ

Gruby Technologies

Phone: (701) 223-9113

E-mail: raymond@grubytechnologies.com

Bruce Levi, Executive Director
North Dakota Medical Association
Phone: (701) 223-9475

E-mail: blevi@ndmed.com

Represzhoing phsicany

Barb Grouit, CEO

North Dakota Healthcare Review

Phone: (701) 857-9747

E-mail: BGROUTT@ndqio.sdps.org
"Repr&emmgMadkare-Lq»Qualig»'IM
ey YA : SRR i

Doug Kjos, Programme r/ A nalyst
North Dakota Healthcare Review
Phone: (701) 857-9747
E-mail: dkjos@ndgio.sdps.org

,‘Regesentmg- edicare s Ouakity mprovemen
L

FPIPTAR U, Y

Senator Judy Lee
1822 Brentwood
West Fargo, North Dakota
E-mail: jlee@nd.gov
j Representing stme:tegisiature

32009

1g rural heaitheare facihities: organizarion

Janis Cheney, Executive Director
North Dakota AARP

Phone: (701) 355-3641

E-mail: jscheney@aarp.org

Craig Hewitt, C10

MeritCare Health System, Fargo
Pharne: (701) 234-6174

E-mail: Craig Hewitt@Meritcare.com

Mark Grove, Administrator

Great Plains Clinic, Dickinson

Phone: (701) 456-5161

E-mail: markgrove@greatplainselinic.com
¢ RenFesiuting clinics

Lisa Feldner, CIO

State of North Dakota, information Technology
Department

Phone: 701-328-3193

E-mail: Ifeldner@nd.gov

Tami Wahi, Policy Advisor HHS
Governor's Office

Phone: 701-328-2207

Ermail: tlwah!@nd.gov

‘Regieseniig goverRmER THICTES

Cathy Houle, MD

West River Regional Medical Center
Hettinger, North Dakota

Phone: 701-567-4561

Kimber Wraalstad, President/CEO
Presentation Medical Center

Rolla, North Dakota

Phone: (701) 477-3161

Email: kimberw(@utma.com
Representing rural haspi

Continued on back page > > >



Arnold (Chip) Thomas, President
North Dakota Healtheare Association
Phone: (701) 224-9732

E mall athomas@ndha org

Steering Committee me mbers, also serving as Chair
and/or Co-chair of one of the five work groups

WORK GROUPS

Health Information Exchange Work Group
Chair - Darrell Vanyo, CIO

Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota
Phone: (701) 282-1294

E-mail: darrell. vanyo@bcbsnd com

Co-Chair - Chad Peterson, IT Director
Northwood Deaconess Health System
Phore: (701} 587-6435

E—mall chad peterson@ndhc net

Policy/Legislative Work Group

Chair - Nancy Willis, VP Marketing
St. Alexius Medical Center

900 East Broadway Ave

Bismarck, ND

Phone: (701) 530-7615

Email, llis(@ nmecare org
“Representing rrtioiy T .

Co-Chair - Dana Halvorson, Legislative Assistant
(Liaison fo the Steering Committee)

Senator Kent Conrad’s Office

Phone: (202)-224-2043

E-mail: Dana_Halvorson@conrad.senate.gov

R .

PRI o SN L e

Communication/Education - Work Gron
Chair - Laurie Peters, RHIT, Past-President
North Dakota Health Information Management
Association

Phone: (701)748-3485

E-mail: |peters@westriv.com
(Represenfinghenttivinformation manggemenl

wurlgforce 5

31172009

Privacy/Security - Work Group

Chair - Jeanifer Witham, IT Director
North Dakota Department of Human Services
Phone: 701-328-2570

E-mail: sowitj@nd.gov

RET""‘E’:}?:

Finance/Resources - Work Group

Co-Chair ~ Lynette Dickson, Program Director
Center for Rural Health
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$0948.0209 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Weisz
April 28, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2332

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2332 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with “for an Act to create and
enact a new section to chapter 6-09, a new section to chapter 23-01, and three new
sections to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North
Dakota loan funds for health information technology, application for federal funds,
creation of a health information technology steering committee and a health information
technology office, and heaith information exchange grants; to repeal section 23-01-31 of
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the health information technology steering
committee; to provide an appropriation; to provide for transfers; to provide for a report to
the legislative council; and to deciare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Informatlon technology loan fund - Appropriation.

1. The health information technology loan fund is established in the Bank for
the purpose of providing loans to health care providers to purchase and
upgrade electronic healith record technology, train personnel in its use. and
improve security of information exchange. This fund Is a revolving loan

fund. All moneys transferred into the fund, interest upon moneys in the
fund. and collections of interest and principal on {oans made from the fund
are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall make loans from this fund to health care providers as

approved by the health information technology office in accordance with

the criteria established by the health information technology steering
committee under section 3 of this Act. A loan made under this fund must
be repayable over a period of ten years.

[ro

The Bank shall administer the health infermation technology loan fund.
Funds in the loan fund may be used for loans as provided under this
section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank may
deduct a service fee for administering the revolving loan fund maintained
under this section.

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health

information technology office. The health information technology office

may approve the application of a qualified applicant that meets the criteria

established by the health information technology steering committee. The
heaith information technology office shall forward approved applications to

the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the Bank shall

make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under this section.

The Bank may do all acts necessary to negotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary. to exercise any right of redemption, and to
bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revo ving loan
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fund under mortgages. contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans under
this section. |f the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan of funds

from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may take a

subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the revolving
loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees‘and to

effect a redemption.

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 23-01 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Informatlon technolagy - Application for federal funds. The state

department of health shall apply for federal funds that may be available to assist health
care providers and the state in implementing and improving health information

technology. including funding for health information technology loans under section 1 of
this Act and electronic health information exchange grants under section 5 of this Act.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technology steering committee - Dutles - Loan and
grant programs.

1. The health information technology steering committee consists of the

department's chief information officer or the chief information officer's

designes, the state health officer or the state health officer's designes, the
governor or the governor's designee. the executive director of the

department of human services or the executive director's designee, and

individuals appointed by the govemor and the state health officer to
reprasent health information technology stakeholders.

o

The health information technology steering committee shall:

a. Establish a health information technology loan program to provide

loans to health care providers for the purpose of purchasing and
upgrading certified electronic health record technology, training
personnel in the use of such technology, and improving the secure

electronic exchange of health information under section 1 of this Act.

Establish a grant program for the health information technology office

to provide grants from the electronic heaith information exchange
grant fund to facilitate and expand electronic health information

gxchange.

Establish an application process and eligibility criteria for loans and
grants under subdivisions a and b. The eligibility criteria for the grant
program under subdivision b must provide that if an applicant uses
grant funds for network services, the applicant shali contract with the
depariment for the department to provide the network services.

SECTION 4. A new saction to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

34

i3

Health Informatlon technology office. The health information technology
office is created in the department. The health information tachnology steering
committee shall make recommendations to the health information technology office for
implementing a statewide intaroperable health information infrastructure that s

consistent with emerging national standards, promote the adoption and use of
glectronic health records and other heaith information technologies, and promote

interoperability of health information systems for the purpose of improving health care
quality, patient safety, and the overall efficiency of health care and public heaith
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services. The health information technology office shall accept and process

applications for loans from the heaith information technology loan fund as provided

under sections 1 and 3 of this Act and for grants from the electronic health information
exchange grant fund. The health information technology office shall provide or arrange

for administrative services to assist the health information technology steering
commitiee.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-58 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Electronlc health information exchange grant fund.

1. There is created an electronic health information exchange grant fund. The
fund consists of moneys deposited in the fund from federal or other

sources or moneys transferred into the fund as directed by the legislative

assembly. The health information technology office shall administer this
grant fund as provided by the health information technology steering

committee and shall distribute funds accordingly. The grants must be used
to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange. Mongys in

the fund may be used, subject to legislative appropriations, for grants as
provided under this section and the costs of ad ministration of the fund,

A arant applicant shall submit an application to_the heaith information
technology office, which shall determine the applicant's eligibility based
upon criteria established by the healith information technology steering

committes.

o

This section does not create an entitliement to any funds available for
grants under this section. The health information technology office may
award these grants to the extent funds are available and, within the office's
discretion, to the extent such applications are approved.

|

SECTION 6. REPEAL. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code is
repealed. '

SECTION 7. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND HEALTH
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STEERING COMMITTEE - REPORT TO
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. During the 2009-10 interim, the health information
technology office and health information technology steering committee shall make
periodic reports to the legislative council on the status of health information technatogy
activities.

SECTION 8. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the state health officer, up to $6,000,000
from the current earnings and the accumulated undivided profits of the Bank of North
Dakota to the health information technology loan fund to meet any required match for
federal funds and up to $2,000,000 from the current earnings and the accumulated
undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the electronic health information
exchange grant fund to meet any required match for federal funds.

SECTION 9. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $350,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology department
for the purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology office and
steering committee, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and
ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the electronic health information exchange grant fund, not otherwise appropriated, the
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sum of $22,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, including up to
$20,000,000 of federal funds deposited in the fund from the federal American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009 to the information technology department for the purpose
of providing grants to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange, for
. the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011. O

SECTION 11. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.” '

Renumber accordingly
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Representative Skarphol
April 28, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2332

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2332 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with “for an Act to create and
enact a new section to chapter 6-09 and three new sections to chapter 54-59 of the
North Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North Dakota loan funds for health
information technology, creation of a health information technology advisory committee
and a health information technology office, and health information exchange grants; to
repeal section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota
health information technology steering committee; to provide an appropriation; to
provide for transfers; to provide for a report to the budget section; and to declare an

emergency.,

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology loan fund - Appropriation.

1.

fro

|G

|

The health information technelogy loan fund is established in the Bank for
the purpose of providing loans to health care providers to purchase and

upgrade electronic health record technology, train personnel in its use, and

improve security of information exchange. This fund is a revolving loan
fund. All moneys transferred into the fund, interest upon moneys in the

fund, and collections of interest and principal on lcans made from the fund
are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall make loans from this fund to health care providers as

approved by the heaith information technology office director, in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory committee, in

accordance with the criteria established by the health information

technology office director under section 3 of this Act. A loan made under
this fund must be repayable over a period of ten years.

The Bank shall administer the health information technology loan fund.

Funds in the loan fund may be used for loans as provided under this

section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank may

deduct a service fee for administering the revolving loan fund maintained

under this section.

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health
information technology office. The health information technology office
director, in collaboration with the health information technology adviso
committee, may approve the application of a qualified applicant that mests

the criteria established by the heaith information technology office director,
The health information technology office shall forward approved
applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the
Bank shail make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under

this section.
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The Bank may do all acts necessary to negotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and to

bring suit in order to collect interest and principal due the revolving loan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed to_obtain loans under

this section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan of funds

from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may take a
subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the revolving

loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees and to
effect a redemption.

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows: '

Health information technology advisory committee - Dutles,

1.

iro

[“

b

The health information technology advisory committee consists of the
department's chief information officer or the chief information-officer's
designee, the state health officer or the state heaith officer's designee. the
governor or the governor's designee, the executive director of the
department of human services or the executive director's designee, and
individuals appointed by the govemor and the state heaith officer to
represent a broad range of public and private health information technology
stakeholders.

The health information technology advisory committee shall collaborate

with and make recommendations to the health information technology
office, as provided under sections 1, 3, and 4 of this Act.

As requested by the health information technology advisory committee, the
department shall provide or arrange for administrative services to assist the

health information technology advisory commities.

The_health information technology advisory committee may empioy an
executive director who serves at the pleasure of and under the direct
supervision of the health information technology advisory committee. The

executive director may employ personnel as necessary for the
administration of this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology offlce - Dutles - Loan and grant programs.

1.

jro

The_health information technology office is created in the department. The
health information technology advisory committee shall make
recommendations to the health information technology office for
implementing a statewide interoperable health information infrastructure
that is consistent with emerging national standards, promote the adoption
and use of electronic health records and other heaith information
technologies. and promote interoperability of health information systems for
the purpose of improving health care quality, patient safety, and the overall
efficiency of health care and public health services.

The health information technology office director, in coilaboration with the
health information technology advisory committee, shall:

a. Apply for federal funds that may be available to assist the state and
health care providers in implementing and improving health
information technology.
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b. Establish a health information technology loan program to provide

loans to health care providers for the purpose of purchasin and

upgrading certified electronic health record technology, training

ersonnel in the use of such technology, and improving the secure
electronic exchangse of health information under section 1 of this Act.

c. Facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange in the
state, directly or by awarding grants.

d. Establish an application process and sligibility criteria for and accept
and process applications for loans and grants under subdivisions b
andg.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health information technoloqgy office - Eiectronlc heaith Information
exchange fund.

1. Thers is created an electronic health information exchange fund. The fund
consists of moneys deposited in the fund from federal or other sources or
moneys transferred into the fund as directed by the legislative assembly.
The health information technology office shall administer this fund and shall
distribute moneys in the fund accordingly. The moneys in the fund must be
used to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange.
Moneys in the fund may be used, subject to legislative appropriations, for
?r_ants as provided under this section and the costs of administration of the

und.

A grant applicant shall submit an application to the health information

technology office, which shall determine the a licant's eligibility based
upon criteria established by the health information technolo office

director in coliaboration with the health information technology advisory
committee,

This section does not create an entitlement to any funds available for
rants under this section. The health information technolo office ma
award these grants to the extent funds are available and, within the office's

discretion, to the extent such applications are approved.

SECTION 5. REPEAL. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code is
repealed.

SECTION 6. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND HEALTH
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE - REPORT TO BUDGET
SECTION. During the 2009-10 interim, the heaith information technology office and
heaith information technology advisory committes shall provide periodic reports to the
budget section on the status of health information technology activities.

[N

o

SECTION 7. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the health information technology office
director, up to $1,000,000 from the current earnings and the accumulated undivided
profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the health information technology lean fund to
meet any required match for federal funds and up to $5,000,000 from the current
earnings and the accumulated undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the
electronic health information exchange fund to meet any required match for federal
funds.
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SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $350,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology department
for the purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology advisory .
committee and the health information technology office, for the period beginning with F .
the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 9. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the electronic health information exchange fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$38,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, including up to $35,000,000
of federal funds deposited in the fund from the federal American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 to the information technology department for the purpose of
facilitating and expanding electronic health information exchange, for the period
beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure.” .

Renumber accordingly
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All funding opportunities will need to tie into the overall health information
technology plan as established by the federal or national health coordinator.

The same would be said in the state—any funding is tied to a state plan as
developed by the executive director and advisory committee.

Any product or service for which the funds are used will be required to adhere to
federal certification standards as set forth in any contracts for those products and
services.

Note: There currently is a federal certification standard in effect. That will be the
baseline moving forward.

Craig Hewitt, Meritcare senior vice president and CIO
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90948.0211 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Conference Committee
April 29, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2332

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate
Joumal and pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2332 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact a new saction to chapter 6-09 and three new sections to chapter 54-59 of the
North Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North Dakota loan funds for health
information technology, creation of a health information technology advisory committee
and a health information technology office, and health information exchange grants; to
repeal section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota
health information technology steering committes; to provide an appropriation; to
provide for transfers; to provide for a report to the budget section and the legislatlve
council; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 8-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Heaith information technology loan fund - Appropriation.
1. The health Information technology loan fund is established in the Bank for
purpose of p g loans to health care providers to p ase

the pu of providing loan roviders to purchase and
upgr alectronic health record technology, train personnel In its u
improvi ri nformation exchange, and for other purposes
established by the health informatio hnol ffice, in collaboration
with the health information technol is ommittes. This fund is

revolving loan fund. All moneys transferred into the fund. interest upon
moneys in the fund, and collections of interest and principal on loans made

from the fund are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.
The Bank shall make loang from this fund to health care providers as

roved by the health information technology office director, in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory committee, in

accordance with the criteria established by the health information
technology office director under sectlon 3 of this Act. A loan made undar

this fund must be repayable over a period that may not exceed ten years.

The Bank shail administer the health information technology loan fund.
Funds In the [oan fund may be used for loans as provided under this
section and the costs of administration of the fund, Annually, the Bank ma

deduct a service fee for administering the revolving loan fund maintained

under this section.

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the health
information technology office. The heaith information technology office

director, in collaboration with the health information technology adviso
committee, ma rove the lication of a qualified licant that meets

the criteria established by the health information technology office director.
The health information technology office shalt forward approved
applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the
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Bank shall make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under
this section.

The Bank may do ali acts necessary to negotiate loans and preserve (-\
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and to N
bring suit in order to coltect intersst and principal due the revolving loan e
fund under mortgages. contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans under
this_section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan of funds

from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may take a
subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the revolving

loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees and to

effect a redemption. ,

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Informatlon technology advi commi - Dutles.

1.

i

|6

>

The health information technolo dvisory commi consists of the
department’s chief information officer or the chief information officer's
designee, the state health officer or the state health officer's designee, the
govemor or the governor's designee. the executive director of the
department of human services or the executive director's designee, and
individuals appointed by the governor and the state health officer to
represent a broad range of public and private health information technol
stakeholders.

The health information_technology advisory committee shall collabora
with and make recommendations to the health information technology ( -
\

office, as provided under sections 1, 3, and 4 of this Act.

As requested by the health information technology advisory committee, the

department shall provide or arrange for administrative services to assist the
health information technoiogy advisory committee

The health information technoiogy advisory committee may employ an

executive director who serves at the pleasure of and under the direct
supervision of the health Information technolo i committes. Th

xecutive director m mpl rsonnel as neces for the
administration of this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology office - Dutles - Loan and grant programs.

1.

P

The health information technology office is created in the department. The
health information technology advisory committee shall make
recommendations to the health information technology office for
implementing a statewide interoperable health information infrastructure
that is consistant with emerging national standards, promote_th option
and use of electranic health records and other health information
technologies, and promote interoperability of heaith information systems for

the purpose of improving health care quality, patient safety, and the overall )
efficiency of health care and public health services. (

The health information technology office director, in collaboration with the ;
health information technology advisory committee, shail: !
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Apply for federal funds that may be available to assist the state and
health care providers in implementing and improving health
information technology.

Establish a health information technology loan program to provide
loans to health care providers for the purpose of purchasing and

upgrading certified olectronic heaith record technology, training
personnel in the use of such technology, and improving the secure
glectronic exchange of health information under section 1 of this Act,

|

134

Facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange in the
state, directly or by awarding grants.

Establish an application process and eligibility criterla for and accept
and process applications for loans and grants under subdivisions b
and ¢. The eligibility criteria must be consistent with federal
requirements associated with federal funds received under
subdivigion a.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as foliows: :

Health Information technology office - Electronic health Information
exchange fund.

124

|

1. There is created an electronic health information exchange fund. The fund
consists of moneys deposited in the fund from federal or other sources or
moneys transferred into the fund as directed by the legislative assembily,
The health information technology office shall administer this fund and shall
distribute moneys in the fund accordingly. The moneys in the fund must be
used to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange.
Moneys In the fund may be used. subject to leglslative appropriations, for
grants as provided under this sectlon and the costs of administration of the
fund.

o

A grant applicant shall submit an application to the heaith information
technology office, which shall determine the applicant's eligibility based
upon criteria established by the health Information technology office
director in collaboration with the health information technology advisory
commitiee.

This section does not create an entittement to any funds available for
grants under this section. The health information technology office may
award these grants to the extent funds are available and, within the office's
discretion, to the extent such applications are approved.

[0

SECTION 5. REPEAL. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code is
repealed.

SECTION 6. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND HEALTH
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE - REPORT TO BUDGET
SECTION. During the 2009-10 interim, the health information technology office and
heaith Information technology advisory committee shall provide periodic reports to the
legislative council and the budget section on the status of health information technalogy
activities.

SECTION 7. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the period beginning with the sffective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the health information technology office
director, up to $6,000,000 from the current eamnings and the accumulated undivided
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profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the health information technology loan fund to
meet any required match for federal funds and up to $2,000,000 from the current

earnings and the accumulated undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the N
. electronic heaith information exchange fund to meet any required match for federal ( o
funds. ;

L.
SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in

the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $350,000,

or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology department

for the purpose of defraying the costs of the health information technology advisory

committee and the health information technology office, for the period beginning with

the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 9. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the electronic health information exchange fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$22,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, including up to $20,000,000
of federal funds deposited In the fund from the federal American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 to the information technology department for the purpose of
providing grants to facilitate and expand electronic health information exchange, for the
period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. This Act Is declared to be an emergency
meastre.”

Renumber accordingly

-
. | [y
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Title.
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Representative Skarphol
April 30, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE Bil.L NO. 2332

That the House receds from its amendments as printed on pages 1258-1260 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1126 and 1127 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2332 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "tor an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 and three naw sections to chapter 54-59 of the
North Dakota Century Code, relating to Bank of North Dakola loan funds for heaith
information technology, creation of a heaith Information technology advisory committee
and a health information technology office, and health information exchange grants; to
repeal section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota
health information lechnology steering committee: to provide an appropriation; to
provide for transfers; to provide for a report to the budget section and the legislative
council; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA;

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
Is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology loan fund - Appropriation.

L

[

f&o

=~

The health information tachnalogy loan fund is established in the Bank for

the purpose of providing loans to health are providers urchase and
upgrade slectronic heaith record technolo rain personnel in its use

improva security of infarmation exchan for othar purposes as
established by the health information technol ffice, in collaboration
with the heaith information technal isory commitiee. This fund is

revolving loan fund. All moneys transferrad In he fund, interest upon
moneys In the fund, and collections of interest and ringipal on loans mad

from the fund are appropriated for disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall maks |oans from this fun health care providers as
approved by the health information technology office director, in
collaboration with the health information technology advisory commiittee. in
accordance with the criteria established by the health information

technology office director undar section 4 of this Act. A loan made under

this tund must be repayable over a period that may not exceed ten years.

The Bank shall administer the health Infarmation technology loan fund.
Funds in the loan fund may be usad for | ans as provided under this

section and the costs of administration of the fund. Annually, the Bank may
deduct a service fee for administering the revolving loan fund maintained
under this section.

An application for a loan under this section must be made to the heaith
information technol aftice. The health information technol office
director, in coliaboratiop with the health inf rmation tachnology agviso

committee, ma rove the lication of a quallfled applicant that mests

the criteria established by the health inform lon technoloqy office director.

The healith information technology office shall forward approved

applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the
Page No. 1 90948.0213



Bank shail make the loan from the revalving loan fund as provided under
this section,

The Bank may do all acts necessary to negotiate loans and preserve
security as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and to
bring suit in order to collect inlerest and principal due the revelving loan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed to obtain loans undar
this section. If the applicant's plan for financing provides for a loan of funds
from sources other than the state of North Dakota, the Bank may take a
subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the revalvin

loan fund amounts actually expended by the Bank for legal fees and to

affect a redemption,

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Health Information technology planning loan fund - Appropriation.

1. The heaith information technology planning loan fund is established in_the
Bank for the purpose of providing iow-interest loans to health care entitiog

to assist those entities in improving thelr health information lechnology
infrastructurg, This fund is a reyolving loan fund, All moneys transferrad

info the fund, interest upon mongys in the fund. and collections of intergst
and principal en loans made from the fund are appropriated for

disbursement according to this section.

The Bank shall make Ioans from this fund to health care entities as

approved by the health information technology office director, in

coflaboration with the health information technolegy advisery committes, In ( -

|

(7

[

accordance with the criterla establishad by the health information
technology director under section 4 of this Act.

i“

The Bank shall administer tha healih information technology planning loan
fund. Funds In the lgan fund may ba used for loans ravided under this

section and the costs of agministration of the fund, Annually, the Bank may

deduct a service fee for administering the revelving loan fund maintainad

under this sectign,

An application for a loan under thig section must be made to the health
information technology office. The heaith information technolegy office

director, in collaboration with the health information technoiogy advisory
commitles, may approve the application of a qualified applicant that meets
the criteria established by the health information technology office director.
The health information technology office shall forward approved
applications to the Bank. Upon approval of the application by the Bank, the

Bank shall make the loan from the revolving loan fund as provided under

this section.

The Bank may do all acts necessary to negofiate loans and preserve
securily as deemed necessary, to exercise any right of redemption, and {o

bring suit in order to collect intarest and principal due the revolving igan
fund under mortgages, contracts, and notes executed o obtain loans under
this section._If the applicant's pian for financing provides for a loan of funds
from sources gther than the state of North Dakola, the Bank may make a
loan subordinate security interest. The Bank may recover from the

revolving loan fund amoynts actually expended by the Bank for legal fess

and to effect a redemption.

[

[

SECTION 3. A new seclion to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Coda
Is created and enacted as follows:

Page No. 2 90948.0213
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Health |nformation technology advisory committee - Dutles.

1,

jpo

=

The health information technolo advisory committee consists of th
department's chief information officer or the chief information officer's
designes, the state heaith oificer or the stale heallh ofiicer's designes the

overnor or the governor's designee, the executive director of the
department of human services or the executive director's designee, and
individuals appointed by the overngr and the state health officer to
represent a broad range of public and private health information technology
stakeholders,

The health information technology advisory committes shall coliaberate
with and make recommendations to the health information technology
office, as provided under sections 1, 2, 4, and 5 of this Act.

As requested by the health information technology adviso committee, the
department shall provide or arrange for administrative services to assist the

health information technology advisory commities.

The health information tachnolo advisory committes may employ an

executive director who serves at the pleasure of and under the diract
supervision of the health information technology advisory committee. The
executive director may employ personnel as nacessary for the

administration of this section.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and snacted as follows:

Health information tachnology office - Dutles - Loan and grant programs.

1

(3

The health Information technoiogy office is created in the department. The
health information technology advisory committea shall make
recommendations to the health information technology office for
implementin tatewide interoperable health Information infrastructur

that is consistenl with emergin national standards, promote the adoption
and use of slectronic health records and other health Information

technologles, and promote interoperability of health information systems for
the purpose of improving health care quality, patisnt safety, and the overall
efficiency of health care and public health services.

The health information technology office director, in coliaboration with the
heaith information lechnoiogy advisory committes, shajl;

a, Apply tor federal funds that may be available to assist the state and
health care providers in implementing and improving health
information technology.

b. Establish a heaith inforrmation technology loan program to provide
loans te health care providers for the Rurpose of purchasing and

upgrading certified electronic health record technology, trainin
orsonne! in the use of sugh technol improving the secur

electronic exchange of health information, and for any other purpose
under section 1 of this Act.

Establish a health infarmation technolo lanning loan pragram to
rovide low-interest loans to health care entities to assist those

antities in improving their heaith information technology infrastructure
under section 2 of this Act.

&
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d. Facilitate and expand slectronic health information exchanage in the
state, directly or by awarding grants.

8. Estabiish an application pracess and ellgibility criterla for and accept
and process applications for loans and grants under subdivisfons b, ¢,
and d. The eligibility criteria must be consisient with federal
requiremants associated with federal funds received under
subdivision a. The eligibility criteria for loans under subdivision ¢ must
include a requirement that the reciplent's approved health information
technology be strategically aligned with the state’s health infermation
technology plan and the associated federal standards and that tha

recipient have passed an onsite electranic medical record readiness

assessment conducted by an assessment team determined by tha

health information technology advisory commitiee and the health

Information technology office director.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code
Is created and enacted as follows:

Health informatlon technology office - Electrenic health Information

exchange fund,

1

o

There is created an elactronic health information axchange fund. The fund

consists of moneys depgsited in the fund from federal or other sources or
monays trangferred into the fund as dirgcted by the legislative assembly.

The health information technology office shall administer this fund and shall
distribute moneys in the fund accordingly. The moneys in the fund must be
used to facilitate and expand electronlc health Information exchanas.
Moneys in the fund may be usaed, subject to legislative appropriations, to
provide services directly, for grants as provided under this section, and for
the costs of administration of the fund.

A grant applicant shall submit an application to the health information
technolo tfice, which shall determine the applicant's eligibility base

upon criteria established by the health information technology office
director in collaboration with the health information technology advisory

committes.

This section does nol create an entitiement to any funds available for

rants under this section. The heaith information technolo ffice m

award these grants to the_axtent funds are available and, within the office's
discretion, to the extent such appiications are approved.

SECTION 6. REPEAL. Section 23-01-31 of the North Dakota Cantury Code ig

repealed.

SECTION 7. HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OFFICE AND HEALTH
INFORMATICN TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE - REPORT TO
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL AND BUDGET SECTION. During the 2009-10 interim, the
heaith Information technology office and health information technology advisory
committee shall provide periodic reports to the legistative council and the budget section
on the status of haaith information technology activities.

SECTION 8. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFERS. The industrial
commission shall transfer, during the pericd beginnfng with the effective date of this Act
and ending June 30, 2011, as requested by the health information technology office
director, up to $8,000,000 from the current earnings and the accumulated undivided
profits of the Bank of Nerth Dakota to the health information technotogy loan fund to
meat any required match for fedaral funds or to the electronic health information
axchange fund to meet any required match for federal funds or as diracted, a portion to

Page No. 4 90948.0213
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both funds to maet any required match for federal funds. The health information
technology office director shall request fund transfers from the Bank only as necessary
to comply with federal requirements and to meet cash flow needs of the funds.

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA TRANSFER. If
actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2009, through September 30, 2009,
exceed estimated general fund revenues for that period by at least $22,500,000, as
determined by the office of management and budget, based on the legislative estimates
made at the close of the 2009 legislative session and upon certification by the health
information technology office director to the directer of the office of management and
budget of a demonstrated need for health information technology planning loans, the
industrial commission shall transfer, as requested by the health information technology
office director, up to $5,000,000 from the current sarnings and the accumulated
undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota lo the health information technology
planning loan fund, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011,
The heaith information technology office director shall request transters fram the Bank
only as necessary to meet cash flow needs of the fund.

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the stats treasury, nol ctherwise appropriated, the sum of $350,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology depariment
for the purpese of defraying the costs of the health information technology advisory
committee and the health infarmation technology offlce, for the perlod beginning with
the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011,

SECTION 11. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys In
the electronic health information exchange fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$88,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, including up to $80,000,000
of federal funds deposited In the fund from the federal American Recovery and
Relnvestment Act of 2009 to the information technology department for the purposes
astablished under section 5 of this Act, for the perfod beginning with the sffsctive date
of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

SECTION 12. EMERGENCY. This Act Is declared to be an emargency
measure.”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 5 90948.0213
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. Connecting ND for a healthier future

Why Should the NORTH DAKOTA Invest in Health Information Technology (IT)?

REASON #1

North Dakota citizens deserve to have their health information available to ali providers across the continuum of care.
Health IT alone will not transform health care, but it does have the potential to stimulate changes in health care that will
enhance quality of care and patient safety, stabilize or decrease costs, reduce waste and inefficiencies.

REASON #2

North Dakota health care facilities are significantly lagging behind, compared to other states, with the adoption of
health IT. Federal stimulus funds provide an unprecedented opportunity to advance health IT in North Dakota, but state
investment is required to compete for most of the federal funding opportunities.

REASON #3

Haspitals and physicians need to act swiftly to adopt EHR to maximize the Medicare/Medicaid incentives expected to
begin distribution (Federal FY2011) to qualified providers who are a “meaningful EHR user”’. However the stimulus
package does not provide up-front funding for rural providers to implement electronic health records (EHR).

REASON #4
Penalties begin in 2015 if a hospital/physician does NOT achieve meaningful use of an EHR, Failure to make this
,stment will have additional long-term implications for reimbursement.
e

following table identifies the (estimated) potential financial impact to North Dakota Criticol Access Hospitals (CAH) that faif to
become a meaningful EHR user by 2015 (ND has 36 CAHs).

Per CAH | Per CAH ND CAH

Annual 20 Years | 20 Years
impact 516,000 | $320,000 | $11,200,000

REASON #5

State investment in health IT is an investment in economic development and viability of rural communities.

Rural hospitals typically serve as the healthcare ‘hub’ of a community and are most often the largest employer in the
community. If hospitals and physicians are not able to become a ‘meaningful EHR user’ they will be subject to financial
penaities. Rural facilities are already struggling under current reimbursement structures.

REASON #6

State investment in health IT is an_investment in health care workforce recruitment and retention.

New health care professionals that are recruited to North Dakota (rurat and urban communities) want access to
technology that supports their practice in order to deliver the best care to their patients in an efficient manner.

Also, in order to retain the current health care workforce it is critical that they have available the technology to better
access their patient’s health information and share information with other clinicians, as needed, to improve the
continuity of care.

‘E‘ : ND currently has 48 counties (90%) designated as health professional areos. Survey results of medical students,

logy technician students and clinical laboratory students (over 85%) indicated that it was extremely or very
ortant when deciding where to practice that a facility have health IT (e.g. EHR, computed radiography, electronic
laboratory system, picture archiving communications system).
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. Connecting North Dakota for a heaithier future

Who Will Provide Oversight of the Loan Program?

With the establishment of the ND Health Information Technology (HIT) Office, to be located within
the Information Technology Department, a Director will be selected by the Advisory Committee
(which includes the Governor’s designee, state health officer and others appointees) and together will:

1) Develop criteria for the application guidance that mirror the federal requirements, fit within the
state plan (to be developed) and use successful models from other states;

2) Develop process and review criteria for loans;

3) Monitor the progress of loan recipients by setting reporting requirements which comply with
federal guidelines.

**Bank of North Dakota (BND) would conduct the fiscal analysis of applicant information after the
technical and program parameters have been reviewed and deemed cligible by the Advisory Committee; the
fiscal management of the loan would be the responsibility of BND.

.an Program :

e overarching goal for a loan and/or grant program is to improve access, quality and patient safety, through the

effective adoption and implementation of electronic exchange of health information within and among health care
facilities in North Dakota (e.g. electronic health records, regional health information exchange, telchealth, etc.).

Eligible health care entities: All rural health clinics and community health centers; hospitals; licensed
nursing facilities; local public health units, EMS, ambulance services and nonprofit entities(with the purpose
of providing health information exchange coordination governed by a representative and other providers of
health or health care services) approved by the ND HIT Advisory Committee.

All proposed loan/grant projects will require collaboration between three (at minimum) or more eligible
health care entities which are not owned by any one entity and fit within the state HIE plan(to be developed).
The intent of the grant program is to facilitate the formation of cotlaborative efforts between distinct corporate
entities. 20% match basis for the total grant amount awarded. Applicants shall be required to provide 15% in
the form of cash match and 15% in-kind match, such as staff or services.

Eligible Technology Solutions: All loan recipients will be required to purchase or upgrade new
health IT products, that are standards based (e.g. Healthcare [nformation Technology Standards Panel
[HITSP]) and meet interoperability specifications of approved certification bodies for the specific
type of technology being purchased (e.g. Certification Commission for Health Information
Technology (CCHIT) for EMRs; National EMS Information System [NEMSIS] for EMS systems).

Demonstrate Readiness: All applicants will need to describe their readiness to support the successful
adoption/implementation of technology solutions. Required activities may include: collaboration with partners,

. computer skills assessment; computer skills training for clinical and non-clinical staff, workflow analysis and
redesign; establishment of a HIT team, etc.



Goal

SB 2332

To Implement Provisions of the Health Information Technology for Economic
and Clinical Health Act (HITECH); to access federal funding to promote the
adoption, implementation and effective use of health information technology
in North Dakota; to improve quality and effective delivery of healthcare and
enhance patient safety.

SB 2332 Objectives

1.

™

O wnaw

7.

Access affordable capital for acquisition of electronic hardware and
software for enhancing patient safety through reduction in
handwriting and transcription errors;

Enabie providers to electronically access patient records from multiple
locations and throughout the episode of care;

Improve provider administrative efficiencies;

Enhance best medical practice research;

Promote purchase of information technology which provides inter and
intra institutional connectivity; and

Remove capital obstacles for technological acquisition and
implementation by independent medical practitioners and integrated
care organizations;

Flexibility for leveraging Federal matching funds.

Amended Bill

1.
2.
3.

op

N

Retains the current Information Technology Committee;

Retains the Governors Committee appointment authority;

Defines the functions and roles of the Information Technology
Committee;

Sets the Committee size;

Authorizes, and funds the Department of Health to administratively
support this program initiative;

Funds program operations;

Establishes a Committee charge: Take maximum advantage of the
incentives contained in the Federai Stimulus program in the next two
years to improve patient safety and the advancement of medical
practice through adoption and implementation of information
technology in the medical field;

Requires the Budget Section to review and authorize expenditure of
funds appropriated for the purpose of this bill;

Requires a report to the appropriate legislative policy and budget
committees on the status of this initiative prior to October, 2010;



10. Makes the funds appropriated available to medical providers;

11. Emergency Clause

Appropriation Request

General Federal
1. Program Staff and
Operations: $ 250,000
2. Capital Fund $ 2,000,000 $20,000,000
X kK

Full Information Technology Conversion Estimates:

Physicians

1. Solo Physician Computerization Cost Range
2. Mean Range for Physician Computerization
3. Estimated Private Practice Physicians

4, TOTAL

State Wide Exchange

1. State Wide Exchange Cost Range

2. Mean Range for State Wide Exchange
3. TOTAL

Hospitals :
1. Individual Hospital Computerization Cost Rang
2. Mean Range for Hospital Computerization

3. Number of Hospitals

4. TOTAL

$47 M

$25-60,000
$48,000
350

$16.8 M

$400-800,000
$600,000

42

$25.2 M
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